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Financial Highlights
(expressed in millions of U.S. dollars, except per share data)
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Annual Return
Price: 10.3%

Dividend: 2.4%

Total: 12.7%

The Company’s Annual Report contains measures such as operating earnings, operating earnings per share and operating return on e quity that 
are considered non-GAAP measures. See page 28 for a reconciliation of those non-GAAP measures to the most comparable GAAP measures.

For the years ended 
December 31, 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

$ 1,825 $ 2,655 $  3,590 $  3,853 $  3,616 Net premiums written
 1,895  2,670  3,873  4,166  4,206 Total revenues
 (160)  190  468  492  (51) Net (loss) income

(Loss) earnings per common share:

$ (4.44) $ 3.60 $  6.65 $  7.27 $  (4.42)
Diluted operating (loss) 
earnings per common share

 (3.60)  3.28  8.13  8.71  (1.56)
Diluted net (loss) income 
per common share

(12.1%) 12.5% 19.6% 17.0% (8.6%)
Operating return on beginning common 
shareholders’ equity

(9.8%) 11.4% 24.0% 20.4% (3.0%)
Return on beginning common shareholders’ 
equity calculated with net income

Non-life ratios:
100.4% 69.3% 65.6% 65.4% 86.9% Loss ratio

22.7% 22.0% 22.2% 23.0% 23.1% Acquisition ratio
6.3% 5.5% 5.5% 5.9% 5.9% Other overhead expense ratio

129.4% 96.8% 93.3% 94.3% 115.9% Combined ratio

As at
December 31, 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

$  7,173 $ 8,548 $ 10,903 $  12,680 $  13,744 Total assets
 1,748  2,077  2,594  3,352  3,093 Total shareholders’ equity

 29.05  34.02  42.48  50.99  44.57 
Diluted book value per common and 
common share equivalents

 2,709  2,714  3,120  3,398  3,725 Market capitalization

Comparative Performance Graph
PartnerRe Share Price   S&P 500   Trend Line  (12/1993 = 100)
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3Letter from the Chairman 
John A. Rollwagen

Letter from the Chairman

To Our Shareholders:

In last year’s annual report I stated: “I am confi dent that PartnerRe is well prepared to 
handle whatever the future may bring”.  2005 brought its challenges by the bucketful, and 
I am pleased to say that my confi dence was well founded. The Company has shown 
resilience in a year that managed to trump the previous one in both severity and frequency 
of natural disasters.  

While we experienced losses, I believe we can be proud of PartnerRe’s overall performance 
in 2005. Our strategy, risk management policies and processes proved their worth, and at no 
time was our capital strength in doubt. Strong performance from those parts of the business 
not affected by natural disasters helped to mitigate the loss, highlighting once again the 
value of our diversifi cation.

The past year has also seen an unprecedented scrutiny of the industry by regulatory 
agencies, accompanied by high media interest. True to our policy of openness and 
transparency, we stood up well to the scrutiny. We insist on the highest ethical standards, 
and the Board has continued to focus on corporate governance issues. 

Your Board remained unchanged in 2005, allowing us to consolidate our strengths. 
We are working together as a cohesive team with the aim of ensuring long-term value 
creation for our shareholders.  

Thank you for your continued support throughout the challenges of the past year.

John A. Rollwagen
Chairman of the Board
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5Letter from the CEO 
Patrick Thiele

To Our Shareholders:

2005 was a year that tested strength and commitment. I would like to begin by thanking 
you for your support throughout a trying year for PartnerRe and our industry. I hope you 
feel as I do that, despite the challenges we faced, PartnerRe remains focused and consis-
tent in what we do and how we do it. While many in the insurance industry might like to 
forget 2005, we feel it was an important year for PartnerRe on a number of fronts. 

Consider the challenges we faced:

The largest insured event in history
The losses from hurricane Katrina are a multiple of any other loss we have faced. We 
now expect that Katrina will represent a loss of at least $45 billion to the insurance and 
reinsurance industry and a loss of $511 million, net of reinstatement premiums, to 
PartnerRe. By way of comparison, the events of September 11, 2001 cost the industry 
and PartnerRe $20 billion and $347 million, respectively.

A frequency of large catastrophic events
Hurricanes Wilma and Rita, European winterstorm Erwin, the Central European fl oods: 
while they were not individually damaging, in total they represent a loss of $21 billion to 
the industry and $389 million, net of reinstatement premiums, to us. In effect, four of the 
20 largest catastrophe events in history occurred during 2005, in addition to hurricane 
Katrina – an unprecedented year for catastrophe losses.

A regulatory focus on the accounting and business practices of the industry
The SEC, New York Attorney General, state insurance commissioners – the regulatory 
agencies and the media took dead aim at a number of insurers and reinsurers, alleging 
various improprieties and lack of transparency. A number of companies and executives 
saw their reputations severely damaged. Add to this the ongoing requirements of 
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, and 2005 can be remembered as much for its regulatory 
developments as for the impact of natural perils.

An increasingly competitive and “effi cient” reinsurance marketplace
Not only did older traditional reinsurers re-emerge as avid writers of reinsurance risk, 
but we also saw a number of newer non-traditional competitors such as hedge funds 
and start-ups enter the fray.

In light of the challenges of 2005, I am proud of PartnerRe’s performance. With the 
unprecedented level of catastrophe losses in 2005, we reported a net loss for the year 
of $51 million, or $1.56 per share. While it is always disappointing to report a loss, we can 
take comfort that the loss we incurred was in line with our long-term expectations for the 
magnitude and frequency of the catastrophic events. As a result, our strategy remains intact. 
Our appetite for risk remains the same, as does our approach to pricing that risk. In fact, 
rather than create a need for change, the challenges of 2005 validated the effectiveness 
of our strategy, and we emerge stronger than we have been at any time in our history. 

Letter from the CEO
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Consider our achievements:

Our total capital is $3.9 billion, up 3.7% from year-end 2004. 
While the third quarter losses represented 17% of our capital at June 30, 2005, during the 
renewal season we were in a position to reassure our clients about PartnerRe’s fi nancial 
capacity. We were able to replenish our capital in the fourth quarter at attractive terms 
through the issuance of $149 million in common stock and $400 million of debt. 

Our risk assessment and management processes and philosophy were tested and 
proved strong. 
We were not surprised by the storms or their consequences. As a result we were able to 
be in the market quoting business with the same risk appetite as before the storms – a 
competitive advantage relative to many other companies. The losses from Katrina were 
consistent with our expectations for that type of event – we approach our business with 
the expectation that we will experience a U.S. windstorm event like Katrina every 1-in-40 
years, and a year of hurricane losses like 2005, every 1-in-30 years. As the losses from 
these events were within the risk parameters established by the Company, we were well 
positioned to cope with them. We did not have to change our risk appetite. We added the 
additional data sets available from the storms to our historical experience to sharpen the 
picture we already had. 

This was also true of our management processes. Our single management information 
systems platform performed as expected, making it possible to track exposures and the 
impact of the events and maintain clear communication as they developed. 

Operations that were not impacted by the hurricanes performed well. 
Our diversifi ed operations helped mitigate the property and catastrophe losses. Our 
investment operations had an excellent year. We earned $365 million of investment income, 
and also had net realized gains of $157 million, net of tax. Especially noteworthy was the 
total return of our equity portfolios at 13.5%. On the underwriting side, our underwriting 
experience for U.S. Specialty Casualty remains encouraging and our results in Energy and 
Marine in our Worldwide Specialty segment were well above our long-term goal of 13%. 

We continued to improve our general management tools. 
One of our goals is to be a well-managed reinsurer. This requires that our infrastructure 
(systems and processes) and our risk culture enable our employees to be as effective and 
effi cient as possible, and allow the Company to maintain fi nancial stability over time. Our 
employees took the storm events in stride. Everyone knew what they had to do and 
got on with the job. This kind of mature behavior in the face of challenge is characteristic 
of a well-managed company. As shareholders, you can be proud of how the PartnerRe 
organization responded to 2005.

These achievements are important, particularly in light of the challenges that confronted us 
during the year, but they do not change the fact that, over the last four years, we did not 
achieve an average 13% operating return on equity, which is our goal over the longer term 
reinsurance cycle. However, since the last major catastrophe year in 2001, we have grown 
our book value at a compound annual growth rate of 11.3%, which is above our annual 10% 
10% target.
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7Letter from the CEO 
Patrick Thiele

With regard to your investment return, our stock price was up 6%, which combined with a 
2.6% dividend yield, meant a total return of about 8.6% for 2005. For the four years since 
2001, our total return has been 7.5%. That is not an appropriate level of compensation for 
the risk you take on as an investor in a reinsurance company. We set our long-term goals to 
ensure that our shareholders earn an adequate rate of return on their investment, and I 
continue to believe that a 13% target is the right risk-adjusted target for shareholder return 
over a cycle. That goal does not change as a result of short-term changes in our market 
environment, and the fact that the compound annual return for our 12-year history is 13% 
indicates that we can catch up. The very low interest rates and unprecedented catastrophes 
have slowed our progress toward this goal, but they have not caused us to set our sights 
lower. Of course, these return goals are to be achieved within acceptable levels of risk to 
our capital base.

Outlook

With these goals in mind, we look to 2006 as an opportunity to make up lost ground. Some 
parts of the reinsurance market have responded to the losses with increased pricing. We 
participated fully in the January 1 renewals within our risk and return parameters and believe 
we have constructed a portfolio that balances solid expected profi tability with a reasonable 
level of risk. We will continue to operate with a clear view of what level of risk is reasonable. 
The fact is that while the events of 2005 collectively produced an extraordinary year for 
catastrophe losses, a year such as 2005 fi ts into our parameters, and is something we plan 
for. You can read more about our approach to our risk profi le in the “Risk Management in 
Practice” section later in this report.

Acknowledgements

I consider retirements from an organization as a sign of maturity and success, and so in this 
annual letter to shareholders I continue to recognize retiring members of senior operating 
management who have made a long-term contribution to the Company. Hugo Singer, who 
retired in the early part of 2006, joined PartnerRe in 1998 with the Winterthur Re acquisi-
tion and helped build the PartnerRe of today. I thank him for his dedication to PartnerRe.

Again, I thank all of our stakeholders – shareholders, cedants, brokers and employees – for 
their continued support. To reiterate, 2005 was an important year for PartnerRe. I fi rmly 
believe that diffi cult times expose the weaknesses of companies in a competitive business 
like reinsurance. PartnerRe passed that test.

Patrick Thiele
President and Chief Executive Offi cer
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Clients / Objectives

Lines of Business / 
Scope of Work

Global

Property & Casualty Specialty Lines Catastrophe
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Business Units

U.S.

Property & Casualty business:

• Property
• Automobile
• General Liability
• Umbrella Liability
• Workers Compensation
• Professional Liability
• Directors and Officers Liability
• Medical Malpractice
• Agriculture
• Surety

Organized into four business 
units to serve U.S. clients:

• Standard Lines
• Program Business 
• Specialty Casualty
• Specialty Lines

Leading property and casualty 
insurance companies within the 
U.S. market.

Products and services are 
provided to clients through 
reinsurance intermediaries.

Standard Property 
& Casualty business:

• Property
• Third Party Liability
• Employers Liability
• Workers Compensation
• Personal Accident
• Motor Third Party Liability

Organized into six departments 
along geographic lines:

• Northern Europe
• Central and Eastern Europe
•  Southern Europe and

Latin America
• France, Benelux and Canada
•  Greater China and South

East Asia
•  Overseas (including Australia, 

Japan, Korea, Middle East, 
Africa, Turkey, India)

Leading multi-line insurance 
companies in all geographic 
markets, excluding U.S.

Products and services are 
provided to clients directly 
and through reinsurance 
intermediaries.

Agriculture: Crop hail, 
MPCI, aquaculture, forestry, 
bloodstock, livestock.

Aviation/Space: Airlines, 
manufacturers, airport operators, 
general aviation, space.

Credit/Surety: Domestic and 
export credit, surety bonds.

Energy: Onshore oil and gas 
operations, mining, power 
generation, pharmaceuticals, 
chemicals.

Engineering: Construction/
erection, delay in start-up, 
boiler/machinery, business 
interruption.

Marine: Hull, cargo, specie, 
marine liabilities, loss of hire, 
P&I, energy offshore.

Specialty Casualty: Products 
liability, professional liability, 
medical malpractice, D&O.

Specialty Property: Property 
damage, business interruption, 
nuclear, terrorism pools.

Organized into eight 
departments by client 
or line of business:

• Agriculture
• Aviation/Space
• Credit/Surety
• Energy Onshore
• Engineering 
• Marine/Energy Offshore
• Specialty Casualty
• Specialty Property

Mono-line companies and 
specialty line divisions 
in multi-line companies 
worldwide for Aviation, 
Credit, Energy, Engineering, 
Marine/Energy Offshore and 
Facultative Property. All other 
lines exclude business from 
U.S. clients.

Products and services are 
provided to clients directly 
and through reinsurance 
intermediaries for both 
facultative and treaty solutions.

Property and motor 
catastrophe excess of loss 
treaties and proportional 
and stop loss property 
treaties for natural perils.

Scope of work includes natural 
hazards research and modeling.

One worldwide business 
unit organized into two 
departments:

• Underwriting
• Research

Mono-line companies, Pools 
and general P&C companies, 
serviced directly or through 
reinsurance intermediaries.

Services include providing 
coverage for natural hazards 
such as windstorm, earthquake, 
flood and other perils, as well 
as man-made catastrophes 
and advising on adequacy and 
structuring of protections.
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Alternative Risk Transfer

One business unit writing 
non-U.S. life business, 
serviced from offices 
in Paris, Zurich, Mexico, 
Montreal and Singapore.

Life insurers who require 
capacity, expertise and a 
range of services including 
medical underwriting and 
product development. 

Longevity and mortality 
lines in G7 countries 
(excluding U.S.) and some 
additional countries. 

One worldwide business unit 
to originate, structure and 
underwrite Alternative Risk 
Transfer products including:

• Structured Risk Transfer
• Structured Finance
• Weather
• Financial Guaranty

Structured Risk Transfer: 
Property and casualty insurance 
and reinsurance companies 
seeking alternatives to 
traditional reinsurance solutions.

Structured Finance: Investment 
banks, commercial banks and 
other financial intermediaries.

Weather: Energy, agriculture, 
construction and transportation 
companies whose results may 
be impacted by weather.

Products and services are 
provided to clients directly 
and through reinsurance 
intermediaries.

Structured Risk Transfer: 
Aggregate stop loss, loss 
portfolio transfer/adverse 
development cover, multi-year 
catastrophe and blended covers.

Structured Finance: Risk 
underwriting for non-standard 
asset-backed securities 
including future flow deals and 
intellectual property assets.

Weather: Temperature, rainfall, 
snowfall, wind.

Financial Guaranty: We 
participate in this marketplace 
through our equity investment 
in Channel Re.

One investment organization 
located in the Greenwich office, 
managing over $9 billion of 
globally invested assets.

Aligned with Group 
organizational structure, along 
Group and business unit 
lines, to ensure appropriate 
financial controls and maximize 
stockholder returns, while 
minimizing financial risk. 

•  Ensure appropriate control 
environment

•  Asset/liability management 
across the Group 

•   Optimal Group-wide capital 
allocation

•  Financial performance 
measurement

•  Complete and accurate 
financial reporting

• Actuarial reserving

Responsible for the Group’s 
fiduciary and control functions; 
transactional accounting and 
processing; decision support; 
actuarial analysis and 
reserving; planning; asset 
management and protection, 
risk management and treasury; 
capital markets, rating agencies 
and investor relations.

•  Preserve liquidity and 
protection of capital

•  Generate investment income 
and capital gains

•  Leverage investment skills 
to capitalize on convergence 
of reinsurance and capital 
markets

Responsible for managing all 
PartnerRe invested assets 
worldwide, with an investment 
philosophy that distinguishes 
between liability funds, which 
are matched against existing 
reinsurance liabilities, and 
capital funds.

Aligned with Group 
organizational structure, along 
Group and business unit lines:

•  Group roles include strategic 
planning, policy and control

•  Business unit roles focus 
on execution and operational 
support

Human Resources: Attract, 
retain and develop intellectual 
capital of the organization.

Information Technology: 
Provide effective information 
technology tools worldwide.

Legal: Ensure compliance 
with legal and reporting 
requirements.

Corporate Communications: 
Ensure consistent 
understanding of messages 
and information internally 
and externally.

Internal Audit: Ensure 
compliance with internal 
controls and procedures; 
Sarbanes-Oxley testing.

Responsible for ensuring that 
all support requirements – 
Human Resources, Information 
Technology, Legal, Corporate 
Communications, Internal 
Audit – are met on a Group 
and local basis.
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Executive Management 

Albert Benchimol
EVP and Chief Financial Offi cer, 
PartnerRe Ltd.
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CEO, PartnerRe U.S.

Bruno Meyenhofer
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Strategy in Focus
A Progress Report

PartnerRe’s continued strong performance in the face 
of two consecutive challenging years confi rms the 
effectiveness of our 5-point strategy. Our strategy 
provides a stable, consistent basis for decision-making 
and execution throughout the organization. Our 
Company’s ability to continue to operate at a high level 
in the face of the challenges presented by the events 
of the third and fourth quarters in 2005 reinforces the 
value of consistently applying this strategy.

1. Diversify risk across products and geographies
Diversifi cation is the cornerstone of our risk management approach. 
We are diversifi ed on many different levels e.g. by geography, risk 
class, lines of business and distribution channels. This was a key 
factor for mitigating the fi nancial effect of the hurricanes in the 
U.S. this year.

Growth in our Life and Alternative Risk Transfer (ART) businesses 
further improved our diversifi cation in 2005. The Life unit, which 
is not correlated to other lines, contributed an increase in net 
premiums written of 7% and $15 million profi t in 2005. ART is 
another stabilizing business. Our ART unit contributed $18 million 
in income in 2005 compared with $2 million in 2004. The results of these units represent 
the increasing scale and contribution they make to the balance and diversifi cation of our 
overall portfolio.

Our investment portfolio is managed on the same principle of diversifi cation as the liability 
side. Our in-house asset management team invests in many different asset classes and across a 
number of industries, geographies, currencies and durations. Results in 2005 were exceptional, 
with the generation of total returns over 100 basis points in excess of index benchmarks.

Geographic 
Distribution 
of Premiums  

  5% Latin America, 
 Caribbean and Africa

41% North America

  8% Asia, Australia 
  and New Zealand

46% Europe

11



2. Maintain risk appetite moderately above the market
At PartnerRe, we have chosen a risk appetite that is 
commensurate with our ability to manage those risks 
while maintaining our fi nancial strength. Severity lines 
make up the largest proportion of our book, and will 
continue to do so as we remain confi dent in our ability 
to manage the short-term volatility they entail. 

The events of the third and fourth quarters in 2005, and 
in particular Katrina, while signifi cant in size, were not a 
surprise to us and have not changed our risk appetite and 
return expectations. We establish our risk and pricing 

guidelines in anticipation of events of that severity. Nor did we need to change the policies 
that limit the risk of catastrophic events to our shareholders: the use of aggregate limits 
by zone, exceptional modeling and underwriting skills and avoiding dependency on the 
use of retrocession. 

3. Actively manage capital across the portfolio and over the cycle
At PartnerRe, we manage our capital to optimize shareholder returns over the cycle. We 
employ a capital charge methodology that equates capital to risk and allows us to evaluate 
where returns on capital are most attractive. We allocate our capital to where it is in greatest 
demand and therefore provides the greatest return potential, within Board-agreed risk 
limits. Correspondingly, we reduce our writings in areas where there is less demand for our 
capital and hence lower return potential.

The non-life reinsurance market began 2005 on the decline. Accordingly, we focused on 
being more selective in some non-life lines while growing Life and ART. We also allocated 
more capital to the investment portfolio, in particular to equity securities, with very 
positive results. 

The events of the third quarter were market changing, resulting in a much better pricing 
environment for some lines in the non-life reinsurance sector. We had the risk appetite 
to participate fully in the improving markets and grow premium within our capacity. For 
example, we wrote additional Energy business in the Gulf of Mexico, as the market became 
highly attractive.

An important part of our capital management strategy has been to return capital to our 
shareholders during the soft phases of the reinsurance cycle, in the form of share repurchases 
and dividends. In 2004, the Board authorized the repurchase of 5 million common shares, 
and that buyback process continued throughout the fi rst half of 2005, with over four million 
shares repurchased. The impact of the third quarter storms reversed this strategy. Share 
repurchases were curtailed and the company raised an additional $549 million in capital.

Business Composition

39%  Frequency
 Property 19%
 Motor 8%
 Life 12%

61%  Severity
 Agriculture 3%
 Aviation/Space 6%
 Casualty 19%
 Catastrophe 11%
 Credit/Surety 7%
 Engineering/Energy 5%
 Marine 3%
 Special Risk 6%
 ART 1%

12



4. Add value through underwriting and transactional excellence
PartnerRe’s technical capabilities have long been a recognized strength. Our technical 
excellence arises from the quality of our people: our underwriters, actuaries and risk specialists 
are among the best in the business. We have credible data, thanks to our proprietary models, 
which provide an independent view of risk. We also have the experience and intellectual 
capacity for advanced qualitative analysis throughout the risk assessment process.
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In 2005, the Catastrophe unit launched a new proprietary CatFocus™ European Wind 
Storm model, based on state-of-the-art numerical weather prediction. The model is now an 
integral component of catastrophe risk assessment and evaluation at PartnerRe, providing 
our clients with a reliable, physics-based model view of European windstorm risk. The 
U.S. Wind Storm model has been further refi ned with data points from the 2005 storms. 

We also launched a new Terrorism product in 2005 to provide aggregate terrorism coverage 
for regional carriers in the U.S. Our product is designed to provide coverage where there is 
a potential gap between where a company would typically manage its retention and where 
any government solution would place its retention. We utilize terrorism models to help us 
monitor our exposure for various return periods, but also pay close attention to our 100% 
at-risk exposure.

5. Achieve superior returns on invested assets in the context of a disciplined risk framework
We have refi ned this strategy point to refl ect the increased breadth of our risk classes. While 
we are, and will always be, in the reinsurance business, we have been gradually expanding 
into new risk classes, many of which have more connection with capital markets than with 
traditional reinsurance markets. 

Our investment approach is guided by the promise of paying our clients’ claims, while 
increasing the economic value of PartnerRe. We make a distinction between the assets we 
hold to support clients’ liabilities, and the remainder that represents our capital base. The 
liability funds are invested in investment-grade securities only, and are matched to the 
liabilities they support in duration and currency. Our capital funds are invested for optimum 
risk-adjusted returns subject to strict limits. In recent years the Company has generated 
substantial cash fl ows, which have contributed to the increase in investment income of 22% 
to $365 million in 2005.

We manage almost all our investments internally in order to control the diversity and 
balance of the portfolio. This enables a more fl exible approach to capital allocation, 
subject to guidelines. 
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“At PartnerRe we are in the business of assuming risk. Our success is determined by how well we 
understand, price and manage risk. While many industries and companies start with a return goal 
and then attempt to shed risks that may derail that goal, we start with a capital-based risk appetite 
and then look for risks that meet our return targets within that framework. We believe that this 
construct allows us to balance our cedants’ need for absolute certainty of claims payment with our 
shareholders’ need for an adequate return on their capital.

We are convinced each of the stakeholders in our industry would benefi t from a more fulsome 
discussion of risk. Last year’s annual report gave an overview of how we think about and manage risk 
at PartnerRe. This year we describe in more detail components of our risk management framework 
and the policies and metrics that we have built around certain key categories of risk identifi ed as 
posing the greatest threat to our economic value. By describing how we manage these risks, we hope 
that our cedants and shareholders will have a clearer understanding of the risk profi le of PartnerRe 
and therefore can make a more informed assessment of our value proposition.”

Patrick Thiele, President and CEO

RISK 
MANAGEMENT
IN PRACTICE 



Our Risk Management 
Framework

All organizations face a number of risks 
that threaten the successful execution of 
their mission. These include choice of 
strategy and markets, economic and 
business cycles, competition, changes in 
regulation, data quality and security, 
fraud, business interruption and manage-
ment continuity, among others. 
Reinsurance companies also willingly 
assume the risks of other organizations 
as their prime value creating function. 
That is the core of our business. 

At PartnerRe, our risk management 
framework encompasses the strategic 
risks that we share with the rest of our 
industry, assumed risks – the reinsurance 
and capital market risks that we are paid 
to assume – and the operational risks that 
are a part of running any business. We 
identify and categorize risks in terms of 
their source, their impact on the Company, 
and the preferred strategies for dealing 
with them. We take an integrated 
approach, because it is impossible to 
manage any of these risks in isolation. 
There are interrelationships and depen-
dencies between the various categories 
of risk. Each must be viewed in the 
context of the whole if their potential 
impact on the organization is to be fully 
understood and effectively managed.

Our organizational structure and our risk 
management framework are inextricably 
linked. Our structure is designed with a 
signifi cant emphasis on the effective and 
effi cient management of the Company’s 
risks. The Executive Management and 
the Board are responsible for managing 
strategic risks and setting key risk 
policies and limits. The individual 
business units manage our assumed 
risks, subject to the limits and policies 
established by the Executive 
Management and the Board. Operational 
risks are managed by designated 
functions within the organization. 
Controls and monitoring processes 
throughout the organization ensure that 
Management and the Board have a 
comprehensive view of the Company’s 
risks and related mitigation strategies at 
all times.

Strategic and 
Operational Risks

All businesses face strategic risks. Broad 
themes are generally the same across all 
industries, but the specifi c nature of the 
risks depends on the industry. We consider 
strategic risks to include the direction and 
governance of PartnerRe, as well as our 
response to key external factors faced by 
our industry. For example, our ability to 
remain competitive and achieve adequate 
returns could be impacted by changes in 
regulation, new competition, or the appeal 

of the reinsurance product as an effi cient 
risk transfer mechanism for our clients. We 
believe that a cohesive group of talented 
managers and directors, sound gover-
nance and prudent management enables 
us to mitigate our strategic risks, while 
ensuring that we are in the best position 
to take advantage of emerging trends and 
opportunities.

Operational risks are faced by all major 
complex organizations. They include 
failures or weaknesses in fi nancial 
reporting and controls, non-compliance, 
poor cash management, fraud, breach of 
information technology security, reliance 
on third party vendors and foreign 
exchange risks. Operational risks only 
offer a downside to the organization; we 
don’t get paid to take on these risks. We 
seek to minimize them as much as 
economically feasible through robust 
processes and controls throughout the 
organization. 

A complete description of our integrated 
risk management framework would cover 
all categories of risk and discuss our risk 
governance, processes and controls. 
However, in this report we wish to focus 
on our assumed risks, and in particular on 
the limits that we impose on those risks 
that we believe pose the greatest threat to 
the continuing success of a reinsurance 
company: catastrophes, casualty reserving, 
and equity risk. 

Illustration of PartnerRe Risk Types







Interpreting our Limits
We establish limits to manage the 
absolute maximum foreseeable loss from 
any one event. For example, our catas-
trophe zonal limits principally do not 
represent probable maximum losses 
derived from catastrophe models or any 
other loss estimate calculated at a 
particular probability level. Our limits 
mostly represent the sum of all covers 
exposed to any catastrophe loss in the 
peril zone. Even extremely unlikely events 
may only partially impact the zonal 
aggregate exposed limits. For example, 
our hurricane Katrina loss at $511 million 
was approximately 50% of our zonal 
aggregate exposed limits for US South 
Coast wind. (We think of Katrina as a 1-
in-100 year Gulf of Mexico wind event 
and a 1-in-40 year US wind event.)

The impact of any single loss event – or 
even a series of events that constitute 
shock losses – on PartnerRe’s balance 
sheet is likely to be signifi cantly less than 
the size of the headline loss. First, we 
receive premiums to cover the risk, which 
we invest until losses are paid. We can use 

these premiums and investment income on 
those premiums to pay losses before using 
our capital. Second, we benefi t from our 
diversifi ed platform: the odds are that, in a 
year when we experience a shock loss 
from any of the three main risk sources, we 
will be able to absorb a signifi cant portion 
of that loss through the positive contribu-
tions of the remainder of our operations, 
including other underwriting profi ts, 
investment income and capital gains, 
resulting in a signifi cantly reduced impact 
on our book value. 

Economic Value
In setting limits for our shock losses, we 
are guided by the potential impact on 
PartnerRe’s economic value. We calculate 
our economic value as the difference 
between the net present value of our 
tangible assets and the net present value 
of our liabilities, using appropriate risk 
discount rates. For traded assets, our 
calculated net present values are 
equivalent to the market values. 

Assumed Risks

Assumed risks are the risks that make 
our industry and company unique. We get 
paid to take on these risks. They are the 
reinsurance risks that our clients want to 
transfer and are the reason we are in 
business. They also include the capital 
market risks that we take in the invest-
ment of our portfolio. 

We assume these risks because we 
believe we can earn an attractive return 
through our ability to evaluate and 
manage them. However, if we take on 
too much, or the wrong risks, they also 
represent a threat to the organization. At 
a strategic level, we manage these risks 
through diversifi cation and absolute limits. 
At an operational level, risk mitigation 
strategies for assumed risks include 
strong processes, technical risk assess-
ment, and collaboration among different 
groups of professionals who each 
contribute a particular area of expertise. 

Our industry is predicated on the 
relationship between risk and opportunity: 
the higher the expected return, the higher 
the risk. The fi rst thing a reinsurance 
company must do is decide where on that 
line it wishes to be. We have made the 
strategic decision to maintain a risk 

appetite moderately above the average of 
the reinsurance market, because that 
position offers the best potential for 
creating shareholder value at an accept-
able risk level. We believe clients will 
allow us to earn higher returns only if we 
are willing to absorb some of the risk and 
volatility that they do not want to retain. 
Therefore, the most profi table products 
generally present the most volatility and 
potential downside risk. We look to 
manage that risk through diversifi cation, 
and absolute limits on any one risk.

We believe that diversifi cation is a 
powerful risk mitigation tool that 
increases portfolio returns per unit of 
risk. Over the last several years, 
PartnerRe has created a portfolio well 
diversifi ed across lines and markets. 

In seeking to limit our assumed risks, we 
accept that our business and results on a 
quarterly basis will be somewhat volatile. 
However, we do want to protect the 
company from downside risk that can 
have a negative impact on our organiza-
tion and materially impair our balance 
sheet. The limits we impose represent the 
boundaries of our risk tolerance and are 
based on how much we can lose of the 
capital that our shareholders entrust to us.

The major risks to our balance sheet will 
typically be due to events we refer to as 
“shock losses”. We defi ne a shock loss as 
an event that has the potential to 
materially damage economic value (as 
defi ned below). There are three areas of 
risk that PartnerRe has identifi ed at 
present as having the greatest potential 
for shock losses. These are catastrophe, 
reserving for casualty and other long-tail 
lines, and equity investment risk. Other 
risks can impact earnings substantially 
and could certainly lead to volatility in 
results, but by themselves are unlikely to 
represent a material downside threat to 
our economic value. Such risks would 
include mortality and longevity risk, 
interest rate risk and credit risk, as well as 
random volatility in underwriting results. 

We manage the risk of shock losses by 
setting limits on our tolerance for specifi c 
risks and on the amount of capital that 
we are willing to expose. Our approach in 
the key areas of catastrophe, casualty 
reserving and equity investment risk is set 
out on the following pages.

Illustration of the Effect of Catastrophe Shock Losses on Book Value
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Risk: The risk that the aggregate losses 
to PartnerRe from natural perils materially 
exceed the net premiums that we receive 
to cover such risks.

Measure: 
(i) Aggregate exposed limits for 
catastrophe losses in each of our 
defi ned exposure zones. 

(ii) Aggregate modelled net economic 
losses (i.e. losses less net premiums 
received) at particular return periods 
as a specifi ed percentage of available 
economic capital.

Tolerance: 
(i) Total aggregate exposed limits in any 
one zone for a loss from any single peril 
to be less than $1.25 billion.

(ii) Aggregate modelled net economic 
losses (i.e. losses less net premiums 
received) of multiple events for approxi-
mately a 1-in-75 year return period to 
be less than $750 million (i.e. 60% of 
maximum zonal aggregate limit).

Present Position (12.31.2005):

(i)

(ii)

Risk Management: Real time allocation 
of catastrophe exposure capacity on each 
exposure zone to different Business Units. 
Regular modelling of aggregate loss 
scenarios through proprietary models. 
Combination of quantitative and qualitative 
analysis. Geographically diversifi ed 
catastrophe exposures. (Catastrophe 
excess-of-loss risk not mitigated through 
retrocession.)

At PartnerRe, we are concerned with 
both the loss of capital due to a single 
large event and the loss of capital that 
would occur from multiple (but perhaps 
smaller) events in any year.

We impose an absolute limit to our 
catastrophe risk from any single loss 
through exposure limit caps in each zone 
and to each peril, with the largest zonal 
limit being no more than $1.25 billion. 
This is equal to approximately a third of 
our total capital. 

A zone is a geographic area in which the 
insurance risks are considered to be 
correlated to a single catastrophic event. 
Not all zones have the same limit. Our 
zones are broadly defi ned so that it 
would be highly unlikely for any single 
event to substantially erode the 
aggregate exposure limits from more 
than one zone. Even extremely high 
severity/low likelihood events will only 
partially exhaust the limits in any zone, as 
they are likely to only affect a part of the 
area covered by a wide zone. For 
example hurricane Katrina affected 
approximately 50% of the exposure cap 
in its zone.

We also manage our exposures so that 
the chance that an economic loss to 
PartnerRe from all catastrophe losses in 
any one year exceeds $750 million is 
unlikely to happen in a lifetime – i.e. the 
probability is less than one in 75 years. 
To measure this probability, we use 
proprietary models that take into account 
not only our exposures in any zone but 
also the likely frequency and severity of 
catastrophic events. We supplement our 
quantitative analysis with the profes-
sional judgement of our experienced 
underwriters.

Limiting Shock Loss Risks: 
Catastrophe Risk

Limit 
$1.25 billion

Limit 
$750 million
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One of the greatest risks in long-tail 
lines of business, and particularly in U.S. 
Casualty, is that the loss trends are 
higher than the assumptions underlying 
our ultimate loss estimates, and hence 
ultimate losses will be higher than our 
estimated loss reserves. This could 
happen for several reasons, but key 
among them is a pick up in general 
economic infl ation (or in some cases 
sector infl ation, such as medical care 
costs), regulatory or judicial intervention, 
social trends resulting in higher settle-
ment awards to claimants and increased 
litigiousness leading to higher propensity 
to fi le and pursue claims. 

When loss trends prove to be higher than 
those underlying our reserving assump-
tions, the risk is great because of a 
“stacking up” effect: for long-tail lines, 
we carry reserves to cover claims arising 
from several years of underwriting activity 
and these reserves are likely to be 
adversely affected by unfavorable loss 
trends. The effect is likely to be more 
pronounced for recent or “green” 
underwriting years because, with the 
passage of time, actual loss emergence 
and data provide greater confi dence 

around the adequacy of ultimate liability 
estimates. For example, if our pricing 
actuaries misestimate loss trends by 
roughly four percentage points a year for 
several recent years, the effect could be 
an increase in the average combined 
ratio for those years of approximately 
eight percentage points. This would 
require a reserve strengthening of 
approximately 8% of cumulative 
premiums written in those years.

Accordingly, at PartnerRe it is our belief 
that the volume of long-tail business most 
exposed to these reserving uncertainties 
should be limited to a predetermined 
amount. Our limit for the aggregate 
trailing four-year earned premiums for 
specifi ed long-tail lines in 2006 is 
$3 billion. 

Beyond the limits of our risk appetite 
captured in the volume caps, we manage 
and mitigate the reserve risk for long-tail 
lines in a variety of ways. First, we ensure 
that our underwriters and pricing actuaries 
follow a disciplined underwriting process 
that fully utilizes all available data and 
information, including industry trends. 
Second, we have prudent reserving 

policies for determining carried reserves. 
Our policies are systematic and are 
consistently applied over time. They are not 
affected by short-term results or earnings 
performance but have been designed to 
ensure balance sheet strength. 

Finally, our underwriters will manage our 
exposures through the cycle within our 
risk tolerance boundaries, to optimize the 
risk/return trade-off over time. For 
example, during the soft phase of the 
U.S. Casualty pricing cycle from 1997-
2001, U.S. Casualty risks represented 
7% of our non-life premiums written, 
while during the harder phase of the 
cycle from 2002-2005 they comprised 
16% of our premiums. 

Limiting Shock Loss Risks: 
Casualty Reserving Risk

Risk: The risk that the estimates of 
ultimate losses for casualty and other 
long-tail lines that underlie our booked 
reserves will prove to be too low, leading 
to substantial reserve strengthening.

Measure: Total premiums for casualty 
and long-tail lines.

Tolerance: Total earned premiums for 
casualty and other long-tail lines for the 
four most recent underwriting periods 
limited to no more than $3 billion.

Present Position (12.31.2005):

Risk Management: Actuarial and 
reserving expertise, underwriting process, 
prudent and consistent reserving 
philosophy, cycle management, diversifi ca-
tion within the casualty book, peer reviews 
and periodic external actuarial reviews.

Limit 
$3 billion
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Limiting Shock Loss Risks: 
Equity Investment Risk

Assuming equity risk (and equity-like risks 
such as high yield bonds and convert-
ibles) within that part of the investment 
portfolio that is not required to support 
liabilities provides valuable diversifi cation 
from other risk classes, along with the 
potential for higher returns. However, an 
overweight position could lead to a large 
loss of capital and impair the balance 
sheet in the case of a market crash.

At PartnerRe, our equity (and equity-like) 
exposure is managed within strict 
guidelines, with a cap on assets other 
than investment grade bonds set at no 
more than $2 billion, about half of our 
total capital. We have a diversifi ed 
portfolio of such risks with strict limits 
on investments in any one name and 

any one industry. This allows us to focus 
on the systemic effects of equity risks. 
Systemic risk is managed by asset 
allocation, subject to strict caps on 
other than investment-grade bonds 
as a percentage of capital.

PartnerRe applies equal care to all of its 
investment decisions. Strong governance 
and controls across the organization 
ensure that all investment decisions are 
made prudently, and that limits are not 
breached. A fully integrated information 
system provides real-time data on our 
investment portfolios, allowing for 
continuous monitoring and decision-
support. An Asset Allocation Committee 
meets monthly to review and determine 
portfolio duration, credit risk, allocation to 

equity and equity like asset classes, as 
well as new investment strategies or 
instruments. Each portfolio is managed 
against a pre-determined benchmark to 
ensure alignment with appropriate risk 
parameters and achievement of desired 
returns. Our investment operations follow 
state-of-the-art processes, including 
compliance with SEC, NYSE and 
AIMR regulations.

Risk: The risk of a substantial decline 
in the value of our equity and equity-like 
investments during the year.

Measure: Equity and equity-like products 
as a percentage of available economic 
capital. 

Tolerance: Investment in equity and 
equity-like assets to be no more than 
$2 billion.

Present Position (12.31.2005):

Risk Management: Limits by asset type, 
class and ratings, limits by name and 
industry, diversifi cation, investment 
expertise, governance, controls.

PartnerRe 
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Limit 
$2 billion
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Other Assumed Risks

Other loss events can impact economic 
value, but by themselves, over a whole 
year, would be unlikely to lead to a 
material reduction in our book value. 
These would include mortality and 
longevity risk, interest rate risk and 
credit risk, as well as some of the random 
volatility that we may experience in our 
diversifying lines such as specialty and 
automobile. We hold appropriate economic 
capital against these risks and manage 
within pre-established guidelines at the 
operational level.

Systemic Risks

In addition to our assumed risks, we also 
face some interrelated risks that occur 
across our assumed risk portfolio, and 
not in just one particular business area. 
These systemic risks cannot be managed 
by diversifi cation or by setting limits. 
The primary systemic risks we face are 
accumulated loss risk and cycle risk. 

Accumulated loss risk is the risk that 
several shock losses occur at one time, 
for example a major catastrophe event 
accompanied by a collapse in the equity 

market. We believe that the limits we place 
on shock losses will allow us to survive the 
painful experience that risk accumulation 
may create for the reinsurance industry. 

Cycle risk is the risk that some or all of 
the business cycles coincide. Soft markets 
across several different business areas at 
once would result not only in lack of 
opportunities but also greater exposure to 
risk. Our governance and strategy allow us 
to manage the cycle risk. If returns are 
below the level we consider adequate, we 
will reduce the amount of risk we assume 
and return capital to our shareholders. 

We expose our capital to opportunities 
that will earn attractive returns. We do that 
by directing capital to those areas where 
the best returns can be achieved. We then 
write more business there and/or shrink 
those lines where our capital is in less 
demand and therefore provides a lower 
return. Our diversifi cation gives us the 
fl exibility to select the business mix that 
we feel optimizes returns, and this may 
change at any point during the under-
writing cycle (or according to the 
investment environment). 

Conclusion

We believe that our chosen approach 
to risk management, and our limits, are 
appropriate for PartnerRe. Despite these 
risk management systems, we recognize 
that the world changes and occasionally 
confronts us with unexpected shocks. 
Perhaps our greatest risks are 
the ones we have not yet identifi ed. We 
attempt to foster a sober and prudent 
attitude in the face of risk at PartnerRe, 
to ensure that we can successfully 
continue to meet the needs of our clients 
while creating value for our shareholders.
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2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

 $ (160)  $ 190  $ 468  $ 492  $ (51) Net (loss) income

  14   (17)   80   78   157 

Less: 
 Net realized investment gains 
  (losses), net of tax

  20   20   30   21 35  Dividends to preferred shareholders

  28  — — — — 
 Cumulative effect of adopting new
  accounting standard, net of tax

 $ (222)  $ 187  $ 358  $ 393  $ (243)
Operating (loss) earnings
 available to common shareholders

 $ (3.60)  $ 3.28  $ 8.13  $ 8.71  $ (1.56)
Diluted net (loss) income
 per common share

0.28 (0.32) 1.48 1.44 2.86

Less: 
 Net realized investment gains 
  (losses) per common share

0.56 — — — —
 Cumulative effect of adopting new
  accounting standard, net of tax

 $ (4.44)   $ 3.60  $ 6.65  $ 7.27  $ (4.42)
Diluted operating (loss) earnings 
 per common share

(9.8%) 11.4% 24.0% 20.4% (3.0%)
Return on beginning common shareholders’ 
 equity calculated with net income

 2.3 (1.1) 4.4 3.4 5.6

Less:
 Net realized gains (losses), 
  net of tax

(12.1%) 12.5% 19.6% 17.0% (8.6%)
Operating return on beginning
 common shareholders’ equity

 $ 1,748  $ 2,077  $ 2,594  $ 3,352  $ 3,093 Shareholders’ equity

250
—
—

250
—
—

—
290

—

—
290
230

—
290
230

Less:
 Liquidation value of Series A cumulative preferred shares
 Liquidation value of Series C cumulative preferred shares
 Liquidation value of Series D cumulative preferred shares

 $ 1,498  $ 1,827  $ 2,304  $ 2,832  $ 2,573 Common shareholders’ equity

33 132 85 96 5
Less:
 Net unrealized gains on fi xed income securities, net of tax

 $ 1,465  $ 1,695  $ 2,219  $ 2,736  $ 2,568
Book value excluding net unrealized gains on 
 fi xed income securities

51.6 53.7 54.2 55.5 57.7
Divided by:
Number of diluted common shares outstanding

 $ 28.40  $ 31.57  $ 40.90  $ 49.27  $ 44.49

Equals:
Diluted book value per common and common 
  equivalent share excluding net unrealized gains 

on fi xed income securities

Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Measures
(expressed in millions of U.S. dollars, except per share data)
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Certain statements contained in this document, including Management’s Discussion and Analysis, 
may be considered forward-looking statements as defi ned in section 27A of the United States 
Securities Act of 1933 and section 21E of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 
Forward-looking statements are made based upon Management’s assumptions and expectations 
concerning the potential effect of future events on the Company’s fi nancial performance and are 
made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 
1995. These forward-looking statements are subject to certain signifi cant risks, uncertainties and 
assumptions about our business that could cause actual results to differ materially from those 
refl ected in such statements. These risks, uncertainties and assumptions (that are described 
in more detail in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K as fi led with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission on March 2, 2006) include, but are not limited to: 

-  The occurrence of catastrophic events or other reinsured events with a frequency or 
severity exceeding our expectations;

-  A decrease in the level of demand for reinsurance and/or an increase in the supply of 
reinsurance capacity;

-  Increased competitive pressures, including the consolidation and increased globalization 
of reinsurance providers;

-  Actual losses and loss expenses exceeding our loss reserves, which are necessarily based 
on actuarial and statistical projections of ultimate losses;

-  Uncertainty related to estimated losses and unanticipated losses from 
catastrophic events;

-  Acts of terrorism, acts of war and man-made or other unanticipated perils;

-  Changes in the cost, availability and performance of retrocessional reinsurance, including 
the ability to collect reinsurance recoverables;

-  Concentration risk in dealing with a limited number of brokers;

-  Credit risk relating to brokers, cedants and counterparties;

-  Developments in and risks associated with global fi nancial markets that could affect our 
investment portfolio;

-  Changing rates of infl ation and other economic conditions;

-  Availability of borrowings and letters of credit under the Company’s credit facilities;

-  The impact of fl uctuations in foreign currency exchange rates;

-  Actions by rating agencies that might impact the Company’s ability to continue to write 
existing business or write new business;

-  Changes in accounting policies, their application or interpretation; 

-  Changes in the legal or regulatory environments in which we operate, including the 
passage of federal or state legislation subjecting Partner Reinsurance Company Ltd. or 
PartnerRe SA to supervision or regulation, including tax regulation, in the United States or 
other jurisdictions in which we operate;

PartnerRe Ltd.
Forward-Looking Statements
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-  The potential industry impact of investigations into market practices in the U.S. property 
and casualty industry;

-  Legal decisions and rulings and new theories of liability;

-  The amount of dividends received from our subsidiaries; and

-  The loss of services of any one of our executives without a timely and 
suitable replacement.

The above discussion of important factors should not be construed as exhaustive and 
should be read in conjunction with other cautionary statements that are included herein 
or elsewhere. The words “believe,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “project,” “plan,” “expect,” “intend,” 
“hope,” “forecast,” “evaluate,” “will likely result” or “will continue” or words of similar impact 
generally involve forward-looking statements. We caution readers not to place undue 
reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of their dates. The 
Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking 
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

PartnerRe Ltd.
Forward-Looking Statements
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For the year
ended 

December 31, 
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 Operating Data

 $ 1,878  $ 2,706  $ 3,625  $ 3,888  $ 3,665 Gross premiums written

1,825 2,655 3,590 3,853 3,616 Net premiums written

 $ 1,634  $ 2,426  $ 3,503  $ 3,734  $ 3,599 Net premiums earned

240 245 262 298 365 Net investment income

20 (7) 87 117 207 Net realized investment gains (losses)

1 6 21 17 35 Other income

 $ 1,895  $ 2,670  $ 3,873  $ 4,166  $ 4,206 Total revenues

1,632 1,716 2,366 2,476 3,087 Losses and loss expenses and life policy benefi ts

2,149 2,450 3,381 3,673 4,244 Total expenses

 $ (254)  $ 220  $ 492  $ 493  $ (38)

(Loss) income before distributions related to trust preferred 
and mandatorily redeemable preferred securities, taxes and 
interest in earnings of equity investments

3 27 22 — —
Distributions related to trust preferred and 
mandatorily redeemable preferred securities

(69) 3 2 7 23 Income tax (benefi t) expense 

— — — 6 10 Interest in earnings of equity investments

 $ (188)  $ 190  $ 468  $ 492  $ (51) Net (loss) income before cumulative effect of adopting new 
accounting standard, net of tax

28 — — — — Cumulative effect of adopting new accounting standard, net of tax

 $ (160)  $ 190  $ 468  $ 492  $ (51) Net (loss) income

 $ (3.60)  $ 3.37  $ 8.23  $ 8.80  $ (1.56) Basic net (loss) income per common share

 $ (3.60)  $ 3.28  $ 8.13  $ 8.71  $ (1.56) Diluted net (loss) income per common share

Non-life Ratios

100.4% 69.3% 65.6% 65.4 % 86.9% Loss ratio

22.7 22.0 22.2 23.0 23.1 Acquisition ratio

6.3 5.5 5.5 5.9 5.9 Other operating expense ratio

129.4% 96.8% 93.3% 94.3 % 115.9% Combined ratio

 $ 1.10  $ 1.15  $ 1.20  $ 1.36  $ 1.52 Dividends Declared and Paid per Common Share

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 Balance Sheet Data 

 $ 4,411  $ 5,185  $ 6,797  $ 8,398  $ 9,579 Total investments and cash

7,173 8,548 10,903 12,680 13,744 Total assets

3,699 4,474 5,917 7,044 7,962
Unpaid losses and loss expenses and policy benefi ts for life and 
annuity contracts

220 220 220 220 620 Long-term debt

—  —  206 206 206 Debt related to trust preferred securities

200 200 200 —  — Mandatorily redeemable preferred securities

200 200 —  —  —  Trust preferred securities

1,748 2,077 2,594 3,352 3,093 Shareholders’ equity

 $ 29.05  $ 34.02  $ 42.48  $ 50.99  $ 44.57 Diluted book value per common and common share equivalents

50.1 51.9 53.9 54.0 55.0
Weighted average number of common and 
common share equivalents outstanding

50.2 52.4 53.7 54.9 56.7 Number of common shares outstanding

The Company adopted SFAS 133 in 2001, SFAS 142 in 2003, and SFAS 150 and FIN46(R) in 2004. (See Note 2 to Consolidated Financial Statements.) 

PartnerRe Ltd.
Selected Consolidated Financial Data
(Expressed in millions of U.S. dollars, except share and per share data)

The following Selected Consolidated Financial Data is presented in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States. This data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial 
Statements and the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Executive Overview 
The Company operates on a global basis providing multi-line reinsurance to insurance 
companies. The Company writes all lines of business in virtually all markets worldwide, 
and differentiates itself through its approach to risk, its strategy to manage risk, and its 
fi nancial strength.

Reinsurance is by its nature a risk assumption business. The Company’s philosophy is to 
assume its clients’ risks, thereby removing their volatility associated with these risks, and 
then manage those risks and risk-related volatility. The Company’s ability to succeed in 
the risk assumption business is dependent on its ability to accurately analyze and quantify 
risk, to understand volatility and how risks aggregate or correlate, and to establish the 
appropriate capital requirements and absolute limits for the risks assumed.

The reinsurance markets have historically been highly cyclical in nature. The cycle is 
driven by competition, the amount of capital and capacity in the industry, loss events, and 
investment returns. The Company’s long-term strategy to generate shareholder value 
focuses on broad product and geographic diversifi cation of risks, assuming a moderately 
greater degree of risk than the market average, managing its capital across its risk portfolio 
and over the duration of the cycle, transactional excellence, and utilizing internal fi nancial 
capabilities to achieve superior returns on capital.

The Company was fi rst established in 1993 as a specialty catastrophe reinsurer. Recognizing 
the limitations and inherent volatility in writing a single line of business, the Company made 
a strategic shift to diversify its risk portfolio. The Company began pursuing acquisition 
opportunities, and in 1997 acquired French reinsurer SAFR (subsequently renamed Partner 
Re SA), and then the following year acquired the reinsurance operations of the Winterthur 
Group. Through these acquisitions and organic growth, the Company has evolved into a 
leading multi-line reinsurer. The Company writes business from four principal locations: 
Bermuda, Greenwich (Connecticut), Zurich and Paris. Risks reinsured include property, 
casualty, motor, agriculture, aviation/space, catastrophe, credit/surety, engineering/energy, 
marine, special risk, life/annuity and health, and alternative risk transfer solutions. Through its 
broad product and geographic diversifi cation, its excellent execution capabilities, and its local 
presence in most major markets, the Company is able to respond quickly to market needs, 
and capitalize on business opportunities virtually anywhere in the world. Today, the Company 
has more than 900 employees and does business in 150 countries around the world.

The Company writes business through its wholly owned subsidiaries Partner Reinsurance 
Company Ltd. (Partner Reinsurance), PartnerRe SA, and Partner Reinsurance Company 
of the U.S. The Company reports on three operating segments: Non-Life, which comprises 
its traditional property and casualty business in the U.S. (U.S. P&C sub-segment) and the 
rest of the world (Global (Non-U.S.) P&C sub-segment) and its signifi cant specialty lines 
business (Worldwide Specialty sub-segment); Life; and Alternative Risk Transfer (ART). Each 
segment has its own business units, which are aligned either by market, line of business, or 
client buying patterns.

The Company generates its revenue primarily from premiums. Premium rates and terms 
and conditions vary by line of business depending on market conditions. Pricing cycles are 
driven by supply and demand, and the amount of capital in the industry. The reinsurance 
business is also infl uenced by several other factors including variations in interest rates and 
fi nancial markets, changes in legal, regulatory and judicial environments, loss trends, infl ation 
and general economic conditions. Throughout the late 1990s, the industry’s operating 
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profi tability and cash fl ows declined as a result of declining prices, a deterioration in terms 
and conditions and increasing loss costs. These negative trends were, however, offset by 
high investment returns that led to continued growth in capital. Premium rates began to 
increase in 2001, when the large loss events of that year, including the September 11 
tragedy and the Enron bankruptcy, in addition to steep declines in interest rates and equity 
values, added to the pressure for improvements in pricing and underwriting conditions. In 
January 2002 through the middle of 2003, the Company experienced the strongest renewal 
seasons in over fi ve years.

In the second half of 2003, the Company began to see a fl attening in the rate of 
improvements in the terms and conditions of the most profi table lines and a slower rate 
of improvement in those lines that had not yet reached their peak in terms of profi tability. 
From the middle of 2003 to the end of 2004, this resulted in a slower growth rate in pricing, 
although there was good pricing discipline in the industry.

During 2005, pricing was generally fl at to down, except for those lines specifi cally affected 
by large losses in 2004. This led to a reduction in premiums written by the Company in 
2005. However, the year eventually developed into the worst year in the history of the 
industry in terms of catastrophe losses, with hurricane Katrina, which devastated the Gulf 
Coast in late August, being the largest insured event ever. The catastrophic events of 
2005, which included two other signifi cant Atlantic hurricanes, Rita and Wilma, as well as 
a signifi cant winterstorm and a fl ood in Europe, came on the back of an unusually active 
Atlantic hurricane season in 2004. Consequently, during the January 1, 2006 renewals, the 
Company observed strong pricing increases in those lines and geographies that incurred 
the largest losses in 2005, including catastrophe covers in the southeastern U.S. and in the 
U.S. property and energy lines. Pricing in other lines was generally stable. The Company 
experienced a generally healthy reinsurance market at January 1, 2006, and while results 
were varied by line and geographic market, the Company maintained profi tability on 
business renewed. Overall, there was a signifi cant increase in the amount of risk that was 
retained by cedants, as well as a trend by cedants to restructure quota share coverages into 
excess of loss treaties, thereby reducing the overall amount of premiums in the reinsurance 
marketplace. Nevertheless, the Company wrote a considerable amount of new business. 
The Company has not changed its strategy or approach to business during the changes 
in market conditions. The Company continues to be opportunistic in writing business in its 
property, casualty and specialty lines, while maintaining balance and diversifi cation in its 
overall portfolio and maintaining its focus on growth in its Life and ART business segments.

A key challenge facing the Company is to successfully manage through the less profi table 
portion of the reinsurance cycle. The Company is confi dent in its long-term strategy, and 
believes that by closely monitoring the progression of each line of business, being selective 
in the business that it writes, and maintaining the diversifi cation and balance of its portfolio, 
it will continue to optimize returns. Individual lines of business and markets have their own 
unique characteristics and are at different stages of the reinsurance pricing cycle at any 
given point in time. Management believes it has achieved appropriate portfolio diversifi cation 
by product, geography, line and type of business, length of tail, and distribution channel, and 
that this diversifi cation, in addition to the fi nancial strength of the Company, and its strong 
global franchise, will help to mitigate cyclical declines in underwriting profi tability.

The Company also generates revenue from its substantial and high quality investment 
portfolio. The Company follows prudent investment guidelines through a strategy that seeks 
to maximize returns while managing investment risk in line with the Company’s overall 
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objectives of earnings stability and long-term book value growth. Liability funds are used 
to support the Company’s net reinsurance liabilities, defi ned as the Company’s reinsurance 
liabilities net of reinsurance assets, and are matched in size, currency and duration with 
existing liabilities in the Company’s underwriting portfolio. The Company invests the liability 
funds in high-quality fi xed income securities with the primary objective of preserving liquidity 
and protecting capital. Capital funds are invested to achieve total returns that enhance growth 
in shareholders’ equity and are invested in investment-grade and below investment-grade 
fi xed income securities and equity instruments. The Company is mindful of achieving the right 
balance between current investment income and total returns (that include price appreciation) 
in changing market conditions. The Company regularly reviews the allocation of investments 
to asset classes within its investment portfolio and reallocates investments to those asset 
classes the Company anticipates will outperform in the near future, subject to limits and 
guidelines. The Company may also lengthen or shorten the duration of its fi xed income 
portfolio in anticipation of changes in interest rates, or increase or decrease the amount of 
credit risk it assumes, depending on credit spreads and anticipated economic conditions.

In addition to revenues generated from its underwriting operations and investment activities, 
the Company’s profi tability is signifi cantly affected by the level of its losses and loss 
expenses incurred. The Company recognizes losses and loss expenses on the basis of 
actual and expected claims on business written. The Company’s non-life net reserve position 
at December 31, 2005 was $6.6 billion. Management believes that it follows prudent 
reserving policies in pursuit of a strong fi nancial position. A key challenge for the Company 
consists of estimating loss reserves accurately for each line of business, which is critical to 
accurately determine the profi tability of each line and allocate the optimal amount of capital 
to each line. The risk for the Company consists in allocating too much of its capital to one 
or more lines of business that are less profi table than anticipated, and not enough capital 
to those lines of business that eventually prove to be more profi table. Another key success 
factor lies in achieving proper diversifi cation in the book of business, such that the Company 
achieves a more balanced return over time.

Key Financial Measures 
In addition to the Consolidated Balance Sheets and Consolidated Statement of Operations 
and Comprehensive Income, Management uses four key fi nancial measures to evaluate 
its underwriting performance as well as the overall growth in value generated for the 
Company’s common shareholders.

Book Value per Share
Management uses book value growth as a prime measure of the value the Company 
is generating for its common shareholders, as Management believes that growth in the 
Company’s book value ultimately translates into growth of the Company’s stock price. Book 
value per share is calculated using common shareholders’ equity divided by the number of 
fully diluted shares outstanding. Since December 31, 2001, the Company has generated a 
compound annual growth rate in book value per share in excess of 11%, including 2005 
when the Company’s book value per share declined by 12.6% as a result of the signifi cant 
catastrophic events of the year. Book value is impacted by the Company’s net income and 
external factors such as interest rates, which can drive changes in unrealized gains or losses 
on its investment portfolio.
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Dividend policy
Management considers its dividend policy an integral part of the value creation process for 
the Company’s common shareholders, as growth in common shareholder value is comprised 
of growth in both the book value per share as well as dividends paid. Management reviews 
the Company’s dividend policy regularly with the Board of Directors and the Board has 
increased the annual dividend each year since the Company’s inception.

ROE
Management uses operating return on beginning shareholders’ equity (ROE), a measure 
of profi tability that focuses on the return to common shareholders. It is calculated using 
net operating (loss) earnings available to common shareholders (net (loss) income less 
after-tax net realized gains (losses) on investments and preferred share dividends) divided 
by beginning common shareholders’ equity (shareholders’ equity less the liquidation value 
of preferred shares). Management has set a minimum 13% ROE target over the reinsur-
ance cycle, which Management believes provides an attractive return to shareholders. Each 
business unit and support department throughout the Company is focused on seeking to 
ensure that the Company meets the 13% return objective. This means that most economic 
decisions, including capital allocation and underwriting pricing decisions, incorporate an ROE 
impact analysis. For the purpose of this analysis, an appropriate amount of capital (equity) is 
allocated to each transaction for determining the transaction’s ROE. Subject to an adequate 
return for the risk level as well as other factors, such as the contribution of each risk to the 
overall risk level and risk diversifi cation, capital is allocated to the transactions generating 
the highest ROE. Management’s challenge consists of (i) allocating an appropriate amount 
of capital to each transaction based on the incremental risk created by the transaction,
(ii) properly estimating the Company’s overall risk level and the impact of each transaction to 
the overall risk level, and (iii) assessing the diversifi cation benefi t, if any, of each transaction. 
The risk for the Company lies in mis-estimating any one of these factors, which are critical 
in calculating a meaningful ROE, and entering into transactions that do contribute to the 
Company’s 13% ROE objective.

Combined Ratio
The combined ratio is used industry-wide as a measure of underwriting profi tability in the 
Non-life business. The combined ratio is the sum of the technical ratio (losses and loss 
expenses and acquisition costs divided by net premiums earned) and the other operating 
expense ratio (other operating expenses divided by net premiums earned). A combined 
ratio under 100% indicates underwriting profi tability, as the total losses and loss expenses, 
acquisition costs and other operating expenses are less than the premiums earned on that 
business. Since 2002, the Company has had three years of underwriting profi tability refl ected 
in combined ratios of less than 100% for its Non-life segment. In 2005, the Company 
recorded a net underwriting loss as a result of signifi cant catastrophic events during the year 
and this is refl ected in the Company’s Non-life combined ratio of 115.9%. The key challenge 
for maintaining a profi table combined ratio consists of (i) focusing on underwriting profi table 
business even in the weaker part of the reinsurance cycle, as opposed to growing the book 
of business at the cost of profi tability, (ii) diversifying the portfolio, to achieve a good balance 
of business, with the expectation that underwriting losses in certain lines or markets may 
potentially be offset by underwriting profi ts in other lines and markets, and (iii) maintaining 
control over expenses.



PartnerRe Ltd.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 
Results of Operation

36 PartnerRe
Annual Report 2005

Other Key Issues of Management 
Enterprise Culture 
Management is focused on ensuring that the structure and culture of the organization 
promote intelligent, prudent, transparent and ethical decision-making. Management believes 
that a sound enterprise culture starts with the tone at the top. The Executive Management 
holds regular company-wide information sessions to present and review Management’s 
latest decisions, whether operational, fi nancial or structural, as well as the fi nancial results 
for the Company. Employees are encouraged to address questions related to the Company’s 
results, strategy or Management decisions, either anonymously or otherwise to Management 
so that they can be answered during these information sessions. Management believes that 
these sessions provide a consistent message to all employees about the Company’s value 
of transparency. Management also strives to promote a work environment that (i) aligns the 
skill set of individuals with challenges encountered by the Company, (ii) includes segregation 
of duties to ensure objectivity in decision making, and (iii) provides a compensation structure 
that encourages and rewards intelligent and ethical behavior. To that effect, the Company 
has a written Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and provides employees with a 
direct communication channel to the Audit Committee in the event they become aware of 
questionable behavior of Management or anyone else. Finally, Management believes that 
building a sound control environment, including a strong internal audit function, helps ensure 
that behaviors are consistent with the Company’s cultural values.

Risk Management 
A key challenge in the reinsurance industry is to create economic value though the 
intelligent assumption of reinsurance and investment risk, on the one hand, but also to limit 
or mitigate those risks that can destroy tangible as well as intangible value. Management 
takes an integrated view of risk management, and the Company’s risk management 
framework encompasses strategic risks, reinsurance risks, and operational risks. The 
Company believes that it is not desirable to manage any of these risks in isolation. There are 
many interrelationships and correlations between risks and, therefore, each risk is viewed 
in the context of the entire Company. The organizational structure at PartnerRe is designed 
with a signifi cant emphasis on the effective and effi cient management of the Company’s 
risks. Strategic risks and key risk limits are the responsibility of the Executive Management 
and the Board of Directors (Board). The Company’s assumed risks are managed by 
individual business units, subject to the limits and policies established by the Executive 
Management and the Board. Operational risks are managed by designated functions within 
the organization. Various controls and monitoring processes throughout the organization 
are designed to ensure that Management and the Board have a good understanding of the 
Company’s risks and related mitigation strategies.

Capital Adequacy 
A key challenge for Management is to maintain an appropriate level of capital. 
Management’s fi rst priority is to hold suffi cient capital to meet all of the Company’s 
obligations to cedants, meet regulatory requirements, and support its position as one of 
the stronger reinsurers in the industry. Holding an excessive amount of capital, however, 
will reduce the Company’s ROE. Consequently, Management closely monitors its capital 
needs and capital level throughout the cycle, and actively takes steps to increase or 
decrease the Company’s capital in order to achieve the proper balance of fi nancial strength 
and shareholder returns. Capital management is achieved by either deploying capital to 
fund attractive business opportunities, or in times of excess capital, returning capital to 
shareholders by way of share repurchases and dividends.
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Liquidity and Cash Flows 
The Company aims to be a reliable and fi nancially secure partner to its cedants. This means 
that the Company must maintain suffi cient liquidity at all times so that it can support cedants 
by settling claims quickly. The Company generates cash fl ows primarily from its underwriting 
and investment operations. Management believes that a profi table, well-run reinsurance 
organization will generate suffi cient cash from premium receipts to pay claims, acquisition 
costs and operating expenses in most years. To the extent that underwriting cash fl ows are 
not suffi cient to cover operating outfl ows in any year, the Company will utilize cash fl ows 
generated from investments and may ultimately liquidate assets from its investment portfolio. 
Management ensures that its liquidity requirements are supported by maintaining a high-
quality, well-balanced and liquid portfolio and by matching the duration of its investment 
portfolio with that of its net reinsurance liabilities. For the past three years, the Company has 
generated over $1 billion per year in operating cash fl ows from both its underwriting and 
investment operations. In 2006, the Company expects there will be pressure on cash fl ows 
as a result of the signifi cant expected claims payouts from the 2005 catastrophic events. 
Notwithstanding this, the Company expects to continue to generate positive operating cash 
fl ows in 2006. Management also maintains credit facilities with banks that would procure 
effi cient access to cash in the event of an unforeseen cash requirement.

Critical Accounting Policies 
The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP). The preparation 
of fi nancial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires Management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at 
the date of the fi nancial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. The following presents a discussion of those accounting 
policies that Management believes are the most critical to its operations and require the 
most diffi cult, subjective and complex judgment. If actual events differ signifi cantly from 
the underlying assumptions and estimates used by Management, there could be material 
adjustments to prior estimates that could potentially adversely affect the Company’s results 
of operations, fi nancial condition and liquidity. These critical accounting policies should 
be read in conjunction with the Company’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, 
including Note 2, Signifi cant Accounting Policies, for a full understanding of the Company’s 
accounting policies.

Losses and Loss Expenses and Life Policy Benefits 
Because a signifi cant amount of time can lapse between the assumption of risk, occurrence 
of a loss event, the reporting of the event to an insurance company (the primary company 
or the cedant), the subsequent reporting to the reinsurance company (the reinsurer) and 
the ultimate payment of the claim on the loss event by the reinsurer, the Company’s liability 
for unpaid losses and loss expenses (loss reserves) is based largely upon estimates. The 
Company categorizes loss reserves into three types of reserves: reported outstanding loss 
reserves (case reserves), additional case reserves (ACRs) and incurred but not reported 
(IBNR) reserves. Case reserves represent unpaid losses reported by the Company’s cedants 
and recorded by the Company. ACRs are established for particular circumstances where, 
on the basis of individual loss reports, the Company estimates that the particular loss or 
collection of losses covered by a treaty may be greater than those advised by the cedant. 
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IBNR reserves represent a provision for claims that have been incurred but not yet reported 
to the Company, as well as future loss development on losses already reported, in excess of 
the case reserves and ACRs. Unlike case reserves and ACRs, IBNR reserves are generally 
calculated in the aggregate for each line of business and they cannot usually be identifi ed 
as reserves for a particular loss or treaty. The Company updates its estimates for each of the 
aforementioned categories on a quarterly basis using information received from its cedants. 
The Company also estimates the future unallocated loss adjustment expenses associated 
with the loss reserves (ULAE) and these form part of the Company’s loss adjustment 
expense reserves. The Company’s Non-life loss reserves for each category and sub-
segment are reported in the table included later in this section.

The amount of time that elapses before a claim is reported to the cedant and then 
subsequently reported to the reinsurer is commonly referred to in the industry as the 
reporting tail. Lines of business for which claims are reported quickly are commonly referred 
to as short-tail lines; and lines of business for which a longer period of time elapses before 
claims are reported to the reinsurer are commonly referred to as long-tail lines. In general, 
for reinsurance, the time lags are longer than for primary business due to the delay that 
occurs between the cedant becoming aware of a loss and reporting the information to 
its reinsurer(s). The delay varies by reinsurance market (country of cedant), type of treaty, 
whether losses are paid by the cedant and the size of the loss. The delay could vary from a 
few weeks to a year or sometimes longer. For both short and long-tail lines, the Company’s 
objective is to estimate ultimate losses and loss expenses. Total loss reserves are then 
calculated by subtracting losses paid. Similarly, IBNR reserves are calculated by subtraction 
of case reserves and ACRs from total loss reserves.

The Company analyzes its ultimate losses and loss expenses after consideration of the 
loss experience of various reserving cells. The losses on each treaty for every underwriting 
year are assigned to a reserving cell. An underwriting year is the year during which the 
reinsurance treaty was entered into as opposed to the year in which the loss occurred 
(accident year), or the calendar year for which fi nancial results are reported. The reserving 
cells are selected in order to ensure that the underlying treaties have homogeneous loss 
development characteristics (e.g. reporting tail) but are large enough to make estimation 
of trends credible. The selection of reserving cells is reviewed annually and changes over 
time as the business of the Company evolves. For each reserving cell, the Company’s 
estimates of loss reserves are reached after a review of the results of several commonly 
accepted actuarial projection methodologies. In selecting its best estimate, the Company 
considers the appropriateness of each methodology to the individual circumstances of 
the cell and underwriting year for which the projection is made. The methodologies that 
the Company employs include, but may not be limited to, paid loss development methods, 
incurred loss development methods, paid Borhuetter Ferguson (B-F) methods, incurred B-F 
methods, loss ratio methods and Bektander methods. In addition, the Company uses other 
methodologies to estimate liabilities for specifi c types of claims. For example, internal and 
vendor catastrophe models are typically used in the estimation of loss and loss expenses at 
the early stages of catastrophe losses before loss information is reported to the reinsurer. In 
the case of asbestos and environmental claims, the Company has established reserves for 
future loss and allocated loss expenses based on the results of periodic actuarial studies, 
which consider the underlying exposures of the Company’s cedants.
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The reserve methodologies employed by the Company are dependent on data that the 
Company collects. This data consists primarily of loss amounts reported by the Company’s 
cedants, loss payments made by the Company’s cedants, and premiums written and earned 
reported by the cedants or estimated by the Company. The actuarial methods used by the 
Company to project its liabilities recorded today but that will be paid in the future (future 
liabilities) do not generally include methodologies that are dependent on claim counts 
reported, claim counts settled or claim counts open because, due to the nature of the 
Company’s business, this information is not routinely provided by the cedants for every 
treaty. Consequently, actuarial methods relying on this information cannot be used by the 
Company to estimate loss reserves.

The Company examines loss development trends by underwriting year to determine various 
assumptions that are required as inputs in the actuarial methodologies it employs. This 
typically involves the analysis of historical loss development trends by reserving cell and by 
underwriting year, and the calculation of long-term averages. In addition, the Company utilizes 
external or internal benchmark sources of information for the reserving cells for which the 
Company does not have suffi cient loss development data to calculate credible trends.

Several underlying assumptions are used in the construction of average trends and their 
subsequent use in the actuarial methodologies we employ. The validity of these underlying 
assumptions is reviewed periodically and if appropriate, modifi cations are made in the 
selection of average trends or other reserving inputs to refl ect deviations from the underlying 
assumptions. Critical underlying assumptions are:

i.  the cedant’s business practices will proceed as in the past with no material changes 
either in submission of accounts or cash fl ows;

ii.  any internal delays in processing accounts received by the cedant are not materially 
different from that experienced historically, and hence the implicit reserving allowance 
made in loss reserves through our methods continues to be appropriate;

iii.  case reserve reporting practices, particularly the methodologies used to establish and 
report case reserves, are unchanged from historical practices;

iv.  the Company’s internal claim practices, particularly the level and extent of use of ACRs 
are unchanged;

v.  historical levels of claim infl ation can be projected into the future and will have no 
material effect on either the acceleration or deceleration of claim reporting and payment 
patterns;

vi.  the selection of reserving cells results in homogeneous and credible future expectations 
for all business in the cell and any changes in underlying treaty terms are either 
refl ected in cell selection or explicitly allowed in the selection of trends;

vii.  in cases where benchmarks are used, they are derived from the experience of similar 
business; and 

viii.  the Company can form a credible initial expectation of the ultimate loss ratio of recent 
underwriting years through a review of pricing information supplemented by qualitative 
information on market events.

In general, the estimates of loss reserves recorded for short-tail business are subject to less 
volatility than those for long-tail lines. Carried loss reserves for the U.S. P&C sub-segment 
are considered to be predominantly long-tail due to the signifi cant volume of U.S. casualty 
business written in this sub-segment. The casualty line comprised 69% of the net premiums 
written for this sub-segment, or 16% of the Company’s total net premiums written in 2005. 
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The remaining business within this sub-segment, motor and property, is considered to be 
short-tail. Within the Global (Non-U.S.) P&C sub-segment, the Company considers both 
its casualty business as well as its non-proportional motor business to be long-tail. These 
two lines represented 24% of the net premiums written in the Global (Non-U.S.) P&C 
sub-segment, or 6% of the Company’s total net premiums written in 2005. Management 
considers the short-tail lines within the Global (Non-U.S.) P&C sub-segment to be property 
and proportional motor. The Worldwide Specialty sub-segment is primarily comprised of lines 
of business that are thought to be either short or medium-tail. The short-tail lines consist of 
agriculture, catastrophe, energy, credit/surety and specialty property and account for 57% of 
the net premiums written in this sub-segment, or 24% of the Company’s total net premiums 
written in 2005. Aviation/space, engineering and marine are considered by the Company to 
have a medium-tail and represent 33% of this sub-segment’s 2005 net premiums written, 
or 14% of the Company’s total net premiums written in 2005. Specialty casualty business is 
considered to be long-tail and represents 9% of net premiums written in this sub-segment, 
or 4% of the Company’s total net premiums written in 2005.

Within the Company’s U.S. P&C sub-segment, the Company reported net adverse loss 
development for prior accident years in 2005, 2004 and 2003. This primarily affected 
the casualty line in 2005 and 2003 and the motor line in 2004. The net adverse loss 
development in the casualty line in 2005 was primarily due to a revaluation of the loss 
development assumptions used by the Company to estimate future liabilities in a number 
of recent underwriting years on a limited number of treaties, and more particularly in the 
specialty casualty line. During 2004, the Company observed an industry-wide deterioration 
of loss development for prior accident years in the motor line, particularly on the non-
proportional treaties. For the motor and casualty lines of business, the Company received 
loss information from cedants for prior accident years that included no signifi cant losses 
but a series of attritional losses. Attritional losses or reductions are losses or reductions that 
may not be signifi cant on an individual basis, but are monitored on an aggregated basis by 
the Company to identify trends that may be meaningful from a reserving standpoint. Upon 
consideration of this new information received during 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company 
revised the loss development assumptions it uses in performing its actuarial analysis and 
increased its expected ultimate loss ratios, which had the effect of increasing loss reserves 
for prior accident years by $48 million, $30 million and $88 million, respectively, during 2005, 
2004 and 2003. In particular, the Company revised the historical loss patterns and expected 
loss ratios that it uses in its actuarial analysis of loss reserves for the affected losses.

For the Global (Non-U.S.) P&C sub-segment, the Company reported net favorable loss 
development for prior accident years in 2005 and 2003, and net adverse loss development 
in 2004. During 2005, the Company observed an improvement in the loss experience in 
the property line. Losses reported by cedants during 2005 regarding prior accident years 
were lower than expected, which led the Company to decrease its expected ultimate loss 
ratios, which had the effect of decreasing the Company’s loss estimates for prior years by 
$67 million. During 2004, the Company observed a deterioration in the loss experience in 
the motor and casualty lines. Losses reported by cedants regarding prior accident years 
were higher than expected, which led the Company to increase its expected ultimate loss 
ratios, which had the effect of increasing loss reserves by $24 million. During 2003, the 
Company reported $11 million of net favorable loss development. Losses reported by 
cedants during 2005, 2004 and 2003 regarding prior accident years included no signifi cant 
loss or loss reductions but a series of attritional losses or loss reductions.
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For the Worldwide Specialty sub-segment, losses reported by cedants during 2005, 2004 
and 2003, for prior accident years, were lower than the Company expected would be reported 
during 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. This led the Company to decrease its expected 
ultimate loss ratios for prior year losses in each of these years, which resulted in a decrease 
in the Company’s loss estimates of $212 million, $193 million and $22 million during 2005, 
2004 and 2003, respectively. Losses reported during 2005 and 2004 were lower than 
expected in most lines, while losses reported during 2003 were lower than expected primarily 
in the aviation, credit/surety, engineering/energy and catastrophe lines, partially offset by 
higher than expected development in agriculture, marine and specialty casualty lines. Losses 
reported by cedants during 2005, 2004 and 2003 regarding prior accident years included no 
signifi cant loss reductions but a series of attritional loss reductions.

The following table summarizes the net favorable (adverse) development of loss reserves in 
the Non-life segment (in millions of U.S. dollars):

For the year
ended

December 31,
2005

For the year
ended

December 31,
2004

For the year
ended

December 31,
2003

Prior year net favorable (adverse) loss development:

Non-life segment

 U.S. P&C  $ (48)  $ (30)  $ (88)

 Global (Non-U.S.) P&C  67  (24)  11

 Worldwide Specialty  212  193  22

Total prior year loss development  $ 231  $ 139  $ (55)

The components of the net favorable (adverse) loss development for the years ended 
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 are described in more detail in the discussion of the 
sub-segments that make up the Non-life segment.

Case reserves are reported to the Company by its cedants, while ACRs and IBNR are 
estimated by the Company. The following table shows the gross reserves reported by 
cedants (case reserves), those estimated by the Company (ACRs and IBNR) and the total 
net loss reserves recorded as at December 31, 2005 for each Non-life sub-segment (in 
millions of U.S. dollars):

Case reserves ACRs
IBNR

reserves

Total gross
loss reserves

recorded
Retroceded

loss reserves

Total net loss
reserves
recorded

U.S. P&C  $ 537 $ 85 $ 1,400 $ 2,022 $ (14)  $ 2,008

Global (Non-U.S.) P&C 994 28 1,082 2,104 (46)  2,058

Worldwide Specialty  1,149 408 1,027 2,584 (125)  2,459

Total Non-life  $ 2,680 $ 521 $ 3,509 $ 6,710 $ (185)  $ 6,525

The Company estimates its net loss reserves using single point estimates for each sub-
segment. These loss reserves represent the Company’s best estimate of future losses and 
loss expense amounts. Ranges around these point estimates are developed using stochastic 
simulations and techniques and provide an indication as to the degree of variability of the loss 
reserves. The Company interprets the ranges produced by these techniques as confi dence 
intervals around the best estimates for each sub-segment. However, due to the inherent 
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volatility in the business written by the Company, there can be no guarantee that the fi nal 
settlement of the loss reserves will fall within these ranges. The point estimates recorded 
by the Company and the range of estimates around these point estimates at December 31, 
2005, were as follows for each Non-life sub-segment (in millions of U.S. dollars):

Recorded Point Estimate High Low

Net Non-life loss reserves:

U.S. P&C $ 2,008 $ 2,286 $ 1,625

Global (Non-U.S.) P&C  2,058 2,187 1,794

Worldwide Specialty  2,459 2,515 2,218

It is not appropriate to add together the ranges of each segment in an effort to determine a 
high and low range around the Company’s total Non-life carried loss reserves.

Estimates of ultimate liabilities are contingent on many future events. The eventual outcome 
of these events may be different from the assumptions underlying the reserve estimates. 
Loss reserves are established to cover the Company’s estimated liability for the payment 
of all losses and loss expenses incurred with respect to premiums earned on the contracts 
that it writes. Loss reserves do not represent an exact calculation of liability. Loss reserves 
are estimates involving actuarial and statistical projections at a given time to refl ect the 
Company’s expectations of the costs of the ultimate settlement and administration of claims. 
In the event that the business environment and social trends diverge from historical trends, 
the Company may have to adjust its loss reserves to amounts falling signifi cantly outside its 
current estimate range. Management believes that the recorded loss reserves represent its 
best estimate of future liabilities based on information available as of December 31, 2005. 
The estimates are continually reviewed and the ultimate liability may be in excess of, or 
less than, the amounts provided, for which any adjustments will be refl ected in the period in 
which the need for an adjustment is determined.

Liabilities for policy benefi ts for ordinary life and accident and health policies have been 
established based upon information reported by cedants supplemented by the Company’s 
actuarial estimates of mortality, critical illness, persistency and future investment income, 
with appropriate provision to refl ect uncertainty. Future policy benefi t reserves for annuity 
and universal life products are carried at their accumulated values. Reserves for policy claims 
and benefi ts include both mortality and critical illness claims in the process of settlement 
and claims that are assumed to have been incurred but not yet reported. Interest rate 
assumptions used to estimate liabilities for policy benefi ts for life and annuity contracts 
ranged from 1.5% to 5.5%. Actual experience in a particular period may vary from expected 
experience and, consequently, may affect the Company’s results in future periods.

Included in the business that is considered to have a long reporting tail is the Company’s 
exposure to asbestos and environmental claims. The Company’s net reserve for unpaid 
losses and loss expenses as of December 31, 2005 included $97 million that represents 
an estimate of its net ultimate liability for asbestos and environmental claims. The majority 
of this loss and loss expense reserve relates to U.S. casualty exposures arising from 
business written by PartnerRe SA and PartnerRe U.S. (See Note 4 to Consolidated 
Financial Statements.) Ultimate values for such claims cannot be estimated using traditional 
reserving techniques and there are signifi cant uncertainties in estimating the amount of 
the Company’s potential losses for these claims. In view of the changes in the legal and 
tort environment that affect the development of such claims, the uncertainties inherent in 
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valuing asbestos and environmental claims are not likely to be resolved in the near future. 
There can be no assurance that the loss reserves established by the Company will not be 
adversely affected by the development of other latent exposures, and further, there can 
be no assurance that the loss reserves established by the Company will be adequate. The 
Company does, however, actively evaluate potential exposure to asbestos and environmental 
claims and establishes additional loss reserves as appropriate. The Company believes that it 
has made a reasonable provision for these exposures and is unaware of any specifi c issues 
that would materially affect its loss and loss expense estimates.

Premiums 
Management must also make judgments about the ultimate premiums written and 
earned by the Company. Reported premiums written and earned are based upon reports 
received from cedants, supplemented by the Company’s own estimates of premiums 
written for which ceding company reports have not been received. The Company derives 
its own estimates based on discussions and correspondence with its brokers and cedants 
during the negotiation of the treaty and over the treaty risk period. The determination of 
estimates requires a review of the Company’s experience with cedants, familiarity with each 
geographic market, a thorough understanding of the individual characteristics of each line of 
business and the ability to project the impact of current economic indicators on the volume 
of business written and ceded by the Company’s cedants. Premium estimates are updated 
when new information is received. Differences between such estimates and actual amounts 
are recorded in the period in which estimates are changed or the actual amounts are 
determined. Approximately 44% of the Company’s reported net premiums written for 2005 
are based upon such estimates.

Deferred Acquisition Costs 
Acquisition costs, consisting of brokerage, commissions, and excise taxes, which vary directly 
with, and are primarily related to, the acquisition and renewal of reinsurance treaties, are 
capitalized and charged to expense as the related premium revenue is recognized. The 
Company is required under U.S. GAAP to evaluate the recoverability of deferred acquisition 
costs and immediately expense amounts estimated to be unrecoverable. A number of 
estimates, such as anticipated losses and loss expenses and the related premiums, other 
costs and investment income, need to be projected and considered by Management in 
determining the recoverability of deferred acquisition costs.

Other-than-Temporary Impairment of Investments 
The Company regularly evaluates the fair value of its investments available for sale to 
determine whether a decline in fair value below the amortized cost basis (original cost basis 
for equities) is other-than-temporary. If the decline in fair value is judged to be other-than-
temporary, the cost of the individual security is written down to fair value as its new cost 
basis, and the amount of the write-down is included as a realized investment loss in the 
Consolidated Statements of Operations, which reduces net income in the period in which the 
determination of other-than-temporary impairment is made. In contrast, temporary losses for 
available for sale securities are recorded as unrealized investment losses, which do not impact 
net income, but reduce accumulated other comprehensive income, except for those related to 
trading securities, which are recorded immediately as realized losses in net income.

To determine whether securities available for sale with unrealized investment losses are 
impaired, the Company must, for each specifi c issuer or security, evaluate whether events 
have occurred that are likely to prevent the Company from recovering its investment in the 
security. In the Company’s determination of other-than-temporary impairment, the Company 
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reviews and evaluates the issuer’s overall fi nancial condition, the issuer’s credit and fi nancial 
strength ratings, general market conditions in the industry or geographic region in which the 
issuer operates, general economic and fi nancial market conditions, the length of time for 
which the fair value of an issuer’s securities remains below cost and other factors that may 
raise doubt about the issuer’s ability to continue as a going concern. As of December 31, 
2005, the Company held available for sale securities that carried gross unrealized losses 
of $81 million, including $22 million on securities that carried unrealized losses for more 
than twelve continuous months. Most unrealized losses were caused by increases in interest 
rates since the Company’s purchase of the investments. In Management’s judgment, the 
Company had no signifi cant unrealized losses caused by an issuer’s specifi c corporate risk 
or due to industry or geographic risk, for which an other-than-temporary impairment charge 
has not been taken.

Income Taxes 
The Company had net deferred tax assets of $105 million arising primarily from net 
operating loss carryforwards that it can use to offset future taxable income. Realization of 
deferred tax assets depends on generating suffi cient taxable income generally within a 
limited number of future periods. In establishing the appropriate value of these tax assets, 
Management has developed income projections based on what it perceives the trends 
are in reinsurance pricing, loss development and interest rates to evaluate the Company’s 
ability to generate suffi cient taxable income to utilize the net operating loss carryforwards 
in each taxable jurisdiction prior to the loss carryforward expiration dates. In the event that 
the Company is unable to realize a deferred tax asset, for example with the expiration of 
an unutilized net operating loss carryforward, net income would be adversely affected to 
the extent a valuation allowance has not been established. As of December 31, 2005, the 
Company had no signifi cant valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets based upon 
Management’s assessment that it is more likely than not that all of the deferred tax assets 
will be realized in the applicable jurisdictions.

Goodwill 
On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (SFAS 142). SFAS 142 requires that the 
Company make an annual assessment as to whether the value of the Company’s goodwill 
asset is impaired. Based upon the Company’s assessment at the reporting unit level, there 
was no impairment of its goodwill asset of $430 million as of December 31, 2005. In 
making an assessment of the value of its goodwill, the Company uses both market based 
and non-market based valuations. Assumptions underlying these valuations include an 
analysis of the Company’s stock price relative to both its book value and its net income 
in addition to forecasts of future cash fl ows and future profi ts. Signifi cant changes in the 
data underlying these assumptions could result in an assessment of impairment of the 
Company’s goodwill asset. In addition, if the current economic environment and/or the 
Company’s fi nancial performance were to deteriorate signifi cantly, this could lead to an 
impairment of goodwill, the write-off of which would be recorded in net income in the period 
such deterioration occurred.

Valuation of Certain Derivative Financial Instruments 
As a part of its ART operations, the Company utilizes non-traded derivatives. The 
changes in fair value of these derivatives are recorded in the Consolidated Statements 
of Operations and are included in the determination of net income in the period in which 
they are recorded. The Company uses internal valuation models to estimate the fair value 
of these derivatives and develops assumptions that require signifi cant judgment, such as 
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the timing of future cash fl ows of reference securities, credit spreads and general levels 
of interest rates. For weather derivatives, the Company develops assumptions for weather 
measurements as of the valuation date of the derivative and for probable future weather 
observations based on statistical analysis of historical data. Signifi cant changes in the 
data underlying these assumptions could result in a signifi cantly different valuation of the 
derivatives and signifi cant adjustments to net income in the period in which the Company 
makes the adjustment.

Results of Operations 
Overview 
The Company measures its performance in several ways. Among the performance measures 
accepted under U.S. GAAP is diluted net income per share, a measure that focuses on the 
return provided to the Company’s common shareholders. Diluted net income per share is 
obtained by dividing net income available to common shareholders by the weighted average 
number of common and common share equivalents outstanding. As the effect of dilutive 
securities would have been antidilutive in 2005 due to the Company’s reported net loss, the 
fully diluted per share fi gure for the year ended December 31, 2005 was compiled using 
the basic weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Net income available to 
common shareholders is defi ned as net income less preferred share dividends.

While the Company’s results for 2005 and 2004 included losses from signifi cant 
catastrophic events, results for 2003 included no signifi cant catastrophic loss. To the extent 
that losses related to large catastrophic events affect the comparison of the Company’s 
results from year to year, their impact has been quantifi ed and discussed in each of the 
relevant sections.

Net income or loss, preferred dividends, net income or loss available to common 
shareholders and diluted net income or loss per share for the years ended December 31, 
2005, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars, except per share data):

For the 
year ended 

December 31, 2005

% Change 
2005 over 

2004

For the 
year ended 

December 31, 2004

% Change 
2004 over 

2003

For the 
year ended 

December 31, 2003

Net (loss) income  $ (51) NM%  $ 492 5%  $ 468

Less: Preferred dividends 35 61 21 (27) 30

Net (loss) income available to common shareholders  $ (86) NM  $ 471 7  $ 438

Diluted net (loss) income per share  $ (1.56) NM  $ 8.71 7  $ 8.13

NM: not meaningful 

2005 over 2004 
The decrease in net income, net income available to common shareholders and diluted net 
income per share in 2005 compared to 2004 was primarily attributable to an unprecedented 
amount of large catastrophic losses for the Company and the industry during 2005. While 
the results for 2004 included the impact of four Atlantic hurricanes and the Indian Ocean 
tsunami, totaling $176 million, net of reinstatement and additional premiums, the amount 
of large catastrophic losses increased by $724 million in 2005 with European winterstorm 
Erwin, the Central European fl oods, and hurricane Katrina, Rita and Wilma (jointly referred 
to as the large 2005 catastrophic loss events), totaling $900 million, net of reinstatement 
premiums and additional premiums.
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The large catastrophic losses, acquisition costs, reinstatement and additional premiums and 
their combined impact on the Company’s pre-tax net income for 2005 and 2004 were as 
follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

2005 Calendar Year 

Named catastrophic loss

Net losses 
and loss 

expenses
Acquisition 

costs

Reinstatement 
or additional 

premiums earned

Impact 
on pre-tax 

net income

European winterstorm Erwin  $ (63)  $ —  $ 2 $ (61)
Central European fl oods (66) — — (66)
Hurricane Katrina (1) (563) (2) 54 (511)
Hurricane Rita (89) — 1 (88)
Hurricane Wilma (178) — 4 (174)
Total  $ (959)  $ (2)  $ 61 $ (900)

2004 Calendar Year

Named catastrophic loss

Net losses 
and loss 

expenses
Acquisition 

costs
Reinstatement 

premiums earned

Impact 
on pre-tax 

net income

Atlantic hurricanes  $ (150)  $ —  $ 5 $ (145)

Indian Ocean tsunami (31) — — (31)

Total  $ (181)  $ —  $ 5 $ (176)

The following table refl ects the impact of large catastrophic losses on the Company’s 
segments and sub-segments (in millions of U.S. dollars):

2005 Calendar Year 

Segment or sub-segment

Net losses 
and loss 

expenses
Acquisition 

costs

Reinstatement 
or  additional 

premiums earned

Impact 
on pre-tax 

net income

 U.S. P&C  $ (128)  $ —  $ — $ (128)
 Global (Non-U.S.) P&C (61) — — (61)
 Worldwide Specialty (741) (2) 48 (695)
Non-life segment  $ (930)  $ (2)  $ 48 $ (884)
ART (29) — 13 (16)
Life — — — —
Total  $ (959)  $ (2)  $ 61 $ (900)

2004 Calendar Year

Segment or sub-segment

Net losses 
and loss 

expenses
Acquisition 

costs
Reinstatement  

premiums earned

Impact 
on pre-tax 

net income

 U.S. P&C  $ (49)  $ —  $ — $ (49)

 Global (Non-U.S.) P&C (34) — — (34)

 Worldwide Specialty (85) — 5 (80)

Non-life segment  $ (168)  $ —  $ 5 $ (163)

ART (8) — — (8)

Life (5) — — (5)

Total  $ (181)  $ —  $ 5 $ (176)
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(1)   Uncertainty related to Katrina losses: The Company’s estimated losses resulting 
from hurricane Katrina are subject to an unusual level of uncertainty arising out 
of these losses’ extremely complex and unique causation and related coverage 
issues associated with the attribution of losses to wind or fl ood damage or other 
perils such as fi re, business interruption or riot and civil commotion. For instance, 
many of the Company’s cedants’ underlying policies exclude fl ood damage; 
however, water damage directly related to wind damage may be covered. The 
Company expects that these issues will not be resolved for a considerable period 
of time and may be infl uenced by evolving legal and regulatory developments.

  The Company’s actual losses from hurricane Katrina may exceed the estimated 
losses as a result of, among other things, an increase in current industry insured 
loss estimates, the receipt of additional information from cedants, brokers and 
loss adjusters, the attribution of losses to coverages that, for the purpose of 
the estimates, the Company assumed would not be exposed, in which case the 
fi nancial results could be further materially adversely affected.

The impact of the large 2005 catastrophic loss events on net income, net income available 
to common shareholders and diluted net income per share in 2005 was partially offset by 
higher net realized investment gains, net investment income and other income. These items 
are discussed in the section Review of Net (Loss) Income below.

Preferred share dividends increased in 2005 after the Company issued Series D cumulative 
preferred shares (Series D preferred shares) in the fourth quarter of 2004. In the same 
quarter, the Company settled the purchase contracts associated with its PEPS units in 
exchange for newly issued common shares of the Company and the Company purchased 
and cancelled the Series B cumulative preferred shares (Series B preferred shares) that 
were part of its PEPS units. The increase in preferred share dividends during 2005 is largely 
offset by a decrease in interest expense related to the Series B preferred shares.

2004 over 2003 
Net income, net income available to common shareholders and diluted net income per share 
increased in 2004 compared to 2003 as a result of higher net investment income and net 
realized investment gains, and lower preferred share dividends in 2004. The signifi cant 
positive cash fl ows from operations generated by the Company during 2003 and 2004 
were the main contributors to the increase in net investment income. The increase in net 
realized investment gains did not change the Company’s comprehensive income as it merely 
transferred the gain from accumulated other comprehensive income to net income and 
retained earnings.

Preferred dividends for 2003 included a non-recurring charge of $10 million related to 
the redemption of the Company’s Series A preferred shares and the overlap of preferred 
share dividends on Series A and C preferred shares prior to the redemption of the Series A 
preferred shares in the second quarter of 2003.

Review of Net (Loss) Income 
Management analyzes the Company’s net (loss) income in three parts: underwriting result, 
investment income and other components of net (loss) income. Investment income includes 
interest and dividends, net of investment expenses, generated by the Company’s investment 
portfolio, as well as interest income generated on funds held and certain ART transactions. 
Other components of net (loss) income include net realized investment gains and losses, 
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interest expense, net foreign exchange gains and losses, income tax expense or benefi t, 
interest in earnings of equity investments and distributions related to trust preferred and 
mandatorily redeemable preferred securities.

The components of net (loss) income for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 
2003 were as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

For the 
year ended

December 31, 2005

% Change
2005 over

2004

For the 
year ended

December 31, 2004

% Change
2004 over

2003

For the 
year ended

December 31, 2003

Underwriting result:

 Non-life  $ (497) NM  $ 196 (12)% $ 222

 ART 8 NM (4) NM 4

 Life (33) (31) (48) 3 (47)

 Corporate expenses (51) 21 (42) 38 (30)

Net investment income 365 22 298 14 262

Net realized investment gains 207 76 117 35 87

Interest expense (33) (19) (41) 119 (18)

Net foreign exchange (losses) gains (4) NM 17 40 12

Income tax expense (23) 203 (7) 258 (2)

Interest in earnings of equity investments 10 54 6 NM —

Distributions related to trust preferred and 
 mandatorily redeemable preferred securities — NM — NM (22)

Net (loss) income  $ (51) NM  $ 492 5  $ 468

NM: not meaningful 

Underwriting result is a key measurement that the Company uses to manage and evaluate 
its segments and sub-segments, as it is a primary measure of underlying profi tability for our 
core reinsurance operations, separate from our investment results. The Company believes 
that in order to enhance the understanding of its profi tability, it is useful for investors to 
evaluate the components of income separately and in the aggregate. Underwriting result 
should not be considered as a substitute for net income and does not refl ect the overall 
profi tability of the business, which is also impacted by investment results and other items.

2005 over 2004 
Underwriting result for the Non-life segment decreased by $693 million from a gain of 
$196 million in 2004 to a loss of $497 million in 2005. The decrease was principally 
attributable to an increase in the level of large catastrophic losses of $721 million, net of 
reinstatement premiums, and to a lesser extent to a decrease in the volume of business 
earned and a modest decline in profi tability on the business earned in 2005 totaling 
approximately $71 million. Both years included net favorable development on prior accident 
years as the Company reduced its estimate of losses for certain lines as the at risk period 
for older underwriting years expired and updated information was received from cedants. 
Net favorable development on prior accident years increased by $92 million, from 
$139 million in 2004 to $231 million during 2005. The components of the net favorable 
loss development on prior accident year losses are described in more detail in the discussion 
of individual sub-segments in the next section. Reductions in other operating expenses of 
$9 million and a decrease in other income of $2 million explain the remainder of the 
variance in underwriting result for this segment.
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Underwriting result for the ART segment increased in 2005 despite the higher level of 
large catastrophic losses of $8 million, net of additional premiums. As a result of unusual 
weather patterns in Japan during 2004, the weather line incurred realized and unrealized 
losses on weather derivative instruments during that year. While the weather line returned 
to profi tability in 2005, the structured risk line incurred losses on hurricane Katrina, Rita and 
Wilma, which mitigated the positive impact of the weather and structured fi nance lines.

Underwriting result for the Life segment improved in 2005 for three principal reasons. First, 
the 2004 result included a $5 million charge to reduce deferred acquisition costs on annuity 
treaties retained in the sale of PartnerRe Life Insurance Company of the U.S. Second, 
the 2004 results also included a $5 million loss on the Indian Ocean tsunami. Finally, the 
increase in the Life book of business over the last few years resulted in an increase of 
$4 million in net investment income allocated to this segment.

Corporate expenses increased by $9 million, from $42 million during 2004 to $51 million 
during 2005. The increase resulted primarily from the adoption, on January 1, 2003, of the 
fair value method of accounting for equity-based awards on a prospective basis. The latter 
resulted in a phase-in period during which equity-based compensation increases with each 
new grant until the fi rst grants issued after adoption of the fair value method are vested and 
fully expensed. Equity-based compensation increased by $7 million during 2005. Addition of 
staff in corporate departments and increases in other infrastructure costs were more than 
offset by reductions in bonus accruals of $8 million during 2005.

The Company reported net investment income of $365 million in 2005 compared to 
$298 million in 2004. The increase in investment income is primarily attributable to 
investment of the Company’s signifi cant cash fl ows from operations, which amounted 
to $1,032 million in 2005 and $1,264 million in 2004. In addition, net cash proceeds of 
$549 million from the Company’s capital raises in October 2005 also contributed to the 
growth in net investment income. Changes in average foreign exchange rates contributed 
approximately 1% of the increase as a result of the decline of the U.S. dollar, on average, 
against the euro and other currencies during the year.

Net realized investment gains increased by $90 million, from $117 million during 2004 
to $207 million during 2005, primarily as a result of gains within the Company’s equity 
portfolio. Realized investment gains and losses are generally a function of multiple factors 
with the most signifi cant being the prevailing interest rates and equity market conditions, 
the timing of disposition of fi xed maturities and equity securities, and charges for the 
recognition of other-than-temporary impairments in the Company’s investment portfolio. As 
the Company repositions its investment portfolio to take advantage of market conditions, 
it generates sales of securities that result in the realization of the unrealized market value 
appreciation or depreciation on the securities. The realization of the unrealized market value 
appreciation or depreciation does not change the Company’s shareholders’ equity, as it 
merely transfers the gain or loss from the accumulated other comprehensive income section 
of the balance sheet to net income on the statement of operations and retained earnings on 
the balance sheet.

Interest expense decreased by $8 million in 2005 compared to 2004 as distributions on 
the Series B preferred shares, which amounted to $11 million per year and were presented 
as interest expense, ended in the fourth quarter of 2004. This decrease was partially offset 
by interest expense of $3 million related to the $400 million bank loan received by the 
Company in October 2005.
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The Company hedges a signifi cant portion of its currency risk exposure as discussed 
in the Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. The combined effect 
of the appreciation of the U.S. dollar against the euro (13%), Swiss franc (14%), British 
pound (11%) and other European currencies from December 31, 2004 to December 31, 
2005 as well as the Company’s hedging activities explained the reduction of net foreign 
exchange gains.

The income tax expense increased by $16 million, from $7 million during 2004 to 
$23 million during 2005, primarily as a result of a change in the geography (or tax 
jurisdiction) of pre-tax income. The Company’s income tax expense or benefi t is highly 
dependent on the distribution of the Company’s pre-tax results in each tax jurisdiction. 
The Company’s taxable entities generated a higher pre-tax income and tax expense during 
2005 than 2004, as a signifi cant portion of the large catastrophic losses were incurred by a 
non-taxable entity in 2005. This was partially offset by a reduction, in 2005, in the valuation 
allowance in Switzerland of $15 million. Management concluded that it was appropriate to 
release the valuation allowance as a result of the positive evidence, under SFAS 109, of the 
ability of the Swiss operations to generate signifi cant taxable income during 2005 despite 
an unprecedented level of losses in the industry. The Company also updated, in 2005, its 
in-depth analysis of various tax exposures and, based upon its analysis, tax reserves were 
reduced by $16 million. The 2004 tax expense was net of a tax recovery in the amount of 
$6 million related to the settlement of a tax arbitration in France and a favorable adjustment 
of $6 million, net of valuation allowance, resulting from adjustments to prior year income tax 
returns in Switzerland.

2004 over 2003 
Underwriting result for the Non-life segment decreased 12%, from $222 million in 2003 
to $196 million in 2004. The decrease in the Non-life underwriting result was principally 
attributable to an increase of $18 million in other operating expenses to support the 
Company’s growth and a modestly higher technical ratio that translated into a decrease 
of $5 million in the underwriting result of this segment. Included in the underwriting result 
for the Non-life segment were $163 million of net losses related to the 2004 Atlantic 
hurricanes and Indian Ocean tsunami, partially offset by the strong market conditions as well 
as net favorable development on prior accident year losses of $139 million, as the Company 
reduced its estimate of losses for certain lines as the at risk period for older years expired 
and updated information was received from cedants.

Underwriting result for the Life segment decreased 3%, from a loss of $47 million in 2003 
to a loss of $48 million in 2004. While the Life segment experienced growth during 2004, 
the underwriting loss for 2004 was stable as it included a $5 million charge recognized in 
the fi rst quarter of 2004 to reduce deferred acquisition costs on annuity treaties retained in 
the sale of PartnerRe Life Insurance Company of the U.S., as well as a $5 million loss in the 
fourth quarter of 2004 related to the Indian Ocean tsunami.

The increase in corporate expenses resulted from Management’s effort to enhance the 
Company’s infrastructure to support the growth of the Company’s business and is primarily 
attributable to (i) an increase in staff in corporate departments, such as the actuarial, internal 
audit and tax departments, (ii) higher compliance expenses and (iii) higher equity-based 
compensation expenses as a result of the adoption of SFAS 123 on January 1, 2003.
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The Company reported net investment income of $298 million in 2004 compared to 
$262 million in 2003. The increase in investment income was primarily attributable to 
investment of the Company’s signifi cant cash fl ows from operations, which amounted to 
$1,264 million in 2004 and $1,150 million in 2003, as well as changes in average foreign 
exchange rates as the U.S. dollar weakened during 2004 against the euro and other 
currencies, which contributed approximately 4% to the growth in 2004.

Interest expense increased in 2004 compared to 2003 as a result of the change in 
classifi cation of the Company’s mandatorily redeemable preferred securities in the 
third quarter of 2003, following the adoption of SFAS No. 150 “Accounting for Certain 
Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity” (SFAS 150). The 
statement establishes standards for how an issuer classifi es and measures certain fi nancial 
instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity, and requires that certain 
fi nancial instruments, such as the Company’s mandatorily redeemable preferred securities, 
be classifi ed prospectively as a liability on the balance sheet and the related distributions 
be classifi ed as interest expense on the income statement. The Company has classifi ed 
distributions related to its mandatorily redeemable preferred securities as interest expense 
since July 1, 2003, which distorts the comparison of interest expense and distributions 
related to mandatorily redeemable preferred securities between 2004 and 2003, but does 
not affect its net income or equity for these years.

The increase in net foreign exchange gains in 2004 compared to 2003 resulted primarily 
from a lower revaluation loss related to the Company’s net liabilities denominated in 
certain currencies that were not hedged and that appreciated against the U.S. dollar from 
December 31, 2003 to December 31, 2004.

The income tax expense increased from $2 million in 2003 to $8 million in 2004, primarily 
as a result of a change in the geography (or tax jurisdiction) of pre-tax income. The 2004 tax 
expense was net of a tax recovery in the amount of $6 million related to the settlement of a 
tax arbitration in France and a favorable adjustment of $6 million, net of valuation allowance, 
resulting from adjustments to prior year income tax returns in Switzerland.

The next section provides a detailed discussion and analysis of the Company’s underwriting 
result by segment and sub-segment, investment income, net realized investment gains, operating 
expenses and other income for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.

Results by Segment 
The Company monitors the performance of its underwriting operations in three segments, 
Non-life, ART and Life. The Non-life segment is further divided into three sub-segments, 
U.S. P&C, Global (Non-U.S.) P&C and Worldwide Specialty. Segments and sub-segments 
represent markets that are reasonably homogeneous in terms of geography, client types, 
buying patterns, underlying risk patterns and approach to risk management. See the 
description of the Company’s segments and sub-segments as well as a discussion of how the 
Company measures its segment results in Note 18 to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Segment results are shown net of intercompany transactions. Business reported in the 
Global (Non-U.S.) P&C and Worldwide Specialty sub-segments and the Life segment is, 
to a signifi cant extent, denominated in foreign currencies and is reported in U.S. dollars at 
the weighted average exchange rates for each year. The U.S. dollar has fl uctuated against 
the euro and other currencies during each of the three years presented and this should be 
considered when making year-to-year comparisons.
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Non-life Segment 
U.S. P&C 
The technical result, defi ned as net premiums earned less losses and loss expenses and 
acquisition costs, and the technical ratio, defi ned as the sum of the loss and loss expenses 
and acquisition costs divided by net premiums earned, have been relatively stable in the two 
years preceding 2005. During 2005, the unprecedented level of large catastrophic losses 
has impacted the technical result and ratio for this sub-segment and has distorted year-to-
year comparisons as discussed below. The Company believes the business written in this 
sub-segment in 2004 and 2003 was profi table, notwithstanding the negative technical 
result for these years, once investment income is considered. The U.S. casualty line is 
included in this sub-segment and represented approximately 69%, 65% and 62% of net 
premiums written for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. This line typically tends to have a 
higher loss ratio and lower technical result, due to the long-tail nature of the risks involved. 
Casualty treaties typically provide for investment income on premiums invested over a longer 
period as losses are typically paid later than for other lines. Investment income, however, is 
not considered in the calculation of technical result.

The following table provides the components of the technical result and the corresponding 
ratios for this sub-segment (in millions of U.S. dollars):

2005

% Change
2005 over

2004 2004

% Change
2004 over

2003 2003

Gross premiums written  $ 820 (17)% $ 991 8% $ 920

Net premiums written 819 (17) 990 8 920

Net premiums earned  $ 828 (7)  $ 893 6  $ 843

Losses and loss expenses (764) 9 (699) 8 (645)

Acquisition costs (200) (2) (204) (5) (214)

Technical result (1)  $ (136) >1000  $ (10) (42)  $ (16)

Loss ratio (2) 92.2% 78.2% 76.5%

Acquisition ratio (3) 24.2 22.8 25.4

Technical ratio (4) 116.4% 101.0% 101.9%
(1) Technical result is defi ned as net premiums earned less losses and loss expenses and acquisition costs.
(2) Loss ratio is obtained by dividing losses and loss expenses by net premiums earned.
(3) Acquisition ratio is obtained by dividing acquisition costs by net premiums earned.
(4) Technical ratio is defi ned as the sum of the loss ratio and the acquisition ratio.
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2005 over 2004 
Premiums 
The U.S. P&C sub-segment represented 23% of total net premiums written in 2005. 
The decrease in gross and net premiums written and net premiums earned over 2004 
resulted from all lines but was more evident in the motor and casualty lines. The Company 
observed increased competition in the short-tail motor and property lines, as primary 
companies retained more risk and reinsurers were competing for a declining amount of 
business. Although pricing and terms and conditions remained fairly stable in 2005 for the 
long-tail casualty line, the Company’s net premiums written also decreased for this line. 
Approximately a third of the decline in net premiums written for this sub-segment resulted 
from reduced premium estimates from cedants for prior underwriting years, while the 
remainder resulted from timing of renewals, lower renewal premiums due to the increased 
risk retention by cedants, the cancellation of programs (or non-renewals) where the renewal 
terms did not meet the Company’s profi tability objectives and increased competition among 
reinsurers.

Losses and loss expenses and loss ratio 
The losses and loss expenses and loss ratio reported in 2005 refl ect a) losses related to 
the large 2005 catastrophic loss events in the amount of $128 million or 15.5 points on the 
loss ratio of this sub-segment; b) net adverse loss development on prior accident years in 
the amount of $48 million, or 5.8 points on the loss ratio; and c) a decrease in the book of 
business and exposure for this sub-segment as evidenced by the decrease in net premiums 
earned. The net adverse loss development of $48 million included net adverse loss 
development for prior accident years in the motor and casualty lines of $58 million, partially 
offset by net favorable loss development in the shorter-tail property line of $10 million. The 
net adverse loss development for motor primarily refl ects actual loss experience during 
2005 being worse than expected. The net adverse loss development in the casualty line was 
primarily due to a revaluation of the loss development assumptions used by the Company 
to estimate future liabilities in a number of recent underwriting years for certain treaties, 
particularly in the specialty casualty lines. In addition, but to a less signifi cant degree, the 
Company observed the emergence of unforeseen loss activity in certain older underwriting 
years within the non-proportional casualty portfolio. Loss information provided by cedants 
for prior accident years in 2005 for all lines in this sub-segment included no individually 
signifi cant losses or reductions of losses but a series of attritional losses or reductions. 
Based on the Company’s assessment of this loss information, the Company has increased 
its expected ultimate loss ratios for the motor and casualty lines (decreased for the property 
line), which had the net effect of increasing prior year loss estimates for this sub-segment.

The increase in losses and loss expenses and loss ratio from 2004 to 2005 is explained 
by the increase of $79 million in the level of large catastrophic losses and the increase of 
$18 million in net adverse prior year development, partially offset by a reduction of losses 
and loss expenses of approximately $32 million resulting from the decrease in the book of 
business and exposure, as evidenced by the decrease in net premiums earned.
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U.S. P&C (continued) 

Acquisition costs and acquisition ratio 
While the Company’s book of business and exposure have declined in 2005 compared 
to 2004, the acquisition costs for the 2005 year did not change signifi cantly. A shift from 
non-proportional business to proportional business, which carries higher commission and 
brokerage expenses, and reductions of acquisition costs in 2004 on treaties with experience 
credits in the form of sliding scale and profi t commission adjustments resulted in the 
increase in the acquisition ratio from 2004 to 2005.

Technical result and technical ratio 
The decrease in technical result and increase in technical ratio from 2004 to 2005 is 
explained by the increase of $79 million in the level of large catastrophic losses, the increase 
of $18 million in net adverse prior year development and a reduction of approximately 
$29 million in profi tability resulting from the decrease in net premiums earned.

2004 over 2003 
Premiums 
The U.S. P&C sub-segment represented 26% of total net premiums written in 2004. 
The growth in gross and net premiums written over 2003 resulted from the casualty line, 
where terms and conditions remained strong. Premiums in property and motor decreased 
principally due to the softening of terms and conditions and increased risk retention by 
cedants. Growth in this sub-segment was impacted by the Company’s selectivity in pursuing 
business that met its profi tability objectives.

Losses and loss expenses and loss ratio 
The losses and loss expenses and loss ratio reported in 2004 refl ected a) losses related 
to the 2004 Atlantic hurricanes in the amount of $49 million or 5.4 points on the loss 
ratio of this sub-segment; b) net adverse loss development on prior accident years in the 
amount of $30 million or 3.4 points; c) growth in the book of business and exposure for this 
sub-segment as evidenced by the increase in net premiums earned; and d) the continued 
expansion in the specialty casualty line that typically tends to have a higher loss ratio due to 
the long-tail nature of the risks involved. The net adverse loss development of $30 million 
included net adverse loss development for prior accident years in the motor and casualty 
lines of $53 million, partially offset by net favorable loss development in the shorter-tail 
property line of $23 million. The net adverse loss development for motor refl ected primarily 
actual loss experience during 2004 being worse than expected. The net adverse loss 
development in the casualty line was primarily due to a revaluation of the loss development 
assumptions used by the Company to estimate future liabilities due to what it believes are 
adverse industry-wide trends in that line of business. Loss information provided by cedants 
in 2004 for all lines in this sub-segment for prior accident years included no individually 
signifi cant losses or reductions of losses but a series of attritional losses or reductions. 
Based on the Company’s assessment of this loss information, the Company increased its 
expected ultimate loss ratios for the motor and casualty lines (decreased for the property 
line), which had the net effect of increasing the level of prior year loss estimates for this 
sub-segment. Included in the net favorable development in the property line was a 
$12 million reduction in the Company’s loss estimate related to the September 11 tragedy, 
as the Company received information from cedants indicating that certain outstanding loss 
reserves were no longer necessary.
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The losses and loss expenses and loss ratio reported in 2003 refl ected a) no signifi cant or 
catastrophic loss; b) net adverse loss development on prior accident years in the amount 
of $88 million; c) growth in the book of business and exposure for this sub-segment as 
evidenced by the increase in net premiums earned; and d) the continued expansion in the 
specialty casualty line that typically tends to have a higher loss ratio due to the long-tail 
nature of the risks involved. The net adverse loss development of $88 million included net 
adverse loss development for prior accident years of $72 million on the casualty line and 
$15 million on the motor line.

The increase in losses and loss expenses and loss ratio from 2003 to 2004 is explained 
by growth in the book of business and the increasing proportion of specialty casualty 
business written in this sub-segment, as the sum of the Atlantic hurricane losses and 
prior year development for 2004 is comparable to the net adverse prior year development 
recorded in 2003.

Acquisition costs and acquisition ratio 
The decrease in acquisition costs and acquisition ratio from 2003 to 2004 resulted from 
reductions in acquisition costs on treaties with experience credits in the form of sliding scale 
and profi t commission adjustments.

Technical result and technical ratio 
The net improvement in the technical result and technical ratio from 2003 to 2004 is 
primarily explained by the decrease in acquisition costs and acquisition ratio, which was 
partially offset by the higher losses and loss expenses and loss ratio resulting from the 
increased proportion of specialty casualty business.

2006 Outlook 
During the January 1, 2006 renewals, the Company saw signifi cant price increases on 
business exposed to the recent large loss events with mixed conditions on other business. 
The Company increased the portion of its book of business that renewed on January 1, 
2006 in this sub-segment by a single-digit percentage. Based on overall pricing indications 
and information received from cedants and brokers during the renewals, Management 
expects similar market conditions will prevail during the remainder of 2006. As net 
premiums written decreased in 2005 and are earned over the risk period, which is generally 
one to two years, net premiums earned are expected to be relatively fl at in 2006 despite the 
growth in net premiums written during the January 1, 2006 renewals.
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Global (Non-U.S.) P&C 
The technical result for the Global (Non-U.S.) P&C sub-segment has fl uctuated in the last 
three years, refl ecting varying levels of large loss events and development on prior years’ 
loss estimates. The Company believes the business being written in this sub-segment is 
profi table notwithstanding the negative technical result of 2004, once investment income 
is considered. The Global (Non-U.S.) P&C sub-segment is composed of long-tail business, 
in the form of casualty and non-proportional motor business, that represents approximately 
24% of net premiums written for 2005 in this sub-segment, and short-tail business, in 
the form of property and proportional motor business. The following table provides the 
components of the technical result and their corresponding ratios for this sub-segment (in 
millions of U.S. dollars):

2005

% Change
2005 over

2004 2004

% Change
2004 over

2003 2003

Gross premiums written  $ 837 (11)% $ 944 11% $ 848

Net premiums written 835 (12) 945 11 849

Net premiums earned  $ 860 (7)  $ 929 11  $ 839

Losses and loss expenses (637) (13) (730) 17 (625)

Acquisition costs (217) (9) (238) 14 (209)

Technical result  $ 6 NM  $ (39) NM  $ 5

Loss ratio 74.1% 78.6% 74.5%

Acquisition ratio 25.3 25.6 24.8

Technical ratio 99.4% 104.2% 99.3%

NM: not meaningful 

2005 over 2004 
Premiums 
The Global (Non-U.S.) P&C sub-segment represented 23% of total net premiums written for 
2005. Changes in average foreign exchange rates contributed 5 points of growth for this 
sub-segment as the U.S. dollar weakened during 2005 compared to 2004 and premiums 
denominated in currencies that have appreciated against the U.S. dollar were converted into 
U.S. dollars at higher exchange rates. Without the positive contribution of foreign exchange, 
net premiums written would have declined by 16%. The decline in gross and net premiums 
written and net premiums earned in 2005 resulted from all lines in this sub-segment, 
but was more pronounced in the casualty line. Increased competition and increased risk 
retention by cedants are the principal reasons for the decrease in premium volume in 
this sub-segment. The Company has remained selective in an increasingly competitive 
environment and has chosen to retain business that met its profi tability objectives instead of 
focusing on premium volume.

Losses and loss expenses and loss ratio 
The losses and loss expenses and loss ratio reported in 2005 refl ect a) losses related to 
the large 2005 catastrophic loss events in the amount of $61 million or 7.1 points on the 
loss ratio of this sub-segment; b) net favorable loss development on prior accident years in 
the amount of $67 million, or 7.9 points on the loss ratio; and c) a decrease in the book of 
business and exposure for this sub-segment as evidenced by the decrease in net premiums 
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earned. The net favorable loss development of $67 million included net favorable loss 
development for prior accident years in the property and casualty lines of $76 million, 
partially offset by net adverse loss development in the motor line of $9 million. The net 
favorable loss development was primarily due to favorable loss emergence, as losses 
reported by cedants during 2005 for prior accident years and for treaties where the risk 
period expired were lower (higher for motor) than the Company expected. Loss information 
provided by cedants in 2005 for prior accident years for all lines in this sub-segment 
included no individually signifi cant losses or reductions but a series of attritional losses or 
reductions. Based on the Company’s assessment of this loss information, the Company has 
decreased its expected ultimate loss ratios for the property and casualty lines (increased for 
the motor line), which had the net effect of decreasing the level of prior year loss estimates 
for this sub-segment.

The decrease in losses and loss expenses and loss ratio from 2004 to 2005 is explained 
by the increase of $91 million in the level of net favorable prior year development and 
a reduction of approximately $29 million in losses and loss expenses resulting from 
the decrease in the book of business and exposure, as evidenced by the decrease in 
net premiums earned, partially offset by the increase of $27 million in the level of large 
catastrophic losses.

Acquisition costs and acquisition ratio 
The decrease in acquisition costs in 2005 compared to 2004 is due to the reduction in the 
Company’s book of business and exposure as evidenced by the decrease in net premiums 
earned. The acquisition ratio is comparable for both years.

Technical result and technical ratio 
The increase in technical result and decrease in technical ratio from 2004 to 2005 is 
explained by the increase of $91 million in net favorable prior year development, partially 
offset by the increase of $27 million in the level of large catastrophic losses, and a 
reduction of approximately $19 million in profi tability resulting from the decrease in net 
premiums earned.

2004 over 2003 
Premiums 
The Global (Non-U.S.) P&C sub-segment represented 24% of total net premiums written for 
2004. Changes in average foreign exchange rates contributed 10 points of growth for this 
sub-segment as the U.S. dollar weakened during 2004 compared to 2003 and premiums 
denominated in currencies that have appreciated against the U.S. dollar were converted 
into U.S. dollars at higher exchange rates. The remainder of the growth in this sub-segment 
was attributable to the casualty line and was partially offset by decreases in the motor and 
property lines. Notwithstanding the increased competition prevailing in this sub-segment, 
and higher risk retention from cedants, the terms and conditions remained strong in 2004 
and the Company was able to pursue business that met its profi tability objectives.

Losses and loss expenses and loss ratio 
The losses and loss expenses and loss ratio reported in 2004 refl ected a) losses related 
to the 2004 Atlantic hurricanes and Indian Ocean tsunami in the amount of $34 million or 
3.7 points on the loss ratio of this sub-segment; b) net adverse loss development on prior 
accident years in the amount of $24 million, or 2.5 points on the loss ratio; c) growth in the 
book of business and exposure for this sub-segment as evidenced by the increase in net 
premiums earned; and d) the expansion in the casualty and non-proportional motor lines 
that typically tend to have a higher loss ratio due to the long-tail nature of the risks involved. 
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Global (Non-U.S.) P&C (continued) 

The net adverse loss development of $24 million included net adverse loss development 
for prior accident years in the motor and casualty lines of $106 million, partially offset 
by net favorable loss development in the shorter-tail property line of $82 million. The net 
adverse loss development in the motor and casualty lines was primarily due to a revaluation 
of the loss development assumptions, particularly in the non-proportional lines, used by 
the Company to estimate future liabilities due to what it believes are adverse industry-wide 
trends in these lines of business. Loss information provided by cedants in 2004 for all 
lines in this sub-segment for prior accident years included no individually signifi cant losses 
or reductions but a series of attritional losses or reductions. Based on the Company’s 
assessment of this loss information, the Company has increased its expected ultimate loss 
ratios for the motor and casualty lines (decreased for the property line), which had the net 
effect of increasing the level of prior year loss estimates for this sub-segment.

The losses and loss expenses and loss ratio reported in 2003 refl ected a) no signifi cant or 
catastrophic loss; b) net favorable loss development on prior accident years in the amount 
of $11 million; c) growth in the book of business and exposure for this sub-segment as 
evidenced by the increase in net premiums earned; and d) expansion in the casualty and 
non-proportional motor lines that typically tends to have a higher loss ratio due to the long-
tail nature of the risks involved. The net favorable loss development of $11 million included 
net adverse loss development for prior accident years of $23 million on the motor line offset 
by $34 million of net favorable development on the property and casualty lines.

The increase in losses and loss expenses and loss ratio from 2003 to 2004 was explained 
by losses related to the Atlantic hurricanes and Indian Ocean tsunami, net adverse prior 
year development, growth in the book of business and the increased proportion of casualty 
business written in this sub-segment in 2004.

Acquisition costs and acquisition ratio 
The increase in acquisition costs in 2004 compared to 2003 is due to growth in the volume 
of premiums earned for 2004. The acquisition ratio is comparable for both years.

Technical result and technical ratio 
The decrease in technical result and increase in technical ratio from 2003 to 2004 is 
explained primarily by the higher level of large catastrophic losses and net adverse prior 
year development.

2006 Outlook 
During the January 1, 2006 renewals, the Company observed a continuation of the trend 
by cedants to increase their retentions and reinsurers to increase their competitive behavior. 
Terms, conditions and pricing declined in several markets as a result of the increased 
competition and the Company reduced the portion of its book of business that renewed 
on January 1, 2006 in this sub-segment by a low double-digit percentage. Management 
expects that the environment will continue to deteriorate in this sub-segment during the 
remainder of 2006. As net premiums written have decreased in 2005 and are earned over 
the risk period, which is generally one to two years, net premiums earned are expected to 
experience a higher decrease than net premiums written in 2006.
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Worldwide Specialty 
The Worldwide Specialty sub-segment is usually the most profi table sub-segment within 
the Company; however, it is important to note that this sub-segment is exposed to volatility 
relating to signifi cant catastrophe and other large losses, and thus, profi tability in any one 
year is not necessarily predictive of future profi tability. During 2005, the unprecedented level 
of large catastrophe losses has impacted the technical result and ratio for this sub-segment 
and distorted year-to-year comparisons as discussed below. The following table provides the 
components of the technical result and their corresponding ratios for this sub-segment (in 
millions of U.S. dollars):

2005

% Change
2005 over

2004 2004

% Change
2004 over

2003 2003

Gross premiums written  $ 1,533 —%  $ 1,531 (1)% $ 1,542

Net premiums written 1,501 (1) 1,509 (1) 1,517

Net premiums earned  $ 1,456 (3)  $ 1,500 (1)  $ 1,518

Losses and loss expenses (1,334) 79 (744) (10) (829)

Acquisition costs (308) (5) (323) 12 (289)

Technical result  $ (186) NM  $ 433 8  $ 400

Loss ratio 91.6% 49.6% 54.6%

Acquisition ratio 21.2 21.6 19.0

Technical ratio 112.8% 71.2% 73.6%

NM: not meaningful 

2005 over 2004 
Premiums 
The Worldwide Specialty sub-segment represented 42% of total net premiums written in 
2005. Changes in average foreign exchange rates contributed 2 points of growth for this 
sub-segment as the U.S. dollar weakened during 2005 compared to 2004 and premiums 
denominated in currencies that have appreciated against the U.S. dollar were converted 
into U.S. dollars at higher exchange rates. Without the positive contribution of foreign 
exchange, net premiums written would have declined by 3%. Following hurricane Katrina, 
Rita and Wilma, reinstatement premiums of $48 million and back-up covers of $11 million 
were recorded in the catastrophe line in this sub-segment, which slowed the decline in net 
premiums written. While the 2005 catastrophic loss events reversed the price competition 
in catastrophe-exposed lines (generally short-tail lines), the decline in pricing, and net 
premiums written, continued in other lines in this sub-segment. In response to these 
conditions and to increased competition in this sub-segment, the Company has remained 
selective in pursuing business that met its profi tability objectives and has declined treaties 
where terms and conditions did not meet the Company’s standards.
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Losses and loss expenses and loss ratio 
The losses and loss expenses and loss ratio reported in 2005 refl ect a) losses related to 
the large 2005 catastrophic loss events in the amount of $741 million or 49.4 points on 
the loss ratio of this sub-segment; b) net favorable loss development on prior accident 
years in the amount of $212 million, or 14.5 points on the loss ratio; and c) a decrease in 
the book of business and exposure for this sub-segment as evidenced by the decrease 
in net premiums earned. The net favorable loss development of $212 million included net 
adverse loss development for prior accident years for the agriculture line of $10 million, 
offset by net favorable loss development in all other lines of $222 million. The net favorable 
loss development was primarily due to favorable loss emergence, as losses reported by 
cedants during 2005 for prior accident years, and for treaties where the risk period expired, 
were lower (higher for agriculture) than the Company expected. Loss information provided 
by cedants in 2005 for prior accident years for all lines in this sub-segment included no 
individually signifi cant losses or reductions but a series of attritional losses or reductions. 
Based on the Company’s assessment of this loss information, the Company has decreased 
its expected ultimate loss ratios for all lines (increased for the agriculture line), which had the 
net effect of decreasing the level of prior year loss estimates (increasing for the agriculture 
line) for this sub-segment.

The increase in losses and loss expenses and loss ratio from 2004 to 2005 is explained 
by the increase of $656 million in the level of large catastrophic losses, partially offset 
by the increase of $19 million in net favorable prior year development and a reduction of 
approximately $47 million in losses and loss expenses resulting from the decrease in the 
book of business and exposure, as evidenced by the decrease in net premiums earned.

Acquisition costs and acquisition ratio 
The decrease in acquisition costs in 2005 compared to 2004 results from the reduction 
in the Company’s book of business and exposure, as evidenced by the decrease in net 
premiums earned, and shifts in the mix of business as certain lines carry lower acquisition 
costs. Although the acquisition ratio is fl at, two trends offset each other in 2005. The 
increase in net favorable prior year loss development resulted in increased sliding scale 
commissions and profi t commission adjustments, which increased the acquisition ratio. 
Reinstatement premiums received by the Company following hurricane Katrina, Rita and 
Wilma carried lower acquisition costs than the average for this sub-segment, which had the 
effect of decreasing the acquisition ratio.

Technical result and technical ratio 
The decrease in technical result and increase in technical ratio from 2004 to 2005 is 
explained by the increase of $615 million in the level of large catastrophic losses, net 
of reinstatement premiums, and a reduction of approximately $23 million in profi tability 
resulting from the decrease in net premiums earned, partially offset by the increase of 
$19 million in net favorable prior year development.
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2004 over 2003 
Premiums 
The Worldwide Specialty sub-segment represented 39% of total net premiums written in 
2004. Gross and net premiums written and earned were relatively fl at in 2004 compared 
to 2003. The weakening of the U.S. dollar in 2004 compared to 2003 contributed 
approximately 6 points of growth in net premiums written in this sub-segment. Without the 
positive contribution of foreign exchange, net premiums written would have declined by 7%. 
The Company had seen no real change in market trends since the second half of 2003, 
where the pricing for the most profi table lines of business had started to decline and the 
other lines exhibited a slow but orderly reduction in the rate of price increases as a result 
of increasing competition. However, following the high level of natural catastrophes in the 
third quarter of 2004, the Company observed that pricing deterioration slowed down in the 
markets and lines directly affected by these loss events. In 2004, the Company remained 
selective in pursuing business that met its profi tability objectives and declined treaties where 
terms and conditions did not meet the Company’s standards.

Losses and loss expenses and loss ratio 
The losses and loss expense and loss ratio reported in 2004 refl ected a) losses related to the 
2004 Atlantic hurricanes and Indian Ocean tsunami in the amount of $85 million or 5.5 points 
on the loss ratio of this sub-segment; and b) net favorable loss development on prior accident 
years in the amount of $193 million, or 12.8 points. The net favorable loss development 
of $193 million included net favorable loss development of $203 million for prior accident 
years in all lines, except for the specialty casualty line that was affected by net adverse 
loss development of $10 million. The net favorable loss development was primarily due to a 
revaluation of the loss development assumptions used by the Company to estimate future 
liabilities due to what it believes were favorable experience trends in these lines of business 
as losses reported by cedants during 2004 for prior accident years, and for treaties where 
the risk period expired, were lower (higher for specialty casualty) than the Company expected. 
Included in the net favorable development was a $22 million reduction of the Company’s loss 
estimate related to the September 11 tragedy, as the Company received information from 
cedants indicating that certain outstanding loss reserves were no longer necessary.

The losses and loss expenses and loss ratio reported in 2003 refl ected a) no signifi cant 
or catastrophic loss and an exceptionally low amount of mid-size losses; b) net favorable 
loss development on prior accident years in the amount of $22 million; and c) growth in the 
book of business and exposure for this sub-segment as evidenced by the increase in net 
premiums earned. The net favorable loss development of $22 million included net favorable 
loss development for prior accident years of $61 million on the aviation, credit/surety, 
engineering/energy, catastrophe and other lines, which was partially offset by net adverse 
loss development of $39 million on the agriculture, marine and specialty casualty lines.
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Losses reported by cedants during 2003 for prior accident years were lower than the 
Company expected, which led the Company to decrease its expected ultimate loss ratio 
for this sub-segment for prior accident years. The main factors infl uencing the Company’s 
lower than expected reported losses were a series of reductions in attritional losses and a 
lower number of newly reported losses by cedants. Net positive loss development included a 
decrease in prior year loss estimates of $7 million related to the September 11 tragedy.

The decrease in losses and loss expenses and loss ratio from 2003 to 2004 in this sub-
segment is explained by higher net favorable prior year development in 2004, which was 
partially offset by losses related to the Atlantic hurricanes and Indian Ocean tsunami.

Acquisition costs and acquisition ratio 
The increase in acquisition costs and acquisition ratio in 2004 compared to 2003 resulted 
primarily from a shift from treaties previously written on a net basis, where premiums were 
ceded to the Company net of acquisition costs, to treaties written on a gross basis, where 
acquisition costs were reported separately from premiums. This change in the form of 
the treaty did not affect the technical result under the treaty but distorted the year-over-
year comparison for acquisition costs. Other factors contributing to the increase included 
intensifying competition in this sub-segment, which tends to increase the acquisition ratio, 
and a shift between lines of business where certain lines carry higher acquisition ratios.

Technical result and technical ratio 
The increase in technical result and decrease in technical ratio from 2003 to 2004 
is explained by the increase of $171 million in net favorable prior year development, 
partially offset by the increase of $80 million in the level of large catastrophic losses, net 
of reinstatement premiums, and a reduction of approximately $58 million in profi tability 
resulting from the decrease in net premiums earned and the decline in pricing and 
conditions in 2004.

2006 Outlook 
During the January 1, 2006 renewals, the Company observed divergent market conditions, 
with the U.S. and northern European catastrophe-exposed business, energy business and 
specialty property business showing strong price momentum and good growth. Most other 
specialty lines, including credit/surety and specialty casualty, showed declines in pricing. The 
Company grew the portion of its book of business that renewed on January 1, 2006 in this 
sub-segment by a low single-digit percentage. Management expects that the environment will 
continue to strengthen during the remainder of 2006 in this sub-segment, as the catastrophe 
line will benefi t from a reduction of reinsurance capacity following the large 2005 
catastrophic loss events. It is important to note that growth in the Company’s catastrophe line 
in 2006 will result primarily from improved pricing as opposed to increased exposure. As net 
premiums written decreased in 2005 and are earned over the risk period, which is generally 
one to two years, net premiums earned are expected to be relatively fl at in 2006.
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ART Segment 
The ART segment, the Company’s newest segment, was reported for the fi rst time as 
a separate segment in 2004. This segment includes structured risk transfer, structured 
fi nance, weather related products and the interest in earnings of the Company’s equity 
investment in Channel Re. As reinsurance accounting does not apply for much of the 
business in this segment, premiums alone are not a representative measure of activity in 
ART. This segment is very transaction driven, and revenues and profi t trends will be uneven, 
especially given the relatively small size of this segment. Accordingly, profi tability or growth 
in any year is not necessarily predictive of future profi tability or growth. The following table 
provides the components of the underwriting result for this segment for the years ended 
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 (in millions of U.S. dollars):

2005 2004 2003

Gross premiums written  $ 27  $ 5  $ 5

Net premiums written 27 5 4

Net premiums earned  $ 25  $ 6  $ 3

Losses and loss expenses (32) (7) —

Acquisition costs (3) (1) —

Technical result  $ (10)  $ (2)  $ 3

Other income 31 11 12

Other operating expenses (13) (13) (11)

Underwriting result  $ 8  $ (4)  $ 4

Interest in earnings of equity investment  $ 10  $ 6  $  —

2005 over 2004 
The ART segment had good growth in results during 2005 compared to 2004, despite 
market conditions that impeded opportunities. Low interest rates, which tend to reduce the 
attractiveness of structured risk business for clients, and low credit spreads, which reduced 
the opportunities in the structured fi nance business, were prevalent in both years. Except for 
the structured risk transfer line, which was impacted by hurricane Katrina, Rita and Wilma, 
all lines of business were profi table in 2005, with the weather products and the Company’s 
interest in the earnings of its equity investment in Channel Re generating the largest 
contribution to growth in pre-tax profi t.

Underwriting result for the ART segment increased in 2005 despite the higher level of 
large catastrophic losses of $8 million, net of additional premiums. As a result of unusual 
weather patterns in Japan during 2004, the weather line incurred realized and unrealized 
losses on weather derivative instruments during that year. While the weather line returned 
to profi tability in 2005, the structured risk line incurred losses on hurricane Katrina, Rita and 
Wilma, which mitigated the positive impact of the weather and structured fi nance lines.
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The Company’s share of the results of Channel Re for 2005 amounted to $9.4 million and 
represented results for a twelve-month period from October 2004 to September 2005, as 
the Company records income on its investment in Channel Re on a one-quarter lag. The 
2005 amount is not comparable to the 2004 amount of $6.0 million, which represented 
results for an eight-month period from February 2004, the date of the Company’s acquisition 
of an ownership interest in Channel Re, to September 30, 2004.

2004 over 2003 
The ART segment had good growth in business during 2004 compared to 2003 despite the 
lower interest rates and lower credit spreads experienced in 2004. While the commutation 
of two large treaties in 2004 accelerated the recognition of the margin on the treaties, this 
was partially offset by a loss of $8 million in the third quarter of 2004 as one treaty incurred 
a loss related to the Atlantic hurricanes. Results for the structured fi nance business were 
positive, while results in the weather line included losses resulting from higher than normal 
temperatures in Japan. Overall, these events resulted in a net decrease in underwriting 
result for the ART segment in 2004.

2006 Outlook 
The Company expects that current low interest rates and tight credit spreads will continue 
to impede growth in the structured risk transfer and structured fi nance lines, as well as the 
growth of Channel Re. The Company intends to offset these trends by cautiously exploring 
new business initiatives in related risk categories that should contribute to growth over time.

Life Segment 
The following table summarizes the underwriting result for this segment (in millions of 
U.S. dollars):

2005

% Change 
2005 over 

2004 2004

% Change 
2004 over 

2003 2003

Gross premiums written  $ 448 8%  $ 417 34% $ 310

Net premiums written 434 7 404 35 300

Net premiums earned  $ 430 6  $ 406 35  $ 300

Life policy benefi ts (320) 8 (296) 11 (267)

Acquisition costs (120) (12) (136) 121 (61)

Technical result  $ (10) (61)  $ (26) (8)  $ (28)

Other operating expenses (23) 2 (22) 20 (19)

Net investment income 48 8 44 (17) 53

Allocated underwriting result (1)  $ 15 NM  $ (4) NM  $ 6

NM: not meaningful 
(1) Allocated underwriting result is defi ned as net premiums earned and allocated net investment income less life 

policy benefi ts, acquisition costs and other operating expenses.

2005 over 2004 
Premiums 
The Life segment represented 12% of total net premiums written in 2005. The increases in 
gross and net premiums written and net premiums earned during 2005 compared to 2004 
resulted primarily from three factors. First, the Company increased its book of mortality 
business at the end of 2004, which resulted in higher net premiums earned in 2005. Second, 
the Company experienced growth in mortality lines, partially offset by a reduction in longevity 
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and health products in 2005. Finally, the U.S. dollar has weakened on average in 2005 and 
premiums denominated in currencies that have appreciated against the U.S. dollar were 
converted into U.S. dollars at higher exchange rates. Changes in average foreign exchange 
rates accounted for approximately 2 points of growth in net premiums written in 2005.

Life policy benefits 
The increase in life policy benefi ts in 2005 compared to 2004 resulted primarily from the 
growth in the Company’s book of business and exposure, as evidenced by the increase in 
net premiums earned for this segment. The comparison was also affected by the effect of 
a reclassifi cation made in 2004 for one large treaty where the cedant reported a reduction 
in life policy benefi ts and an equivalent increase in acquisition costs. This reclassifi cation 
affects the comparison of life policy benefi ts and acquisition costs for the years 2005 and 
2004. The Indian Ocean tsunami also resulted in life policy benefi ts of $5 million in 2004.

Acquisition costs 
Acquisition costs included a $5 million charge in 2004 to reduce deferred acquisition costs 
on annuity treaties retained in the sale of PartnerRe Life Insurance Company of the U.S. The 
2004 charge was due to a prolonged period of low interest rates, which had a negative effect 
on these treaties and resulted in a charge refl ecting the actual experience to date as well as 
a revised projection of future results given updated assumptions. Without the effect of this 
charge and the reclassifi cation discussed above, which increased acquisition costs in 2004, 
there would have been an increase in acquisition costs in 2005 compared to 2004. A shift 
in the mix of business for this segment in 2005 resulted in a higher proportion of mortality 
business, which tends to carry higher acquisition costs in the early years of the treaties.

Net investment income 
The increase in net investment income for this segment for 2005 compared to 2004 is 
primarily attributable to the growth in the book of business.

Allocated underwriting result 
The improvement in allocated underwriting result in 2005 compared to 2004 is primarily 
attributable to (i) the $5 million charge taken in 2004 to reduce deferred acquisition costs, 
(ii) the $5 million life policy benefi ts related to the Indian Ocean tsunami incurred in 2004, 
and (iii) the increase of $4 million in net investment income allocated to this segment.

2004 over 2003 
Premiums 
The Life segment represented 11% of total net premiums written in 2004. The increases in 
gross and net premiums written and net premiums earned during 2004 and 2003 resulted 
primarily from two factors. First, the Company took advantage of the disruption observed 
in the European life insurance and reinsurance market as the poor performance of equity 
markets in the prior three years reduced the capital available in the industry. Secondly, the 
U.S. dollar weakened during 2004 and 2003 and premiums denominated in currencies 
that appreciated against the U.S. dollar were converted into U.S. dollars at higher exchange 
rates. Changes in average foreign exchange rates accounted for 10 points of growth in net 
premiums written during 2004.

Life policy benefits 
The increase in life policy benefi ts in 2004 compared to 2003 resulted primarily from the 
growth in the Company’s book of business and exposure, as evidenced by the increase in 
net premiums earned for this segment. This was partially offset by reclassifi cations made 
by a cedant in 2004 for one large treaty where the cedant reported a reduction in life 
policy benefi ts and an increase in acquisition costs. These reclassifi cations affected the 
comparison of life policy benefi ts and acquisition costs between 2004 and 2003.
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Acquisition costs 
The increase in acquisition costs in 2004 compared to 2003 was attributable to three 
factors including the reclassifi cation discussed above, a change in the mix of business to 
certain lines which carried higher acquisition costs and a $5 million charge recognized 
in 2004 to reduce deferred acquisition costs on annuity treaties retained in the sale of 
PartnerRe Life Insurance Company of the U.S.

Net investment income 
The decrease in net investment income for this segment for 2004 compared to 2003 was 
attributable to a life annuity treaty for which the cedant had reported lower net investment 
income during 2004.

Allocated underwriting result 
The decrease in allocated underwriting result in 2004 refl ects the Indian Ocean tsunami life 
policy benefi ts of $5 million, the $5 million charge to reduce deferred acquisition costs on 
annuity treaties and an increase in acquisition costs due to the growth in multi-year mortality 
premiums.

2006 Outlook 
Based on pricing indications and renewal information received from cedants and brokers, 
and assuming constant foreign exchange rates, Management expects that gross and net 
premiums written for this segment will experience single-digit percentage growth in 2006. 
As net premiums written have increased in 2005 and are earned over the risk period, which 
is generally more than one year for single-life and annuity premiums, net premiums earned 
are expected to have low double-digit percentage growth in 2006.

Premium Distribution by Line of Business 
The distribution of net premiums written by line of business for the years ended December 
31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, was as follows:

2005 2004 2003

Non-life

 Property and Casualty

  Property 19% 19% 21%

  Casualty 19 21 19

  Motor 8 10 10

 Worldwide Specialty

  Agriculture 3 4 4

  Aviation/Space 6 6 8

  Catastrophe 11 9 10

  Credit/Surety 7 6 5

  Engineering/Energy 5 6 7

  Marine 3 2 3

  Special risk 6 6 5

ART 1 — —

Life 12 11 8

Total 100% 100% 100%
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There were modest shifts in the distribution of net premiums written by line and segment in 
2005, 2004 and 2003. The shifts in distribution refl ect the Company’s response to existing 
market conditions. Distributions of net premiums written may also be affected by the timing 
of renewals or the shift in treaty structure from proportional to non-proportional basis, as 
well as other treaty terms. The principal market conditions and their impact on net premiums 
written was as follows:

2005 over 2004 
-  net premiums written declined by 6% in 2005. Changes in average foreign exchange 

rates contributed 2 points of growth as the U.S. dollar weakened during 2005 compared 
to 2004 and premiums denominated in currencies that have appreciated against the 
U.S. dollar were converted into U.S. dollars at higher exchange rates. Without the positive 
contribution of foreign exchange, net premiums written would have declined by 8%. 
Foreign exchange fl uctuations affected the comparison for all lines;

-  increased competition, increased risk retention from cedants and lower cedant premium 
estimates for prior years are the principal reasons for the decrease in premium volume for 
the casualty and motor lines;

-  reinstatement premiums received by the Company following hurricane Katrina, Rita and 
Wilma resulted in an increase in the premium volume of the catastrophe line; and 

-  the Company signed a few large life treaties in the fourth quarter of 2004, which resulted 
in higher net premiums written in 2005.

2004 over 2003 
-  net premiums written increased by 7% in 2004. Changes in average foreign exchange 

rates contributed 6 points of growth as the U.S. dollar weakened during 2004 compared 
to 2003. Without the positive contribution of foreign exchange, net premiums written 
would have been relatively fl at. Foreign exchange fl uctuations affected the comparison for 
all lines;

-  as prices were declining in short-tail lines, such as property, agriculture, aviation/space, 
catastrophe and energy, the Company determined to non-renew certain treaties that did 
not meet its profi tability objectives;

-  a number of treaties were non-renewed as a result of the cedant retaining the risk as 
opposed to ceding it to a reinsurer; and 

-  as prices and terms and conditions were still strong in casualty, motor, credit/surety, 
special risk and life, the Company took advantage of market conditions.

2006 Outlook 
During the January 1, 2006 renewals, the Company observed divergent market conditions 
with business exposed to the large 2005 catastrophe losses showing stronger conditions, 
while other business showed either stability or declines in pricing. As a result of shifting 
renewal patterns, the January 1, 2006 renewals are expected to represent less than 55% of 
the Company’s annual Non-life business, down from approximately 60% in previous years. 
Since approximately 45% of the Company’s Non-life reinsurance business will renew later in 
2006, market trends observed during the January 1, 2006 renewals should not be used to 
extrapolate the Company’s annual net premiums written. Based on January 1, 2006 renewal 
information from cedants and brokers, Management expects that net premiums written for 
the motor line will continue to decrease during the remainder of 2006 while premiums for 
the catastrophe line will grow. As the catastrophe line is approaching the exposure limits that 
are imposed by Management, growth for this line is expected to come from improved pricing 
and conditions as opposed to increased exposure.
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Premium Distribution by Treaty Type 
The Company typically writes business on either a proportional or non-proportional basis. On 
proportional business, the Company shares proportionally in both the premiums and losses 
of the cedant. In non-proportional business, the Company is typically exposed to loss events 
in excess of a predetermined dollar amount or loss ratio. In both proportional and non-
proportional business, the Company typically reinsures a large group of primary insurance 
contracts written by the ceding company. In addition, the Company writes a small percentage 
of its business on a facultative basis. Facultative arrangements are generally specifi c to 
an individual risk and can be written on either a proportional or non-proportional basis. 
Generally, the Company has more infl uence over pricing, as well as terms and conditions, in 
non-proportional and facultative arrangements.

The distribution of gross premiums written by type of treaty for the years ended December 
31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, was as follows:

2005 2004 2003

Non-life Segment

 Proportional 50% 53% 53%

 Non-Proportional 32 29 31

 Facultative 5 7 7

ART Segment

 Proportional — — —

 Non-Proportional 1 — —

Life Segment

 Proportional 11 10 8

 Non-Proportional 1 1 1

Total 100% 100% 100%

2005 over 2004 
The modest shift in the distribution of gross premiums by treaty type for the Non-life 
segment for 2005 resulted primarily from $48 million of non-proportional reinstatement 
premiums related to hurricane Katrina, Rita and Wilma. The U.S. dollar was weaker, on 
average, in 2005 than it was in 2004. As a result, changes in average foreign exchange 
rates contributed approximately 2 points to the growth in gross premiums written in 2005 
and affected the year-to-year comparison for all treaty types.

2004 over 2003 
A number of factors caused the modest changes in the distribution of net premiums written 
in 2004 compared to 2003 as follows: (i) as prices were declining in a number of short-
tail lines, the Company determined to non-renew certain treaties, (ii) a number of treaties 
were non-renewed as a result of the cedant retaining the risk as opposed to ceding it to 
a reinsurer, and (iii) the U.S. dollar was weaker, on average, in 2004 than it was in 2003. 
Changes in average foreign exchange rates contributed approximately 6 points to the 
growth in gross premiums written in 2004 and affected the year-to-year comparison for all 
treaty types.
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2006 Outlook 
Based on renewal information from cedants and brokers, and assuming constant foreign 
exchange rates and no signifi cant reinstatement premiums, the Company expects the 
distribution of gross premiums written by treaty type in 2006 will resemble the 2005 
distribution, as the Company expects cedants will increase their retentions and shift 
business from a proportional to non-proportional basis.

Premium Distribution by Geographic Region 
The geographic distribution of gross premiums written for the years ended December 31, 
2005, 2004 and 2003, was as follows:

2005 2004 2003

Europe 46% 45% 41%

North America 41 40 44

Asia, Australia and New Zealand 8 9 10

Latin America, Caribbean and Africa 5 6 5

Total 100% 100% 100%

Growth in the European market was infl uenced by the stronger average rates for the 
euro and other currencies against the U.S. dollar in 2005 compared to 2004 and in 2004 
compared to 2003 and this contributed to the increase in the European market for 2005 
and 2004 and distorts the year-to-year comparisons. Growth in the Life segment, which is 
written primarily outside the United States, also contributed to the modest shift to Europe.

2006 Outlook 
Based on January 1, 2006 renewal information from cedants and brokers, and assuming 
constant foreign exchange rates, the Company expects a modest increase in the percentage 
of gross premiums written in North America in 2006.

Premium Distribution by Production Source 
The Company generates its gross premiums written both through brokers and through direct 
relationships with cedants. The distribution of gross premiums written by production source 
for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, was as follows:

2005 2004 2003

Broker 63% 64% 65%

Direct 37% 36% 35%

The distribution of gross premiums by production source was comparable for all years 
presented.

2006 Outlook 
Based on January 1, 2006 renewal information from cedants and brokers, and assuming 
constant foreign exchange rates, the Company expects no signifi cant changes in the 
production source of gross premiums written during 2006.
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Investment Income 
The table below provides net investment income by asset source for the years ended 
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 (in millions of U.S. dollars):

2005

% Change
2005 over

2004 2004

% Change
2004 over

2003 2003

Fixed maturities $ 288 17% $ 246 21% $ 203

Short-term investments,  
 trading securities, cash 
 and cash equivalents 26 221 8 14 7

Equities 27 38 20 19 17

Funds held and other 41 — 41 (15) 48

Investment expenses (17) 4 (17) 28 (13)

Net investment income $ 365 22 $ 298 14 $ 262

2005 over 2004 
Net investment income increased in 2005 compared to 2004 for three principal reasons:

-  the invested asset base has grown signifi cantly since December 31, 2003, as a result 
of the Company’s positive cash fl ows from operations of $1,264 million for 2004 and 
$1,032 million for 2005. Cash fl ows from 2004 generated a full year of investment 
income in 2005 while cash fl ows from 2005 were generated during the year and had a 
smaller positive impact on 2005’s net investment income;

-  the Company converted the entire MBS portfolio into cash and invested in MBS TBA 
dollar rolls during 2004, which resulted in the Company holding over $1.5 billion in 
cash at June 30, 2004 and September 30, 2004. While holding MBS TBA dollar roll 
instruments, the Company received a total return similar to what it would have if it had 
held a long position in the MBS portfolio. However, the accounting treatment of the 
MBS TBA dollar rolls, which are accounted for as derivative instruments, is different from 
accounting treatment on the long MBS. If the Company had held a long MBS portfolio, 
it would have recorded a higher net investment income under U.S. GAAP, but would not 
have realized the gains generated by the MBS TBA dollar rolls. As the Company held 
MBS TBA dollar rolls, the net investment income was lower in 2004 by approximately 
$6 million; and 

-  investment income denominated in currencies that have appreciated, on average, against 
the U.S. dollar since December 31, 2004, has been converted into U.S. dollars at higher 
exchange rates. The average rate for the euro has increased by 3% against the U.S. dollar 
since 2004, the Canadian dollar increased by 8%, both the Swiss franc and the British 
pound increased by 2%, and the Japanese yen was fl at. Changes in average foreign 
exchange rates contributed approximately 1 point to the growth in net investment income 
for 2005.

Net investment income from fi xed maturities and short-term investments has increased 
compared to 2004 primarily due to the increase in the asset base resulting from the 
reinvestment of signifi cant cash fl ows from operations during the last two years.
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The Company has increased its allocation to equities and trading securities during 2005 
and this, compounded by the increase in the asset base, resulted in an increase in net 
investment income for these two categories of assets.

After incurring large catastrophic losses on the 2005 hurricanes, the Company received 
$549 million in October 2005 in the form of a loan of $400 million and newly issued 
common shares of $149 million, net of issuance costs. At December 31, 2005, a signifi cant 
portion of these funds was invested in cash equivalents and this contributed to the increase 
in the Company’s net investment income for this category of assets in 2005.

2004 over 2003 
Net investment income increased in 2004 compared to 2003 for two principal reasons:

-  the invested asset base grew signifi cantly since December 31, 2002, as a result of 
the Company’s positive cash fl ows from operations of $1,150 million for 2003 and 
$1,264 million for 2004; and 

-  investment income denominated in currencies that appreciated, on average, against the 
U.S. dollar during 2004, was converted into U.S. dollars at higher average exchange rates 
in 2004. The euro increased by 11%, on average, against the U.S. dollar, while the British 
pound increased by 12%, the Swiss franc, Japanese yen and Canadian dollar increased 
by 8%. Changes in average foreign exchange rates contributed approximately 4 points to 
the growth in net investment income for 2004.

The increase in net investment income in 2004 compared to 2003 was partially offset by 
the $6 million decrease of net investment income related to holding MBS TBA dollar rolls 
for a part of 2004.

Net investment income from fi xed maturities, equities, short-term investments, trading 
securities, and cash and cash equivalents, increased compared to 2003, primarily due to the 
increase in the asset base resulting from the reinvestment of signifi cant cash fl ows from 
operations during 2004 and 2003.

The decrease in investment income on funds held and other was primarily attributable to one 
life annuity treaty, which reported lower investment income during 2004 compared to 2003.

The increase in investment expenses in 2004 over 2003 was primarily a result of the 
Company’s larger asset base upon which expenses were incurred as well as costs 
associated with the internalization of the equity portfolio management.

2006 Outlook 
Current economic indicators continue to suggest moderate global economic growth. Based 
on the prevailing economic indicators, and assuming constant foreign exchange rates, 
the Company expects market interest rates to rise in the United States and to rise more 
modestly in Europe during 2006. Management expects that an increase in interest rates 
combined with the larger asset base at December 31, 2005, as well as expected positive 
cash fl ows from operations during 2006, should contribute to higher net investment income 
for the Company during 2006.
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Net Realized Investment Gains 
The components of net realized investment gains or losses for the years ended December 
31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, were as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

2005 2004 2003

Net realized investment gains on available 
 for sale securities, excluding other-than-
 temporary impairments  $ 193  $ 101  $ 94

Other-than-temporary impairments (8) (11) (31)

Net realized investment gains on 
 trading securities 8 8 11

Change in net unrealized investment 
 (losses) gains on trading securities
Change in net unrealized investment 
 (losses) gains on trading securities
Change in net unrealized investment 

(1) (2) 9

Net realized investment (losses) gains 
 on designated hedging activities — — (8)

Net realized and unrealized gains 
 on other invested assets 3 29 13

Other realized and unrealized 
 investment gains (losses) 12 (8) (1)

Total net realized investment gains  $ 207  $ 117  $ 87

Realized investment gains and losses are generally a function of multiple factors with the 
most signifi cant being the prevailing interest rates and equity market conditions, and the 
timing of disposition of available for sale fi xed maturities and equity securities, and charges 
for the recognition of other-than-temporary impairments in the Company’s investment 
portfolio. During the normal course of its operations, the Company bought and sold 
securities to take advantage of changing market conditions and to reposition its investment 
portfolio. Since most of the securities in the equity portfolio carried unrealized gains, the sale 
of securities generated realized investment gains and reduced the unrealized investment 
gains recorded in the shareholders’ equity section of the balance sheet. The realization of 
the unrealized market value appreciation or depreciation does not change the Company’s 
shareholders’ equity, as it merely transfers the gain or loss from the accumulated other 
comprehensive income section of the balance sheet to net income on the statement of 
operations and retained earnings on the balance sheet.

During the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company recorded 
other-than-temporary impairments of $8 million, $11 million and $31 million, respectively. 
Approximately 61% of the impairments recorded in 2005 related to securities of the 
industrial and manufacturing sector, while the balance of impairments was related to 
securities of the banking and fi nance sector. Approximately 48% of the impairments 
recorded in 2004 related to securities of the banking and fi nance sector, while the balance 
was spread over many sectors. Approximately 43% of the impairments recorded in 2003 
related to securities of the insurance and reinsurance sector, while the balance was spread 
over many sectors.
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Other Operating Expenses 
Other operating expenses for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, were 
$272 million, $271 million and $236 million, respectively, and were comprised primarily 
of personnel and infrastructure costs. Operating expenses represented 7.5% of total net 
premiums earned in 2005, 7.3% in 2004 and 6.7% in 2003.

Although operating expenses were nearly fl at in 2005 compared to 2004, increases in 
salaries, stock-based compensation, IT asset depreciation and rent and facilities totaling 
$22 million were offset by reductions in bonus accrual and consulting fees of $22 million. 
The ratio of operating expenses to net premiums earned increased in 2005 because net 
premiums earned decreased in 2005.

The increase in other operating expenses in 2004 compared to 2003 was the result of an 
increase in headcount, as well as the amortization of the capitalized cost of the Company’s 
reinsurance system, which was put into service during 2003. Additionally, changes in 
average foreign exchange rates contributed approximately 4 points to the growth of other 
operating expenses in 2004.

Other Income 
Other income for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, was $35 million, 
$17 million and $21 million, respectively, and primarily refl ected income on the Company’s 
ART contracts that were accounted for using the deposit accounting method or were 
considered to be derivatives. In 2005, 2004 and 2003, other income also included profi t of 
approximately $4 million, $6 million and $9 million, respectively, relating to a Non-life treaty 
that was accounted for using the deposit accounting method.

The increase in other income for 2005 compared to 2004 results primarily from the return 
to profi tability of the ART weather line, which had realized and unrealized losses in 2004 as 
a result of higher than average temperatures in Japan. The decrease in other income from 
2003 to 2004 resulted primarily from losses in the weather line in 2004 and the decrease 
in profi t on a Non-life treaty.

Financial Condition and Liquidity and Capital Resources 
Investments 
Total investments and cash were $9.6 billion at December 31, 2005, compared to 
$8.4 billion at December 31, 2004. The major factors infl uencing the increase in 2005 were:

-  net cash provided by operating activities of $1,032 million;
-  net proceeds from net issuance of the Company’s common shares of $102 million 

resulting from issuance of common shares under the Company’s equity plans and a 
public offering in October 2005 of $179 million, offset by payments for the repurchase of 
common shares under the Company’s share repurchase program of $77 million;

-  increase in the market value of the investment portfolio of $98 million;
-  issuance of the long-term debt of $400 million; offset by 
-  dividend payments on common and preferred shares totaling $119 million; and 
-  other factors primarily including the net negative infl uence of the effect of a stronger U.S 

dollar relative to the euro and other currencies as it relates to the conversion of invested 
assets and cash balances into U.S. dollars of approximately $332 million.
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The Company employs a prudent investment philosophy. It maintains a high-quality, well-
balanced and liquid portfolio having the dual objectives of optimizing current income 
and achieving capital appreciation. The Company’s invested assets are comprised of 
total investments and cash and accrued investment income. From a risk management 
perspective, the Company allocates its invested assets into two categories: liability funds 
and capital funds. Liability funds represent invested assets supporting the net reinsurance 
liabilities, defi ned as the Company’s operating and reinsurance liabilities net of reinsurance 
assets, and are invested entirely in high-quality fi xed income securities. The preservation of 
liquidity and protection of capital are the primary investment objectives for these assets. The 
portfolio managers are required to follow investment guidelines as to minimum ratings, and 
issuer and sector concentrations. Capital funds represent the capital of the Company and 
are invested to maximize total return, subject to risk assumption and portfolio diversifi cation 
guidelines, including issuer and sector concentration limitations. Capital funds may be 
invested in investment-grade fi xed income securities, below investment-grade bonds, 
convertible securities, and preferred and common stocks. The Company believes that an 
allocation of a portion of its investments to equities is both prudent and desirable as it helps 
to achieve broader asset diversifi cation (lower risk) and maximizes the portfolio’s total return 
over time.

The Company’s investment strategy allows, to a limited extent, the use of equity short 
sales, which represent the sales of securities not owned at the time of the sale. These 
short sales are incorporated within a market neutral strategy, which involves holding long 
equity securities and a close to equal dollar amount of offsetting short equity securities. The 
objective of the market neutral strategy is to neutralize any effects from the stock market as 
a whole and to generate absolute positive returns. The Company’s investment strategy also 
allows the use of derivative securities such as futures contracts, credit default swaps, written 
covered call options and designated foreign exchange forwards, subject to strict limitations. 
Derivative instruments may be used to replicate investment positions, to enhance investment 
performance or to manage market exposures and duration risk that would be allowed under 
the Company’s investment policy if implemented in other ways.

At December 31, 2005, the liability funds totaled $6.3 billion and were comprised of cash and 
cash equivalents, short-term investments, and AAA, AA and A rated fi xed income securities. 
The capital funds, which totaled $3.4 billion, were comprised of investment-grade fi xed 
income securities, below investment-grade bonds, convertible securities and equity securities. 
At December 31, 2005 and 2004, approximately 94% of the fi xed income securities were 
rated investment-grade (BBB- or higher) by Standard & Poor’s (or estimated equivalent).
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Approximately 96% of the invested assets currently held by the Company are publicly 
traded and, accordingly, market valuations for such securities are readily available. For those 
securities not publicly traded (4% of the Company’s invested assets or approximately 
$390 million), consisting of its investment in Channel Re and other investments in non-
publicly traded companies, private placement equity investments and other specialty asset 
classes, valuation techniques depend on the nature of the individual asset. The valuation 
techniques used by the Company’s investment managers are reviewed by the Company and 
are generally commensurate with standard valuation techniques for each asset class.

At December 31, 2005, fi xed maturities, short-term investments and cash and cash 
equivalents had an average yield to maturity at market of 4.5% compared to 3.8% at 
December 31, 2004, refl ecting the interest rate increases during 2005. At the same time, 
the duration of the Company’s investment portfolio shifted from 3.4 years at December 
31, 2004 to 3.3 years at December 31, 2005. During 2005, in anticipation of rising 
interest rates, Management kept the portfolio duration shorter than its neutral duration and 
increased the allocation of capital funds to equity securities. Both these steps contributed to 
the positive total return, while the stronger U.S. dollar during the year mitigated some of this 
positive performance. The Company’s investment portfolio generated a positive total return 
of 0.8% and 9.1% for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

For accounting purposes, the Company’s investment portfolio is categorized according 
to two distinct accounting classifi cations – available for sale and trading securities. For a 
description of the different accounting treatments afforded to these separate accounting 
classifi cations, see Note 2(f) to Consolidated Financial Statements.

At December 31, 2005, investments classifi ed as available for sale comprised approximately 
97% of the Company’s total portfolio (excluding cash and cash equivalents and other 
invested assets), with 3% being classifi ed as trading securities. Included in the available 
for sale category is the Company’s portfolio of fi xed maturities, comprised primarily of 
investment-grade securities issued by the U.S. government or U.S. government sponsored 
agencies, state and foreign governments, corporate debt securities, mortgage and asset-
backed securities and equity securities. In addition, as part of its investment strategy, the 
Company invests a small percentage of its portfolio in below investment-grade bonds, which 
are also classifi ed as available for sale.
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The cost, fair value, gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses on investments 
classifi ed as available for sale at December 31, 2005 and 2004, were as follows (in millions 
of U.S. dollars):

2005 Cost(1)

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses
Fair

Value

Fixed maturities

 - U.S. government  $ 923 $ 2 $ (10)  $ 915

 -  states or political subdivisions 
of states of the U.S. 6 — — 6

 - other foreign governments 1,678 34 (9) 1,703
 - corporate 2,558 37 (30) 2,565
 - mortgage/asset-backed securities 1,518 1 (21) 1,498
Total fi xed maturities 6,683 74 (70) 6,687
Short-term investments 231 — — 231
Equities 1,246 99 (11) 1,334
Total  $ 8,160 $ 173 $ (81)  $ 8,252

2004 Cost(1)

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses
Fair

Value

Fixed maturities

 - U.S. government  $ 516 $ 7 $ (1)  $ 522

 -  states or political subdivisions 
of states of the U.S. 5 — — 5

 - other foreign governments 1,863 43 (1) 1,905

 - corporate 2,732 68 (8) 2,792

 - mortgage/asset-backed securities 1,495 6 (2) 1,499

Total fi xed maturities 6,611 124 (12) 6,723

Short-term investments 29 — — 29

Equities 887 128 (4) 1,011

Total  $ 7,527 $ 252 $ (16)  $ 7,763
(1) Cost is amortized cost for fi xed maturities and short-term investments and original cost for equity securities, net 

of other-than-temporary impairments.

At December 31, 2005, the Company had gross unrealized losses on its fi xed maturities 
of $70 million, of which $66 million was attributable to investment-grade securities and 
$4 million was attributable to securities rated below investment-grade. The Company’s 
investment security with the largest unrealized loss position at December 31, 2005, 
for which an other-than-temporary impairment charge has not been taken, had a gross 
unrealized loss of $3.0 million, representing 1.9% of the amortized cost of the security, 
which is rated AAA. This unrealized loss, as well as a majority of the Company’s total 
unrealized losses on fi xed maturity securities, is due to changes in interest rates. Typically, 
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as interest rates rise, market values of fi xed income portfolios fall, and vice versa. The 
Company believes that these decreases in value are temporary under current accounting 
guidance, and additional analysis of individual securities for potential other-than-temporary 
impairments was carried out by the Company to validate its belief. As of December 31, 
2005 and 2004, Management believes that the Company had no signifi cant unrealized 
losses caused by other factors and circumstances, including an issuer’s specifi c corporate 
risk or due to industry or geographic risk, for which an other-than-temporary impairment 
charge has not been taken. Additionally, the Company has the intent and ability to retain 
such investments for a period of time suffi cient to allow for any recovery in fair value.

The following table presents the continuous periods during which the Company has held 
investment positions that were carried at an unrealized loss (excluding investments classifi ed 
as trading securities) at December 31, 2005 (in millions of U.S. dollars):

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Loss

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Loss

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Loss

Fixed maturities

 - U.S. government  $ 530 $ (6)  $ 162 $ (4)  $ 692 $ (10)

 -  states or political subdivisions of 
states of the U.S. 5 — 1 — 6 —

 - other foreign governments 910 (9) 2 — 912 (9)

 - corporate 1,093 (17) 367 (13) 1,460 (30)

 - mortgage/asset-backed securities 1,231 (18) 131 (3) 1,362 (21)

Total fi xed maturities 3,769 (50) 663 (20) 4,432 (70)

Short-term investments 227 — — — 227 —

Equities 453 (9) 55 (2) 508 (11)

Total  $ 4,449 $ (59)  $ 718 $ (22)  $ 5,167 $ (81)

The market value of the investment securities classifi ed as trading securities was $220 million 
and $108 million at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively. Included in 
the total market value of trading securities at December 31, 2005 was $85 million related to 
convertible fi xed income securities and $135 million related to equity securities. At December 
31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, the net unrealized investment gain on trading securities 
was approximately $10 million and $6 million, respectively.

Included in net payable for securities purchased at December 31, 2005 was $102 million of 
equity securities sold but not yet purchased, which represents sales of securities not owned 
at the time of the sale. The Company had no securities sold but not yet purchased prior to 
2005. Included in the change in net unrealized investment losses on trading securities of 
$1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, is a change in net unrealized investment 
losses on equity securities sold but not yet purchased of $3 million.
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Rating Distribution 
The following table provides a breakdown of the credit quality of the Company’s fi xed 
income securities at December 31, 2005:

Rating Category
% of Total Fixed

 Income Securities 

AAA 65%

AA 3%

A 15%

BBB 11%

Below investment-grade/unrated 6%

Maturity Distribution 
The distribution of available for sale fi xed maturities and short-term investments at 
December 31, 2005, by contractual maturity date is shown below (in millions of U.S. dollars). 
Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because certain borrowers have the 
right to call or prepay certain obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized Cost Fair Value

One year or less  $ 746 $ 745

More than one year through fi ve years 2,516 2,499

More than fi ve years through ten years 1,864 1,878

More than ten years 270 298

Subtotal 5,396 5,420

Mortgage/asset-backed securities 1,518 1,498

Total  $ 6,914 $ 6,918

The maturity distribution for those available for sale fi xed maturities and short-term 
investments that were in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2005, was as follows 
(in millions of U.S. dollars):

Amortized Cost Fair Value
Unrealized

Losses

One year or less  $ 602 $ 600 $ (2)

More than one year through fi ve years 1,765 1,737 (28)

More than fi ve years through ten years 933 916 (17)

More than ten years 46 44 (2)

Subtotal 3,346 3,297 (49)

Mortgage/asset-backed securities 1,383 1,362 (21)

Total  $ 4,729 $ 4,659 $ (70)
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Realized Gains and Losses 
Proceeds from the sale of investments classifi ed as available for sale for the years ended 
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, were $9,968.0 million, $7,299.4 million and 
$9,028.0 million, respectively. Realized investment gains and losses on securities classifi ed 
as available for sale for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, were as 
follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

2005 2004 2003

Gross realized gains  $ 294  $ 154  $ 132

Gross realized losses excluding 
 other-than-temporary impairments (101) (53) (38)

Other-than-temporary impairments (8) (11) (31)

Total net realized investment gains on 
 securities classifi ed as available for sale  $ 185  $ 90  $ 63

See Note 3(d) to Consolidated Financial Statements for a reconciliation between net 
realized investment gains on investments classifi ed as available for sale and net realized 
investment gains in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

As mentioned above, the Company’s portfolio managers have dual investment objectives 
of optimizing current income and achieving capital appreciation. To meet these objectives, 
it is often desirable to sell securities when opportunities for superior expected returns 
are identifi ed. Accordingly, recognition of realized gains and losses is considered by the 
Company to be a typical consequence of the ongoing investment management activities.

The Company recorded charges for other-than-temporary impairments relating to its 
investment portfolio in the aggregate amount of $8 million, $11 million and $31 million, for 
the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Typically, the Company 
considers impairment to have occurred when events specifi c to a particular issuer have 
occurred that are likely to prevent the Company from recovering its investment in the 
security. In the determination of other-than-temporary impairments, the Company considers 
several factors and circumstances, including the issuer’s overall fi nancial condition, the 
issuer’s credit and fi nancial strength ratings, general market conditions in the industry or 
geographic region in which the issuer operates, general economic and fi nancial market 
conditions, the length of time for which the fair value of an issuer’s securities remains 
below cost or amortized cost on a continuous basis, and factors that may raise doubt about 
the issuer’s ability to continue as a going concern. Other-than-temporary impairments are 
recorded as realized investment losses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, which 
reduces net income and net income per share. Temporary losses are recorded as unrealized 
investment losses, which do not impact net income and net income per share but reduce 
accumulated other comprehensive income, except for those related to trading securities, 
which are recorded immediately as realized losses in net income. (See Note 2(q) to 
Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1.) The 
adoption of FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1 is not expected to have a signifi cant impact on 
the net income or equity of the Company.
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Funds Held by Reinsured Companies (Cedants)
The Company writes certain business on a funds held basis. As of December 31, 2005 
and 2004, the Company recorded $971 million and $1,100 million, respectively, of funds 
held assets in its Consolidated Balance Sheets, representing 7% and 9%, respectively, of 
the Company’s total assets. Under such contractual arrangements, the cedant retains the 
net funds that would have otherwise been remitted to the Company and credits the net 
fund balance with investment income. In general, the purpose of the funds held balances 
is to provide the cedant with additional security that the Company will honor its obligations. 
The Company is subject to the credit risk of the cedant in the event of insolvency or the 
cedant’s failure to honor the value of the funds held balances for any other reason. However, 
the Company’s credit risk is somewhat mitigated by the fact that the Company generally 
has the contractual ability to offset any shortfall in the payment of the funds held balances 
with amounts owed by the Company to the cedant for losses payable and other amounts 
contractually due.

Approximately 61% of the funds held assets at December 31, 2005 earns investment 
income based upon a predetermined interest rate, either fi xed contractually at the inception 
of the contract or based upon a recognized market index (e.g., LIBOR). Interest rates at 
December 31, 2005, ranged from 1.5% to 6.4%, with the exception of one treaty, which 
earned 9.3%. Under these contractual arrangements, there are no specifi c assets linked to 
the funds held balances, and the Company is exposed only to the credit risk of the cedant.

With respect to the remainder of the funds held assets at December 31, 2005, the Company 
receives an investment return based upon either the results of a pool of assets held by the 
cedant, or the investment return earned by the cedant on its entire investment portfolio. 
The Company does not legally own or directly control the investments underlying its funds 
held assets and only has recourse to the cedant for the receivable balances and no claim to 
the underlying securities that support the balances. Decisions as to purchases and sales of 
assets underlying the funds held balances are made by the cedant; in some circumstances, 
investment guidelines regarding the minimum credit quality of the underlying assets may be 
agreed upon between the cedant and the Company as part of the reinsurance agreement, or 
the Company may participate in an investment oversight committee regarding the investment 
of the net funds, but investment decisions are not otherwise infl uenced by the Company.

Within this portion of the funds held assets, the Company has several annuity treaties, which 
are structured so that the return on the funds held balances is tied to the performance of 
an underlying group of assets held by the cedant, including fl uctuations in the market value 
of the underlying assets (one such treaty is a retrocessional agreement under which the 
Company receives more limited data than is generally received under a direct reinsurance 
agreement). In these arrangements, the objective of the reinsurance agreement is to provide 
for the covered longevity risk and to earn a net investment return on an underlying pool of 
assets greater than is contractually due to the annuity holders. While the Company is also 
exposed to the creditworthiness of the cedant, the risk of loss to the Company is somewhat 
mitigated, as the Company generally has the ability to offset a shortfall in the funds held 
assets with amounts owed to the cedant. The Company also has several property and 
casualty treaties in which the investment performance of the net funds held corresponds to 
the interest income on the assets held by the cedant; however, the Company is not directly 
exposed to the underlying credit risk of these investments, as they serve only as collateral 
for the Company’s receivables. That is, the amount owed to the Company is unaffected by 
changes in the market value of the investments underlying the funds.
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In those cases where the Company is exposed to the credit or interest rate risk of 
an underlying pool of assets, the Company has applied the guidance of Derivative 
Implementation Issue No. B36 “Embedded Derivatives: Modifi ed Coinsurance Arrangements 
and Debt Instruments That Incorporate Credit Risk Exposures That Are Unrelated or 
Only Partially Related to the Creditworthiness of the Obligor under those Instruments”. 
Accordingly, the Company has recognized as a realized gain or loss the value of the credit 
and/or interest rate derivative embedded within the funds held balance. In the case of the 
Company’s annuity contracts, there is also a resulting offsetting adjustment to deferred 
acquisition costs related to this business. At December 31, 2005, the cumulative value of 
such embedded derivatives was determined to be a gain of approximately $9 million, which 
is offset by an equivalent but opposite adjustment to deferred acquisition costs.

Unpaid losses and loss expenses 
The Company’s unpaid losses and loss expenses for its non-life operations are composed 
of the reserves for its Non-life and ART segments. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, 
the Company recorded gross non-life reserves for unpaid losses and loss expenses of 
$6,738 million and $5,767 million, respectively, and net non-life reserves for unpaid losses and 
loss expenses of $6,552 million and $5,614 million, respectively. During 2005, the Company 
incurred net non-life losses and loss expenses of $2,767 million and paid net non-life losses 
and loss expenses of $1,485 million. Additionally, the U.S. dollar was stronger against most 
European currencies during 2005 and this resulted in a reduction of the non-life reserves 
for unpaid losses and loss expenses of $344 million. The incurred losses for the year ended 
December 31, 2005 (after retrocession but before reinstatement premiums) included large 
catastrophic losses of $959 million of which $563 million was related to hurricane Katrina, 
$89 million was related to hurricane Rita, $178 million was related to hurricane Wilma, 
$66 million was related to the Central European fl oods and $63 million was related to 
European winterstorm Erwin. The non-life ratio of paid losses to net premiums earned was 
47% while the non-life ratio of paid losses to incurred losses was 54% for the year ended 
December 31, 2005. Policy benefi ts for life and annuity contracts were $1,224 million and 
$1,277 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The decrease of the life 
reserves in 2005 was principally due to the strengthening of the U.S. dollar against most 
European currencies which resulted in a reduction of policy benefi ts for life and annuity 
contracts of approximately $105 million while the life reserves in local currencies increased 
due to the growth of the life business.

The Company establishes loss reserves to cover the estimated liability for the payment of all 
losses and loss expenses incurred with respect to premiums earned on the contracts that 
the Company writes. Loss reserves do not represent an exact calculation of the liability. Loss 
reserves are estimates involving actuarial and statistical projections at a given time to refl ect 
the Company’s expectations of the costs of the ultimate settlement and administration 
of claims. Estimates of ultimate liabilities are contingent on many future events and the 
eventual outcome of these events may be different from the assumptions underlying the 
reserve estimates. Management believes that the recorded unpaid losses and loss expenses 
represent Management’s best estimate of the cost to settle the ultimate liabilities based on 
information available at December 31, 2005.
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The Company’s net reserves for unpaid losses and loss expenses include an estimate for its 
net ultimate liability for asbestos and environmental claims of $97 million and $92 million 
at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase in the net reserve for unpaid 
losses and loss expenses in 2005 is attributable to change in currency exchange rates 
offset by settlement of claims and was not the result of a change in the Company’s view of 
its ultimate liability for this business. Ultimate values for such claims cannot be estimated 
using traditional reserving techniques. There are signifi cant uncertainties in estimating the 
amount of the Company’s potential losses for these claims and these uncertainties are not 
likely to be resolved in the near future. The Company actively evaluates potential exposure 
to asbestos and environmental claims and establishes additional reserves as appropriate. 
The Company believes that it has made a reasonable provision for these exposures and is 
unaware of any specifi c issues that would materially affect its estimates.

Contractual obligations and commitments 
In the normal course of its business the Company is a party to a variety of contractual 
obligations as summarized below. These contractual obligations are considered by the 
Company when assessing its liquidity requirements and the Company is confi dent in its 
ability to meet all of its obligations. Contractual obligations at December 31, 2005, were as 
follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

Total < 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years > 5 years

Contractual obligations:

Long-term debt – principal  $ 620.0 $ — $ 220.0 $ 400.0 $ —

Long-term debt – interest 100.4 31.9 63.8 4.7 —

Operating leases 159.2 21.8 31.2 31.0 75.2

Other operating agreements 4.6 3.2 1.2 0.2 —

Contract fees under forward sale agreement 31.4 10.8 20.6 — —

Unpaid losses and loss expenses(1) 6,737.7 2,042.5 1,780.8 880.6 2,033.8

Other long-term liabilities:

 Series C cumulative preferred shares – principal(2) 290.0 — — — 290.0

 Series C cumulative preferred shares – dividends NA 19.6 39.2 39.2 19.6 per annum

 Series D cumulative preferred shares – principal(2) 230.0 — — — 230.0

 Series D cumulative preferred shares – dividends NA 15.0 29.9 29.9 15.0 per annum

 Trust preferred securities – principal(3) 200.0 — — — 200.0

 Trust preferred securities – interest NA 15.8 31.6 31.6 15.8 per annum

NA: not applicable 
(1) The Company’s unpaid losses and loss expenses represent Management’s best estimate of the cost to settle the ultimate liabilities based on information available 

as of December 31, 2005 and are not fi xed amounts payable pursuant to contractual commitments. The timing and amounts of actual claims payments related to 
these reserves might vary signifi cantly based on many factors including large individual losses as well as general market conditions.

(2) The Company’s Series C and Series D preferred shares are perpetual and have no mandatory redemption requirement. See Note 13 to Consolidated Financial 
Statements for further information.

(3) Neither the Trust that issued the securities nor PartnerRe Finance I Inc.(PartnerRe Finance), which owns the Trust, meets the consolidation requirements of 
FIN 46(R). Accordingly, the Company shows the related intercompany debt of $206.2 million on its Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Due to the limited nature of the information presented above, it should not be considered 
indicative of the Company’s liquidity or capital needs. See Liquidity, page 85.
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Credit Facilities 
In the normal course of its operations, the Company enters into agreements with fi nancial 
institutions to obtain unsecured credit facilities. As of December 31, 2005, the total amount 
of such credit facilities available to the Company was $858 million. These facilities are 
used primarily for the issuance of letters of credit, although a portion of these facilities may 
also be used for liquidity purposes. Under the terms of certain reinsurance agreements, 
irrevocable letters of credit were issued on an unsecured basis in the amount of $721 million 
at December 31, 2005, in respect of reported loss and unearned premium reserves.

Included in the total credit facilities available to the Company at December 31, 2005, is a 
$700 million fi ve-year syndicated, unsecured credit facility. In September 2005, the Company 
amended and restated its unsecured credit facility on substantially the same terms and 
conditions as the original facility of June 2004, with the exception that the tenor of the facility 
was extended to September 30, 2010, the addition of an accordion feature which enables 
the Company to potentially increase the available credit from $700 million to $1 billion and an 
increase in the minimum consolidated tangible net worth that the Company must maintain.

Some of the credit facilities contain customary default and cross default provisions and 
require that the Company maintain certain covenants. The Company’s breach of any of the 
covenants would result in an event of default, upon which the Company may be required to 
repay any outstanding borrowings and replace or cash collateralize letters of credit issued 
under these facilities. At December 31, 2005, the Company was not in breach of any of the 
covenants under its facilities.

Additionally, the syndicated unsecured credit facility allows for an adjustment to the level of 
pricing should the Company experience a change in its senior unsecured debt ratings. The 
pricing grid provides the Company greater fl exibility and simultaneously provides participants 
under the facility some price protection. As long as the Company maintains a minimum 
senior unsecured debt rating of BBB+ by Standard & Poor’s and Baa1 by Moody’s, the 
pricing on the facility will not change signifi cantly. The Company’s senior unsecured debt 
ratings are currently A and A2 by Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s, respectively.

Shareholders’ Equity and Capital Management 
Shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2005, was $3.1 billion, an 8% decrease compared 
to $3.4 billion at December 31, 2004. The major factors contributing to the decrease in 
shareholders’ equity in 2005 were:

- a net loss of $51 million;
-  a $60 million negative effect of the currency translation adjustment resulting from the 

translation of PartnerRe SA’s fi nancial statements into the U.S. dollar;
-  a $118 million decrease in net unrealized gains on investments, net of deferred taxes, 

recorded in equity resulting from changes in fair value due to the increase in interest 
rates, realization of a portion of these gains through sales of securities, as well as the 
strengthening of the U.S. dollar; and 

-  dividends declared on both the Company’s common and preferred shares of $118 million; 
offset by 

-  a net increase in common shares and additional paid-in capital of $88 million, due to the 
issuance of common shares under the Company’s equity plans and a public offering in 
October 2005 of $165 million, offset by the repurchase of common shares of $77 million 
under the Company’s share repurchase program.
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As part of its long-term strategy, the Company will continue to actively manage capital 
to support its operations throughout the reinsurance cycle and for the benefi t of the 
shareholders, subject to the ability to maintain strong ratings from the major rating agencies 
and the unquestioned ability to pay claims as they arise.

In May 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors approved an increase in the Company’s 
stock repurchase authorization of 3.5 million common shares, which effectively reinstated 
an authorized repurchase level of 5 million common shares under the prior repurchase 
authorization in May 2004. As of December 31, 2005, the Company has approximately 
4.3 million common shares remaining under its current share repurchase authorization of 
5 million common shares.

From the beginning of 2005 and until the industry experienced an unusual amount of large 
catastrophic losses in the third quarter of 2005, the Company repurchased in the open 
market 1,241,849 of its common shares, for a total cost of $75 million, during the fi rst nine 
months of 2005.

The third and fourth quarters of 2005 were unprecedented in terms of natural disasters, 
including hurricane Katrina, the largest insured event in history. Subsequent to those large 
losses, the Company entered into capital transactions to raise long-term debt and equity. In 
October 2005, the Company issued 2,448,980 common shares for proceeds of $149 million, 
net of underwriting discounts and other transaction costs. The Company will use the proceeds 
of this capital issuance for general corporate purposes. In addition, the Company entered into a 
loan agreement with Citibank, N.A. under which the Company has borrowed $400 million. The 
loan will mature on April 27, 2009 and bears interest quarterly at a fl oating rate of 3-month 
LIBOR plus 0.50%. The Company will not be permitted to prepay the loan prior to its maturity, 
and the loan is not callable or puttable by the lender other than upon an event of default. The 
Company also entered into a forward sale agreement to sell up to approximately 6.7 million 
of its common shares in the next three years. See Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements for a 
discussion on the forward sale agreement.

In December 2004, the Company repurchased 2 million of its shares under an accelerated 
share repurchase agreement for a total cost of approximately $126 million, including the 
fi nal settlement of the agreement. During 2004, the Company also repurchased in the open 
market an additional 913,800 of common shares for a total cost of $48 million.

During 2004, the Company issued $230 million of 6.5% Series D cumulative redeemable 
preferred shares (Series D preferred shares). A portion of the net proceeds from the 
sale was used to repurchase common shares under the accelerated share repurchase 
agreement. The remaining net proceeds were used for general corporate purposes. 
Dividends on the Series D preferred shares are payable quarterly and are cumulative. The 
Series D preferred shares have no stated maturity and are redeemable at the option of the 
Company at any time after November 15, 2009.

In 2003, the Company issued $290 million of 6.75% Series C cumulative redeemable 
preferred shares (Series C preferred shares). The Series C preferred shares have no stated 
maturity and are redeemable at the option of the Company at any time after May 8, 2008. 
The Company also has $200 million of capital in the form of trust preferred securities, which 
have a 30-year maturity with an option to extend to 49 years. The trust preferred securities 
are redeemable at the option of the Company, at any time after November 21, 2006. The trust 
preferred securities were issued out of a subsidiary of the Company’s U.S. operations that 



PartnerRe
Annual Report 2005

85

PartnerRe Ltd.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 
Results of Operation

does not meet the consolidation requirements of FIN 46(R). Accordingly, the Company refl ects 
the intercompany debt of $206.2 million associated with the issuance of these securities on 
its Consolidated Balance Sheets. For purposes of discussion, the Company refers to both the 
trust preferred securities and the related debt as the trust preferred securities.

The table below sets forth the capital structure of the Company at December 31, 2005 and 
2004 (in millions of U.S. dollars):

 2005  2004

Capital structure:

Long-term debt  $ 620 16%  $ 220 6%

Trust preferred securities (1) 200 5 200 5

6.75% Series C cumulative preferred shares, 
aggregate liquidation 290 7 290 8

6.5% Series D cumulative preferred shares, 
aggregate liquidation 230 6 230 6

Common shareholders’ equity 2,573 66 2,832 75

Total capital  $ 3,913 100%  $ 3,772 100%

(1) Neither the Trust that issued the securities nor PartnerRe Finance, which owns the Trust, meets the consolidation 
requirements of FIN 46(R). Accordingly, the Company shows the related intercompany debt of $206.2 million on 
its Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Liquidity 
Liquidity is a measure of the Company’s ability to access suffi cient cash fl ows to meet 
the short-term and long-term cash requirements of its business operations. Management 
believes that its signifi cant cash fl ows and high quality liquid investment portfolio will 
provide suffi cient liquidity for the foreseeable future. Cash fl ows from operations for 2005 
decreased to $1,032 million from $1,264 million in 2004. This decrease in cash fl ows is 
primarily attributable to a lower volume of premiums received and higher paid losses in 
2005 compared to 2004. The increase in paid losses relates to payments on 2004 losses, 
including the Atlantic hurricanes, made in 2005. The decrease in cash fl ows is partially 
offset by an increase in cash receipts related to the increase in net investment income 
of 22% in 2005 compared to 2004. The growth in net investment income is a result of 
cumulative cash fl ows added to the portfolio over the past year.

The Company is a holding company with no operations or signifi cant assets other than 
the capital stock of the Company’s subsidiaries and other intercompany balances. The 
Company has cash outfl ows in the form of operating expenses, interest payments on the 
long-term debt, dividends to both common and preferred shareholders and from time to 
time cash outfl ows for the repurchase of its common shares under the share repurchase 
program. Corporate expenses were $51 million, common dividends paid were $84 million 
in the form of quarterly dividends of $0.38 per common share and preferred dividends 
paid were $35 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. As the Company entered 
into a new loan agreement in October 2005 to borrow $400 million, the Company expects 
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to pay a total of approximately $19 million of interest per year on this long-term debt, 
assuming the same interest rate as December 31, 2005. However, the Company expects 
that investment income on the loan proceeds will largely offset the interest expense 
on the loan. On February 6, 2006, the Company announced that it was increasing its 
quarterly dividend to $0.40 per common share or approximately $91 million in total for 
2006, assuming a constant number of common shares and a constant dividend rate and 
approximately $35 million in dividends for preferred shareholders. Since the Company’s 
inception in 1993, the Company has increased common share dividends every year, 
representing a 12% compound annual growth rate over the period.

The Company relies primarily on cash dividends and payments from Partner Reinsurance, 
PartnerRe SA and PartnerRe U.S. to pay the operating expenses, interest expense, 
shareholder dividends and other obligations of the holding company that may arise from time 
to time. The Company expects future dividends and other permitted payments from these 
subsidiaries to be the principal source of its funds to pay expenses and dividends. Although 
the payment of dividends by the reinsurance subsidiaries to the Company is limited under 
Bermuda and French laws and certain insurance statutes of various U.S. states in which 
PartnerRe U.S. is licensed to transact business, there are currently no signifi cant restrictions 
on the payment of dividends by the reinsurance subsidiaries, except for PartnerRe U.S. 
that has a negative statutory earned surplus and may not pay cash dividends without prior 
regulatory approval. (See Note 11 to Consolidated Financial Statements.)

The reinsurance subsidiaries of the Company depend upon cash fl ows from the collection 
of premiums as well as investment income and proceeds from the sales and maturities of 
investments to meet their obligations. Cash outfl ows are in the form of claims payments, 
operating expenses as well as dividend payments to the holding company, and additionally, 
in the case of PartnerRe U.S. Holdings, interest payments on the long-term debt and the 
trust preferred securities. PartnerRe U.S. Holdings and its subsidiaries have $220 million in 
outstanding third party debt as well as $200 million of trust preferred securities outstanding. 
PartnerRe U.S. Holdings and its subsidiaries have paid interest of $29 million on the long-
term debt and the trust preferred securities in 2005.

Historically, the operating subsidiaries of the Company have generated suffi cient cash 
fl ows to meet all of their obligations. Because of the inherent volatility of the business 
written by the Company, the seasonality in the timing of payments by cedants, the irregular 
timing of loss payments, the impact of a change in interest rates on the investment returns 
as well as seasonality in coupon payment dates for fi xed income securities, cash fl ows 
from operating activities may vary signifi cantly between periods. The Company expects 
that annual positive cash fl ows from operating activities will be suffi cient to cover claims 
payments through 2006, absent a series of unusual catastrophic events. In the event that 
paid losses accelerate beyond the ability to fund such payments from the operating cash 
fl ows, the Company would need to liquidate a portion of its investment portfolio or arrange 
for fi nancing. The Company expects a decrease in cash fl ows from operations in 2006 
compared to 2005 as the Company expects an increase in paid losses in 2006 resulting 
primarily from payments for the large 2005 catastrophic loss events, the majority of which 
are expected to be paid in 2006. Notwithstanding, the Company expects to continue to 
generate positive operating cash fl ows in 2006.
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The Company and its subsidiaries have access to a revolving line of credit of up to 
$350 million as part of the Company’s $700 million syndicated unsecured credit facility. 
As of December 31, 2005, there were no borrowings under this line of credit.

Financial strength ratings and senior unsecured debt ratings represent the opinions of 
rating agencies on the Company’s capacity to meet its obligations. Some of the Company’s 
reinsurance treaties contain special funding and termination clauses that are triggered in 
the event the Company or one of its subsidiaries is downgraded by one of the major rating 
agencies to levels specifi ed in the treaties, or the Company’s capital is signifi cantly reduced. 
If such an event were to happen, the Company would be required, in certain instances, 
to post collateral in the form of letters of credit and/or trust accounts against existing 
outstanding losses, if any, related to the treaty. In a limited number of instances, the subject 
treaties could be cancelled retroactively or commuted by the cedant and might affect the 
Company’s ability to write business.

The following are the Company’s claims paying and fi nancial strength ratings at December 
31, 2005:

Standard & Poor’s  AA-/stable

Moody’s  Aa3/negative outlook

A.M. Best  A+/stable

Fitch  AA/stable

The following are the Company’s senior unsecured debt ratings at December 31, 2005:

Standard & Poor’s  A/stable

Moody’s  A2/negative outlook

In the event of a downgrade in ratings, the Company’s ability to write business and to access 
the capital markets could be impacted. Additionally, the syndicated unsecured credit facility 
allows for an adjustment to the level of pricing should the Company experience a change in 
its senior unsecured debt ratings.

The long-term debt and capital securities issued by the Company and its subsidiaries 
contain various customary default, cross payment and acceleration provisions. These include, 
but are not limited to, failure to make interest and principal payments, breaches of various 
covenants, payment defaults or acceleration of indebtedness, certain events of bankruptcy 
and changes in control of the Company. At December 31, 2005, the Company was in 
compliance with all required covenants, and no conditions of default related to any of the 
Company’s debt or capital securities existed.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
In October 2005, the Company entered into a forward sale agreement under which it 
will sell approximately 6.7 million of its common shares to an affi liate of Citigroup Global 
Markets Inc., which affi liate is referred to as the forward counterparty. Under the forward sale 
agreement, the Company will deliver common shares to the forward counterparty on one 
or more settlement dates chosen by the Company over the next three years. The purchase 
price the Company will receive from the forward counterparty will vary depending upon the 
market price of its common shares over a 40 trading day period surrounding the maturity of 
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the forward sale agreement in three years, subject to a maximum price per share of $79.67 
and a minimum price per share of $59.45. If the Company elects to settle all or a portion of 
the forward sale agreement prior to its maturity, the Company will deliver common shares to 
the forward counterparty and will initially receive the present value of the minimum price per 
share, and the remaining payment, if any, due to the Company will be made at maturity of 
the agreement based on the excess of the market price of the Company’s common shares 
over the minimum price per share at maturity of the contract. Settlement of the forward 
sale agreement may be accelerated by the forward counterparty upon the occurrence of 
certain events, and the maximum and minimum purchase prices will be reduced or increased 
quarterly depending on the amount of the Company’s dividends.

Currency 
The Company’s reporting currency is the U.S. dollar. The Company has exposure to foreign 
currency risk due both to its ownership of PartnerRe SA, whose functional currency is 
the euro and to PartnerRe SA and Partner Reinsurance (including the Swiss branch) 
underwriting reinsurance exposures and collecting premiums in currencies other than the 
U.S. dollar and holding certain net assets in such currencies. The Company’s most signifi cant 
foreign currency exposure is to the euro.

During 2005, the value of the U.S. dollar strengthened approximately 14% against the Swiss 
franc, 13% against the euro and the Japanese yen, 11% against the British pound and 
weakened 3% against the Canadian dollar. Since a large proportion of the Company’s assets 
and liabilities is expressed in these currencies, there was a net decrease in the U.S. dollar 
value of the assets and liabilities denominated in Swiss franc, euro, Japanese yen and British 
pound and an increase for assets and liabilities denominated in Canadian dollar in 2005.

Net foreign exchange gains and losses amounted to a loss of $4 million, a gain of $17 million
and a gain of $12 million at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses are a function of (i) the relative value of the U.S. dollar against 
other currencies in which the Company does business, (ii) the difference between the 
period-end foreign exchange rates which are used to revalue the balance sheet and the 
average foreign exchange rates which are used to revalue the income statement, (iii) the 
impact of the Company’s foreign currency hedging strategy, and (iv) the classifi cation in the 
Company’s statements of operations of the foreign exchange gain or loss resulting from 
revaluing PartnerRe SA’s transactions into that subsidiary’s functional currency, the euro. In 
accordance with SFAS 52 “Foreign Currency Translation”, the foreign exchange gain or loss 
resulting from the subsequent translation of this subsidiary’s fi nancial statements (expressed 
in the euro functional currency) into U.S. dollars, is classifi ed in the currency translation 
adjustment account, which is a balance sheet shareholders’ equity account.

Effects of Infl ation 
The effects of infl ation are considered implicitly in pricing and estimating reserves for unpaid 
losses and loss expenses. The actual effects of infl ation on the results of operations of the 
Company cannot be accurately known until claims are ultimately settled.

New Accounting Pronouncements 
FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1 
In November 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FSP Nos. 
FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its 
Application to Certain Investments” (FSP). The FSP addresses the determination as to when 
an investment is considered impaired, whether that impairment is other than temporary, 
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and the measurement of an impairment loss by reference to various existing accounting 
literature. The FSP replaces the guidance set forth in paragraphs 10–18 of EITF 03-1, 
“The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain 
Investments,” with references to existing other-than-temporary impairment guidance. The 
FSP supersedes EITF D-44, “Recognition of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment upon the 
Planned Sale of a Security Whose Cost Exceeds Fair Value” and clarifi es that an investor 
should recognize an impairment loss no later than when the impairment is deemed other-
than-temporary, even if a decision to sell has not been made.

This new guidance will be applied prospectively and will be effective for other-than-
temporary impairment analysis conducted in periods beginning after December 15, 2005. 
The adoption of the FSP is not expected to have a signifi cant impact on the equity or net 
income of the Company.

SFAS 123(R)
In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement No. 123(R)(Revised 2004) “Share-Based 
Payment” (SFAS 123(R)). This statement will require compensation costs related to share-
based payment transactions to be recognized as an expense in the fi nancial statements. The 
amount of compensation cost will be measured based on the grant-date fair value of the 
awards issued and will be recognized over the period that an employee provides services in 
exchange for the award or the requisite service period. The grant-date fair value of employee 
share options and similar instruments will be estimated using option-pricing models adjusted 
for the unique characteristics of the instruments. SFAS 123(R) will apply to all awards 
granted after the required effective date and to awards modifi ed, repurchased or cancelled 
after that date. SFAS 123(R) will be effective in periods that begin after December 15, 2005. 
The Company will adopt SFAS 123(R) as of January 1, 2006. The adoption of SFAS 123(R) 
is not expected to have a signifi cant impact on the equity or net income of the Company.

SFAS 155 
In February 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 155 “Accounting for Certain Hybrid 
Financial Instruments - an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140” (SFAS 
155). This Statement amends SFAS 133 and SFAS No. 140 “Accounting for Transfers and 
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities” (SFAS 140). This Statement 
resolves issues addressed in Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. D1 “Application of 
Statement 133 to Benefi cial Interests in Securitized Financial Assets” and permits fair value 
remeasurement for any hybrid fi nancial instrument that contains an embedded derivative 
that otherwise would require bifurcation; clarifi es which interest-only strips and principal-only 
strips are not subject to the requirements of SFAS 133; establishes a requirement to evaluate 
interests in securitized fi nancial assets to identify interests that are freestanding derivatives or 
that are hybrid fi nancial instruments that contain an embedded derivative requiring bifurcation; 
clarifi es that concentrations of credit risk in the form of subordination are not embedded 
derivatives; and amends SFAS 140 to eliminate the prohibition on a qualifying special-
purpose entity from holding a derivative fi nancial instrument that pertains to a benefi cial 
interest other than another derivative fi nancial instrument. SFAS 155 will be effective in 
periods that begin after September 15, 2006. The Company is currently evaluating the impact 
of the adoption of SFAS 155, if any, on its consolidated equity or net income.

See Note 2(q) to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of new accounting 
pronouncements previously adopted by the Company.
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Overview 
Management believes that the Company is principally exposed to four types of market related 
risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and equity price risk. How these risks 
relate to the Company, and the process used to manage them, is discussed below.

As discussed previously in this report, the Company’s investment philosophy distinguishes 
between assets that are generally matched against the estimated net reinsurance assets 
and liabilities (liability funds) and those assets that represent shareholder capital (capital 
funds). At December 31, 2005, liability funds represented 65% (or $6.3 billion) of the 
Company’s total invested assets. Liability funds are invested in a way that generally 
matches them to the corresponding liabilities in both duration and currency composition. 
This procedure seeks to protect the Company against changes in interest rates and foreign 
exchange rates. As the focus of this discussion is to identify risk exposures that impact 
the market value of assets alone, it is important for the reader to recognize that the risks 
discussed herein are signifi cantly mitigated to the extent that the Company’s investment 
strategy allows market forces to infl uence the economic valuation of both assets and 
liabilities in generally the same way.

At December 31, 2005, capital funds represented 35% (or $3.4 billion) of the Company’s 
total invested assets. These assets represent shareholders’ capital and they are invested 
in a diversifi ed portfolio that has the objective of maximizing investment return, subject to 
prudent risk constraints. Capital funds contain most of the asset classes typically viewed 
as offering a higher risk, higher return profi le such as common stock, convertible and 
high-yield bonds, private equity investments and real estate, in addition to high-quality 
investment-grade securities. The Company’s investment philosophy is to reduce foreign 
currency risk on capital funds by investing primarily in U.S. dollar denominated investments. 
In considering the market risk of capital funds, it is important to recognize the benefi ts of 
portfolio diversifi cation. Although these asset classes in isolation may introduce more risk 
into the portfolio, market forces have a tendency to infl uence each class in different ways 
and at different times. Consequently, the aggregate risk introduced by a portfolio of these 
assets should be less than might be estimated by summing the individual risks.

The Company’s investment strategy allows the use of derivative securities, subject to strict 
limitations. Derivative instruments may be used to hedge market risk, to enhance investment 
performance, or to replicate investment positions or market exposures that would be allowed 
under the Company’s investment policy if implemented in other ways. The use of fi nancial 
leverage, whether achieved through derivatives or margin borrowing, requires approval from 
the Board of Directors. The Company also imposes a high standard for the credit quality 
of counterparties in all investment derivative transactions. (See Note 2(k) and Note 2(l) to 
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional disclosures concerning derivatives.)

The following comments address those areas where the Company believes it has exposure 
to material market risk in its operations.

Interest Rate Risk 
The Company’s fi xed income portfolio is exposed to interest rate risk. Fluctuations in interest 
rates have a direct impact on the market valuation of these securities. As interest rates rise, 
market values of fi xed income portfolios fall, and vice versa. The Company manages interest 
rate risk on liability funds by constructing bond portfolios in which the economic impact of a 
general interest rate shift is comparable to the impact on the related liabilities. This process 
involves matching the duration of the investment portfolio to the estimated duration of the 
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liabilities. For loss reserves and policy benefi ts related to non-life and traditional life business, 
the estimated duration of the Company’s liabilities is based on projected claims payout 
patterns. For policy benefi ts related to annuity business, the Company estimates duration 
based on its commitment to annuitants. The Company believes that this matching process 
mitigates the overall interest rate risk on an economic basis.

While this matching of duration insulates the Company from the economic impact of interest 
rate changes, it does impact the net reported U.S. GAAP equity of the Company. The 
Company’s liabilities are carried at their nominal value, which is not adjusted for changes 
in interest rates; however, the Company’s invested assets are carried at fair market value, 
which is adjusted for such changes. As a result, a decrease in interest rates will result in an 
increase in the fair value of the Company’s investments and a corresponding increase, net 
of applicable taxes, to the Company’s equity. An increase in interest rates would have the 
opposite effect.

As discussed above, a portion of the fi xed income portfolio is designated as capital funds. 
The Company manages the exposure to interest rate volatility on capital funds by choosing a 
duration profi le that it believes will optimize the risk-reward relationship.

At December 31, 2005, the Company held approximately $1,498 million of its total invested 
assets in mortgage/asset-backed securities. These assets are exposed to prepayment risk, 
the adverse impact of which is more evident in a declining interest rate environment.

At December 31, 2005, the Company estimates that a 100 basis point increase or decrease 
in interest rates (across all currencies) would result in a $261 million decrease or increase, 
respectively, in the market value of its fi xed income portfolio (including mortgage-related 
securities). This change does not take into account taxes or the corresponding decrease 
or increase, respectively, in the economic value of its reinsurance liabilities, which, as noted 
above, would substantially offset the effect on invested assets as an economic matter, 
although the offset would not be refl ected in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.

As noted above, the Company strives to match the foreign currency exposure in its fi xed 
income portfolio to its multicurrency liabilities. The Company believes that this matching 
process creates a diversifi cation benefi t. Consequently, the exact market value effect of a 
change in interest rates will depend on which countries experience interest rate changes 
and the foreign currency mix of the Company’s fi xed income portfolio at the time of the 
interest rate changes. See Foreign Currency Risk.

Interest rate movements also affect the economic value of the Company’s outstanding debt 
obligations and preferred securities in the same way that they affect the Company’s fi xed 
income investments, and this can result in a liability whose economic value is different from 
the value reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company believes that the 
economic fair values and carrying values of its outstanding fi xed-rate debt and preferred 
securities at December 31, 2005, were as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

Carrying Value Fair Value

Long-term debt  $ 620  $ 616

Trust preferred securities (1) 200 204

Series C cumulative preferred shares 290 280

Series D cumulative preferred shares 230 216

(1) Neither the Trust that issued the securities nor PartnerRe Finance, which owns the Trust, meets the consolidation 
requirements of FIN 46(R). Accordingly, the Company shows the related intercompany debt of $206.2 million on 
its Consolidated Balance Sheets. 
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Fair value of the long-term debt has been calculated as the present value of estimated 
future cash fl ows using a discount rate refl ective of current market interest rates. For the 
Company’s trust preferred securities, Series C cumulative preferred shares and Series D 
cumulative preferred shares, fair value is based on quoted market prices, while carrying value 
is based on the liquidation value of the securities.

Foreign Currency Risk 
Through its multinational reinsurance operations, the Company conducts business in a 
variety of non-U.S. currencies, with the principal exposures being the euro, the British 
pound, the Swiss franc, the Canadian dollar and the Japanese yen. Assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are exposed to changes in foreign exchange rates. As 
the Company’s reporting currency is the U.S. dollar, foreign exchange rate fl uctuations may 
materially impact the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and fi nancial 
position. However, the Company employs several strategies to manage its exposure to 
foreign currency exchange risk.

Even though the Company is able to match its liability funds against its insurance-related 
liabilities both by currency and duration, resulting in a natural hedge, it does enter into 
designated hedges to protect the value of its investment portfolio. The Company does not 
maintain invested assets in currencies for which its liability exposures are not material or 
in countries where it is unable or impractical to maintain investments. In such cases, the 
Company does not have such a natural hedge and is exposed to foreign currency risk. 
However, the Company does not believe that the foreign currency risks corresponding to 
these unhedged positions are material. For the non-U.S. dollar currencies for which the 
Company deems the liability exposures to be material, the Company employs a hedging 
strategy utilizing derivative fi nancial instruments, as appropriate, to ensure that its liability 
funds are matched by currency. To the extent that the Company has net asset positions 
invested in non-U.S. dollar currencies, forward currency contracts and other derivatives 
may be used to hedge these non-U.S. dollar currency exposures. (See Note 2(k) to 
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about the Company’s currency 
hedging activities.)

As a second strategy, the Company maintains capital funds primarily in U.S. dollar 
investments. An additional factor mitigating the Company’s foreign currency risk is the 
ongoing nature of its reinsurance operations. Cash receipts in foreign currencies from 
premiums can be used to pay claims and expenses incurred in the same currency.

At December 31, 2005, approximately 61% of the Company’s liability funds were in U.S. 
dollar denominated instruments and 39% were non-U.S. dollar denominated investments, 
while the Company’s unpaid losses and loss expenses were approximately 55% 
denominated in U.S. dollar and 45% were non-U.S. dollar reserves.
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The table below summarizes the Company’s gross and net exposure on its December 31, 
2005 Consolidated Balance Sheet to foreign currency as well as the associated foreign 
currency derivatives the Company has put in place to manage this exposure (in millions of 
U.S. dollars):

euro GBP CAD CHF JPY Other Total (1)

Invested assets  $ 1,773  $ 342  $ 446  $ 27  $ 2  $ 161  $ 2,751 

Other net liabilities (1,636) (237) (393) (87) (35) (409) (2,797)

Total foreign currency risk 137 105 53 (60) (33 ) (248) (46 )

Total derivative amount 237 (99) 48 99 36 257 578

Net foreign currency exposure  $ 374  $ 6  $ 101  $ 39  $ 3  $ 9  $ 532 
(1) As the U.S. dollar is the Company’s reporting currency, there is no currency risk attached to the U.S. dollar and it is excluded from this table. The U.S. dollar 

accounted for the difference between the Company’s total foreign currency risk in this table and the invested assets and other net liabilities on the Company’s 
Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

The above numbers include the Company’s investment in PartnerRe SA, whose functional 
currency is the euro, and its Canadian branch, whose functional currency is the Canadian 
dollar, both of which the Company does not hedge, partially offset by net short exposures in 
certain currencies.

Assuming all other variables are held constant and disregarding any tax effects, a 10% 
change in the U.S. dollar relative to the other currencies held by the Company would result 
in a $53 million change in the net assets held by the Company, inclusive of the effect of the 
derivative hedges.

Credit Risk 
The Company has exposure to credit risk primarily as a holder of fi xed income securities. 
The Company controls this exposure by emphasizing investment-grade credit quality in the 
fi xed income securities it purchases. At December 31, 2005, approximately 65% of the 
Company’s fi xed income portfolio was rated AAA (or equivalent rating), 83% was rated 
A- or better and 6% of the Company’s fi xed income portfolio was rated below investment 
grade. The Company believes this high-quality concentration signifi cantly reduces its 
exposure to credit risk on fi xed income investments to an acceptable level. At December 
31, 2005, the Company is not exposed to any signifi cant credit concentration risk on its 
investments, excluding debt securities issued by the U.S. and other AAA-rated sovereign 
governments. The Company keeps cash and cash equivalents in several banks and may 
keep up to $500 million, excluding custodial accounts, at any point in time in any one bank.

To a lesser extent, the Company also has credit risk exposure as a party to foreign currency 
forward contracts and other derivative contracts. To mitigate this risk, the Company monitors 
its exposure by counterparty and ensures that counterparties to these contracts are high-
credit-quality international banks or counterparties. These contracts are generally of short 
duration (approximately 90 days) and settle on a net basis, which means that the Company 
is exposed to the movement of one currency against the other as opposed to the notional 
amount of the contracts. At December 31, 2005, the Company’s absolute notional value 
of foreign exchange forward contracts was $1,172 million while the net value of those 
contracts was a payable of $3 million. To mitigate this risk, the Company monitors its 
exposure by counterparty and ensures that counterparties to these contracts are high-
credit-quality international banks or counterparties.
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The Company is also exposed to credit risk in its underwriting operations, most notably in 
the credit/surety line and in the business written by the Company’s ART operations. Loss 
experience in these lines of business is cyclical and is affected by the state of the general 
economic environment. The Company provides its clients in these lines of business with 
reinsurance protection against credit deterioration, defaults or other types of fi nancial non-
performance of or by the underlying credits that are the subject of the reinsurance provided 
and, accordingly, the Company is exposed to the credit risk of those credits. As with all of the 
Company’s business, these risks are subject to rigorous underwriting and pricing standards. 
In addition, the Company strives to mitigate the risks associated with these credit-sensitive 
lines of business through the use of risk management techniques such as risk diversifi cation, 
careful monitoring of risk aggregations and accumulations and, at times, through the use of 
retrocessional reinsurance protection and the purchase of credit default swaps.

The Company is subject to the credit risk of its cedants in the event of their insolvency or 
their failure to honor for any other reason the value of the funds held balances due to the 
Company. However, the Company’s credit risk is mitigated by the fact that the Company 
generally has the contractual ability to offset any shortfall in the payment of the funds 
held balances with amounts owed by the Company to cedants for losses payable and 
other amounts contractually due. Funds held balances for which the Company receives 
an investment return based upon either the results of a pool of assets held by the cedant 
or the investment return earned by the cedant on its investment portfolio are exposed to 
an additional layer of credit risk. The Company is also exposed to a limited extent to the 
underlying fi nancial market risk of the pool of assets, inasmuch as the underlying policies 
may have guaranteed minimum returns.

The Company has exposure to credit risk as it relates to its trade balances receivable, 
namely reinsurance balances receivable and reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpaid 
losses. Reinsurance balances receivable from the Company’s clients at December 31, 2005, 
were $1,494 million, including balances both currently due and accrued. The Company 
believes that credit risk exposure related to these balances is mitigated by several factors, 
including but not limited to, credit checks performed as part of the underwriting process and 
monitoring of aged receivable balances. In addition, as the vast majority of its reinsurance 
agreements permit the Company the right to offset premiums receivable from the clients 
against losses payable to them, the Company believes that the credit risk in this area is 
substantially reduced.

The Company does not rely heavily on retrocessional reinsurance, but does require its 
reinsurers to have adequate fi nancial strength. The Company evaluates the fi nancial condition 
of its reinsurers and monitors its concentration of credit risk on an ongoing basis. Provisions 
are made for amounts considered potentially uncollectible. The balance of reinsurance 
recoverable on paid and unpaid losses was $218 million and the amount of the allowance 
provided for uncollectible reinsurance recoverable was $14 million at December 31, 2005.
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Equity Price Risk 
The Company invests a portion of its capital funds in marketable equity securities 
classifi ed as available for sale ($1,334 million at December 31, 2005). The Company 
also holds marketable equity securities classifi ed as trading securities ($135 million at 
December 31, 2005). These equity investments are exposed to equity price risk, defi ned 
as the potential for loss in market value due to a decline in equity prices. Net payable 
for securities purchased includes equity securities sold but not yet purchased in the 
amount of $102 million at December 31, 2005, which represent sales of securities not 
owned at the time of sale. These obligations, which consist of the obligation to purchase 
the securities arising from such transactions, are also exposed to equity price risk. The 
Company reviews these assets on a regular basis to ensure that diversifi cation strategies 
to manage this risk continue to be in place. The Company believes that the effects of 
diversifi cation and the relatively small size of the existing investment in equities relative 
to total investments mitigate its exposure to equity price risk. The Company estimates 
that its equity investment portfolio has a beta versus the S&P 500 Index of approximately 
0.84. Beta measures the response of an individual stock’s performance relative to a 
market return, where a beta of 1 would be an equivalent return to the index. Given the 
estimated beta for the Company’s portfolio, a 10% movement in the S&P 500 would 
result in an approximately 8.4% (or approximately $118 million without taking into account 
taxes) increase or decrease in the market value of the Company’s equity portfolio, or 
approximately 1.2% and 3.8% increase or decrease of the total invested assets and 
shareholders’ equity of the Company, respectively.
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PartnerRe Ltd.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars, except parenthetical share data)

December 31,
2004 

December 31,
2005 Assets

Investments and cash:

$ 6,723,580 $ 6,686,822 Fixed maturities, available for sale, at fair value (amortized cost: 2005, $6,682,243; 2004, $6,611,683)

28,694 230,933 Short-term investments, available for sale, at fair value (amortized cost: 2005, $231,442; 2004, $28,691)

1,010,777 1,334,374 Equities, available for sale, at fair value (cost: 2005, $1,246,192; 2004, $887,006)

108,402 220,311 Trading securities, at fair value (cost: 2005, $210,432; 2004, $102,371)

436,003 1,001,378 Cash and cash equivalents, at fair value, which approximates amortized cost

90,268 104,920 Other invested assets

8,397,724 9,578,738 Total investments and cash

151,871 143,548 Accrued investment income

1,522,989 1,493,507 Reinsurance balances receivable

183,149 217,948 Reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpaid losses

1,100,107 970,614 Funds held by reinsured companies

409,332 437,741 Deferred acquisition costs

299,408 289,459 Deposit assets

81,235 87,667 Net tax assets

429,519 429,519 Goodwill

104,564 95,389 Other

$ 12,679,898 $ 13,744,130 Total assets

Liabilities

$ 5,766,629 $ 6,737,661 Unpaid losses and loss expenses

1,277,101 1,223,871 Policy benefi ts for life and annuity contracts

1,194,778 1,136,233 Unearned premiums

166,218 127,607 Reinsurance balances payable

2,439 25,110 Ceded premiums payable

21,875 18,910 Funds held under reinsurance treaties

344,202 333,820 Deposit liabilities

220,000 620,000 Long-term debt

1,580 93,318 Net payable for securities purchased

127,026 128,627 Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other

206,186 206,186 Debt related to trust preferred securities

9,328,034 10,651,343 Total liabilities

Shareholders’ Equity

54,854 56,730 Common shares (par value $1.00, issued and outstanding: 2005, 56,730,195; 2004, 54,854,398)

11,600 11,600
Series C cumulative preferred shares (par value $1.00, issued and outstanding: 2005 and 2004, 
11,600,000; aggregate liquidation preference: 2005 and 2004, $290,000,000)
Series C cumulative preferred shares (par value $1.00, issued and outstanding: 2005 and 2004, 
11,600,000; aggregate liquidation preference: 2005 and 2004, $290,000,000)
Series C cumulative preferred shares (par value $1.00, issued and outstanding: 2005 and 2004, 

9,200 9,200
Series D cumulative preferred shares (par value $1.00, issued and outstanding: 2005 and 2004, 
9,200,000; aggregate liquidation preference: 2005 and 2004, $230,000,000)
Series D cumulative preferred shares (par value $1.00, issued and outstanding: 2005 and 2004, 
9,200,000; aggregate liquidation preference: 2005 and 2004, $230,000,000)
Series D cumulative preferred shares (par value $1.00, issued and outstanding: 2005 and 2004, 

1,288,292 1,373,992 Additional paid-in capital

(199) (107) Deferred compensation

Accumulated other comprehensive income:

194,575 77,049 Net unrealized gains on investments (net of tax amounting to: 2005, $13,639; 2004, $40,429)

72,510 12,614 Currency translation adjustment

1,721,032 1,551,709 Retained earnings

3,351,864 3,092,787 Total shareholders’ equity
$ 12,679,898 $ 13,744,130 Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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For the year
ended

December 31,
2003 

For the year
ended

December 31,
2004 

For the year
ended

December 31,
2005 Revenues

$ 3,624,518  $ 3,887,516  $ 3,665,238 Gross premiums written

$ 3,589,641  $ 3,852,672  $ 3,615,878 Net premiums written

(86,199) (118,932) (16,689) Increase in unearned premiums

3,503,442 3,733,740 3,599,189 Net premiums earned

261,697 297,997 364,508 Net investment income

86,656 117,339 206,874 Net realized investment gains

21,101 17,293 34,920 Other income

3,872,896 4,166,369 4,205,491 Total revenues

Expenses

2,365,742 2,475,743 3,086,730 Losses and loss expenses and life policy benefi ts

773,230 901,554 848,714 Acquisition costs

235,739 271,331 271,504 Other operating expenses

18,570 40,744 32,869 Interest expense

(11,824) (16,586) 3,543 Net foreign exchange gains (losses) 

3,381,457 3,672,786 4,243,360 Total expenses

491,439 493,583 (37,869)
Income (loss) before distributions related to trust preferred and mandatorily redeemable preferred 
securities, taxes and interest in earnings of equity investments

21,650 —  —  Distributions related to trust preferred and mandatorily redeemable preferred securities

2,110 7,560 22,924 Income tax expense

—  6,330 9,729 Interest in earnings of equity investments

$ 467,679  $ 492,353  $ (51,064) Net income (loss)

29,390 21,485 34,525 Preferred dividends

$ 438,289  $ 470,868  $ (85,589) Net income (loss) available to common shareholders

Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Tax

$ 467,679  $ 492,353  $ (51,064) Net income (loss) 

46,887 28,083 (117,526) Change in net unrealized gains on investments

47,477 55,853 (59,896) Change in currency translation adjustment

$ 562,043  $ 576,289  $ (228,486) Comprehensive income (loss)

Per Share Data

Net income (loss) per common share:

$ 8.23  $ 8.80  $ (1.56) Basic net income (loss)

$ 8.13  $ 8.71  $ (1.56) Diluted net income (loss)

53,238.6 53,490.8 54,951.2 Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

53,895.9 54,047.4 54,951.2 Weighted average number of common and common share equivalents outstanding

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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PartnerRe Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars)

For the year
ended

December 31,
2003  

For the year
ended

December 31,
2004  

For the year
ended

December 31,
2005  Common Shares

$ 52,376  $ 53,742  $ 54,854 Balance at beginning of year

—  (2,914) (1,242) Repurchase of common shares

1,366 4,026 3,118 Issue of common shares

53,742 54,854 56,730 Balance at end of year

Preferred Shares

10,000 11,600 20,800 Balance at beginning of year

(10,000) —  —  Redemption of preferred shares

11,600 9,200 —  Issue of preferred shares

11,600 20,800 20,800 Balance at end of year

Additional Paid-In Capital

977,714 1,023,167 1,288,292 Balance at beginning of year

—  (170,440) (75,321) Repurchase of common shares

13,131 227,264 161,021 Issue of common shares

(4,780) (4,780) —  Issue and adjustment of purchase contract for common shares

(232,163) —  —  Redemption of preferred shares

269,265 213,081 —  Issue of preferred shares

1,023,167 1,288,292 1,373,992 Balance at end of year

Deferred Compensation

(261) (125) (199) Balance at beginning of year

—  (276) —  Issue of restricted common shares

136 202 92 Amortization of deferred compensation

(125) (199) (107) Balance at end of year

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

88,785 183,149 267,085 Balance at beginning of year

46,887 28,083 (117,526) Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments, net of reclassifi cation adjustments

47,477 55,853 (59,896) Currency translation adjustment

183,149 267,085 89,663 Balance at end of year

Retained Earnings

948,568 1,322,859 1,721,032 Balance at beginning of year

467,679 492,353 (51,064) Net income (loss)

(63,998) (72,695) (83,734) Dividends on common shares

(29,390) (21,485) (34,525) Dividends on preferred shares

1,322,859 1,721,032 1,551,709 Balance at end of year

$ 2,594,392  $ 3,351,864   $ 3,092,787 Total shareholders’ equity

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars)

For the year
ended

December 31,
2003 

For the year
ended

December 31,
2004 

For the year
ended

December 31,
2005 Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

$ 467,679  $ 492,353  $ (51,064) Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by operating activities:

26,326 40,188 42,220 Amortization of net premium on investments

(86,656) (117,339) (206,874) Net realized investment gains

Changes in:

86,199 118,932 16,689 Unearned premiums

(105,730) (80,086) (117,519) Net reinsurance balances

1,009,319 820,249 1,380,315 Unpaid losses and loss expenses including life policy benefi ts

(1,052) (715) 13,784 Net tax assets

(233,712) (5,709) (50,656) Other changes in assets and liabilities

(1,203) 14,237 (4,365) Net (purchases) sales of trading securities

(11,091) (18,314) 9,423 Other, net

1,150,079 1,263,796 1,031,953 Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

8,085,048 6,296,146 4,832,037 Sales of fi xed maturities

803,646 565,532 695,389 Redemptions of fi xed maturities

(9,971,218) (8,016,220) (5,921,427) Purchases of fi xed maturities

25,980 48,387 218,386 Sales of short-term investments

45,423 39,052 90,571 Redemptions of short-term investments

(114,461) (69,803) (525,518) Purchases of short-term investments

105,814 661,571 4,839,440 Sales of equities

(228,412) (866,290) (5,054,471) Purchases of equities

(16,634) (27,915) (13,861) Other, net

(1,264,814) (1,369,540) (839,454) Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

(93,424) (92,270) (118,924) Cash dividends paid to shareholders

14,497 (152,514) 102,440 Net issue (repurchase) of common shares

280,865 222,281 —  Issue of preferred shares

(242,163) —  —  Redemption of preferred shares

—  —  400,000 Issue of long-term debt

(4,780) (4,780) —  Adjustment on purchase contract for common shares

(45,005) (27,283) 383,516 Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

7,792 10,338 (10,640) Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash

(151,948) (122,689) 565,375 (Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
710,640 558,692 436,003 Cash and cash equivalents – beginning of year

$ 558,692  $ 436,003  $ 1,001,378 Cash and cash equivalents – end of year

Supplemental cash flow information:

$ 1,526  $ 8,333  $ 9,261 Net taxes paid

$ 18,570  $ 40,575  $ 29,248 Interest paid

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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1. Organization 
PartnerRe Ltd. (the Company) provides reinsurance on a worldwide basis through its principal 
wholly owned subsidiaries, Partner Reinsurance Company Ltd. (Partner Reinsurance), 
PartnerRe SA and Partner Reinsurance Company of the U.S. (PartnerRe U.S.). Risks 
reinsured include, but are not limited to property, casualty, motor, agriculture, aviation/space, 
catastrophe, credit/surety, engineering/energy, marine, special risk, other lines and life/
annuity and health. The Company also offers alternative risk products that include weather 
and credit protection to fi nancial, industrial and service companies on a worldwide basis. 

The Company was incorporated in August 1993 under the laws of Bermuda. The Company 
commenced operations in November 1993 upon completion of the sale of common shares 
and warrants pursuant to subscription agreements and an initial public offering. In July 
1997, the Company completed the acquisition of SAFR (subsequently renamed Partner Re 
SA), and in December 1998, the Company completed the acquisition of the reinsurance 
operations of Winterthur Group (Winterthur Re). 

In August 2000, the Company concluded the sale of its indirect wholly owned subsidiary, 
PartnerRe Life Insurance Company of the U.S., and its subsidiaries (collectively PartnerRe 
Life U.S.), to SCOR Group. The Company purchased PartnerRe Life U.S. in December 1998 
as part of the Winterthur Re acquisition. The Company, through a series of retrocession 
agreements with SCOR Group, retained certain annuity treaties following the sale. 

2. Signifi cant Accounting Policies 
The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP). The 
preparation of fi nancial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires Management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
at the date of the fi nancial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. While Management believes that the amounts included in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements refl ect its best estimates and assumptions, actual results 
could differ from those estimates. The Company’s principal estimates include: 

-  Unpaid losses and loss expenses, including policy benefi ts for life and annuity contracts; 
-  Gross and net premiums written and net premiums earned; 
-  Recoverability of deferred acquisition costs; 
-  Determination of other-than-temporary impairments of investments; 
-  Recoverability of tax loss carry-forwards; 
-  Valuation of goodwill; and 
-  Valuation of certain derivative fi nancial instruments. 

Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated and all entities meeting 
consolidation requirements have been included in the consolidation. Certain reclassifi cations 
have been made to prior year amounts to conform to the current year’s presentation. 
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(a) Premiums 
Gross premiums written and earned are based upon reports received from ceding 
companies, supplemented by the Company’s own estimates of premiums written and earned 
for which ceding company reports have not been received. Differences between such 
estimates and actual amounts are recorded in the period in which the estimates are changed 
or the actual amounts are determined. Net premiums written and earned are presented net 
of ceded premiums, which represent the cost of retrocession protection purchased by the 
Company. Premiums are earned on a basis that is consistent with the risks covered under 
the terms of the reinsurance contracts, which is generally one to two years. Unearned 
premiums represent the portion of premiums written which is applicable to the unexpired 
risks under contracts in force. Premiums related to individual life and annuity business are 
recorded over the premium-paying period on the underlying policies. Premiums on annuity 
and universal life insurance policies for which there is no signifi cant mortality or critical 
illness risk are accounted for in a manner consistent with accounting for interest-bearing 
fi nancial instruments and are not reported as revenues, but rather as direct deposits to the 
contract. Amounts assessed against annuity and universal life policyholders are recognized 
as revenue in the period assessed. 

(b) Losses and Loss Expenses and Life Policy Benefits 
The Company’s non-life operations are composed of its Non-life and Alternative Risk 
Transfer (ART) segments. The liability for unpaid losses and loss expenses for non-life 
operations includes amounts determined from loss reports on individual treaties (case 
reserves), additional case reserves when the Company’s loss estimate is higher than 
reported by the cedants (ACRs) and amounts for losses incurred but not yet reported 
(IBNR) to the Company. Such reserves are estimated by Management based upon reports 
received from ceding companies, supplemented by the Company’s own actuarial estimates 
of reserves for which ceding company reports have not been received, and based on the 
Company’s own historical experience. To the extent that the Company’s own historical 
experience is inadequate for estimating reserves, such estimates may be determined based 
upon industry experience and Management’s judgment. The estimates are continually 
reviewed and the ultimate liability may be in excess of, or less than, the amounts provided. 
Any adjustments are refl ected in the periods in which they become known. 

The liabilities for policy benefi ts for ordinary life and accident and health policies have 
been established based upon information reported by ceding companies supplemented 
by the Company’s actuarial estimates of mortality, critical illness, persistency and future 
investment income, with appropriate provision to refl ect uncertainty. Future policy benefi t 
reserves for annuity and universal life products are carried at their accumulated values. 
Reserves for policy claims and benefi ts include both mortality and critical illness claims in 
the process of settlement, and claims that have been incurred but not yet reported. Interest 
rate assumptions used to estimate liabilities for policy benefi ts for life and annuity contracts 
ranged from 1.5% to 5.5%. Actual experience in a particular period may vary from assumed 
experience and, consequently, may affect the Company’s operating results in future periods. 
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(c) Deferred Acquisition Costs 
Acquisition costs, primarily brokerage fees, commissions and excise taxes, which vary directly 
with, and are primarily related to, the acquisition of reinsurance contracts, are capitalized and 
charged to expense as the related premium revenue is recognized. Anticipated losses and 
loss expenses, other costs and investment income related to these premiums are considered 
in determining the recoverability of deferred acquisition costs. Acquisition costs related to 
individual life and annuity business are deferred and amortized over the premium-paying 
periods in proportion to anticipated premium income, allowing for lapses, terminations and 
anticipated investment income. Acquisition costs related to universal life and single premium 
annuity contracts for which there is no signifi cant mortality or critical illness risk are deferred 
and amortized over the lives of the policies as a percentage of the estimated gross profi ts 
expected to be realized on the policies. 

(d) Funds Held by Reinsured Companies (Cedants) 
The Company writes certain business on a funds held basis. Under such contractual 
arrangements, the cedant retains the premiums that would have otherwise been paid to 
the Company and the Company earns interest on these funds. With the exception of those 
arrangements discussed below, the Company generally earns investment income on the 
funds held balances based upon a predetermined interest rate, either fi xed contractually at 
the inception of the contract or based upon a recognized index (e.g., LIBOR). Interest rates 
at December 31, 2005, ranged from 1.5% to 6.4%, with the exception of one treaty, which 
earned 9.3%. 

In certain circumstances, the Company may receive an investment return based upon 
either the result of a pool of assets held by the cedant, generally used to collateralize 
the funds held balance, or the investment return earned by the cedant on its entire 
investment portfolio. This is most common in the Company’s life reinsurance business. 
In these arrangements, gross investment returns are typically refl ected in income with a 
corresponding increase or decrease (net of a spread) being recorded as life policy benefi ts 
in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations. In these arrangements, the 
Company is exposed, to a limited extent, to the underlying credit risk of the pool of assets 
inasmuch as the underlying life policies may have guaranteed minimum returns. In such 
cases, an embedded derivative exists under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
(SFAS) 133 Implementation Issue No. B36 “Embedded Derivatives: Modifi ed Coinsurance 
Arrangements and Debt Instruments That Incorporate Credit Risk Exposures That Are 
Unrelated or Only Partially Related to the Creditworthiness of the Obligor under Those 
Instruments” (Issue B36). The fair value of these derivatives is recorded by the Company 
as an increase or decrease to the funds held balance, which is offset by an equivalent but 
opposite adjustment to deferred acquisition costs. 

(e) Deposit Assets and Liabilities 
In the normal course of its operations, the Company enters into certain contracts that 
do not meet the risk transfer provisions of SFAS No.113 “Accounting and Reporting for 
Reinsurance of Short-Duration and Long-Duration Contracts” (SFAS 113). These contracts 
are accounted for using the deposit accounting method in accordance with Statement of 
Position 98-7 “Deposit Accounting: Accounting for Insurance and Reinsurance Contracts 
That Do Not Transfer Risk” (SOP 98-7). For those contracts, the Company originally records 
deposit liabilities for an amount equivalent to the consideration received. The consideration 
to be retained by the Company, irrespective of the experience of the contracts, is earned 
over the expected settlement period of the contracts, with any unearned portion recorded as 
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a component of deposit liabilities. Actuarial studies are used to estimate the fi nal liabilities 
under these contracts and the appropriate accretion rates to increase or decrease the 
original liabilities over the term of the contracts. The change for the period is recorded in 
other income in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

Under some of these contracts, cedants retain the assets on a funds held basis. In those 
cases, the Company records those assets as deposit assets and records the related income 
in other income in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

(f) Investments 
Fixed maturities, short-term and equity investments that are classifi ed as available for sale 
are carried at fair value, based on quoted market prices, with the difference between cost or 
amortized cost and fair value, net of the effect of taxes, included as a separate component 
of accumulated other comprehensive income in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Short-
term investments comprise securities with a maturity greater than three months but less 
than one year from the date of purchase. Investment purchases and sales are recorded on a 
trade-date basis. 

Fixed maturities, short-term and equity investments that are bought and held principally for 
the purpose of selling in the near term are classifi ed as trading securities and are carried 
at fair value, based on quoted market prices, with the changes in fair value included in net 
realized investment gains and losses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

The Company also uses equity short sales, which are sales of securities that are not owned 
by the Company at the time of the sale. The obligations arising from such transactions are 
carried at fair value, based on quoted market prices, in net payable for securities purchased 
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, with the changes in fair value included in net realized 
investment gains and losses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

Other invested assets consist primarily of investments in non-publicly traded companies 
(principally Channel Re — see Note 3(i)), non-publicly traded real estate funds, private 
placement equity investments, derivative fi nancial instruments and other specialty asset 
classes. The investment in Channel Re is accounted for using the equity method. The 
Company’s share of Channel Re’s net income and other comprehensive income is reported 
in the Company’s net income and accumulated other comprehensive income, respectively, 
on a one-quarter lag. The Company calculates its share of Channel Re’s net income and 
other comprehensive income on the basis of the Company’s ownership percentage of 
Channel Re’s common shares currently outstanding. Other investments are recorded based 
on valuation techniques depending on the nature of the individual assets. The valuation 
techniques used by the Company’s investment managers are reviewed by the Company and 
are generally commensurate with standard valuation techniques for each asset class. 

Net investment income includes interest and dividend income, amortization of premiums and 
discounts on fi xed maturities and short-term investments and investment income on funds 
held and is net of investment expenses, dividend expenses under equity short sales and 
withholding taxes. Investment income is recognized when earned. Realized gains and losses 
on the disposal of investments are determined on a fi rst-in, fi rst-out basis. 
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The Company evaluates the fair value of its investments on a periodic basis to determine 
whether a decline in fair value below the amortized cost basis (original cost basis for 
equities) is other-than-temporary. If the decline in fair value is judged to be other-than-
temporary, the amortized cost of the individual security is written down to fair value and a 
new cost basis is established, with the amount of the write-down included as a realized 
investment loss in the period in which the determination of other-than-temporary impairment 
is made. While the cost basis cannot be adjusted upward through net income if the value 
of the security subsequently increases, the cost basis may be written down again if further 
other-than-temporary impairments are determined. 

(g) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash equivalents are carried at fair value and include debt securities that, at purchase, have 
a maturity of three months or less. 

(h) Goodwill 
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets 
acquired of PartnerRe SA and Winterthur Re. SFAS No.142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible 
Assets” (SFAS 142) requires that the Company perform, at a minimum, an annual valuation 
of its goodwill asset to test it for impairment. The Company has established September 30 
as the date for performing the Company’s annual impairment test. If, as a result of the 
assessment, the Company determines that the value of its goodwill asset is impaired, 
goodwill will be written down in the period in which the determination is made. Neither the 
Company’s initial valuation nor its subsequent valuations has indicated any impairment of the 
Company’s goodwill asset. 

(i) Income Taxes 
Certain subsidiaries and branches of the Company operate in jurisdictions where they 
are subject to taxation. Current and deferred income taxes are charged or credited to net 
income, or, in certain cases, to accumulated other comprehensive income based upon 
enacted tax laws and rates applicable in the relevant jurisdiction in the period in which the 
tax becomes accruable or realizable. Deferred income taxes are provided for all temporary 
differences between the bases of assets and liabilities used in the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets and those used in the various jurisdictional tax returns. When Management’s 
assessment indicates that it is more likely than not that deferred income tax assets will not 
be realized, a valuation allowance is recorded against the deferred tax assets. The Company 
also establishes tax liabilities related to tax years that are open to audit when such liabilities 
are probable and reasonably estimable. 

(j) Translation of Foreign Currencies 
The reporting currency of the Company is the U.S. dollar. The national currencies of the 
Company’s subsidiaries are generally their functional currencies, except for the Bermuda 
subsidiaries or branches, whose functional currency is the U.S. dollar. In translating the 
fi nancial statements of those subsidiaries whose functional currency is other than the U.S. 
dollar, assets and liabilities are converted into U.S. dollars using the rates of exchange 
in effect at the balance sheet dates, and revenues and expenses are converted using 
the weighted average foreign exchange rates for the period. The effect of translation 
adjustments are reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as a separate component of 
accumulated other comprehensive income. 

In recording foreign currency transactions, revenue and expense items are converted into 
the functional currency at the weighted average rates of exchange for the year. Assets and 
liabilities originating in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the 
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functional currency at the rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet dates. The resulting 
foreign exchange gains or losses are included in net foreign exchange gains and losses in the 
Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company records realized and unrealized foreign 
exchange gains and losses that are covered by designated hedges in net realized investment 
gains and losses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations (see Note 2(k)). 

(k) Derivatives Used in Hedging Activities 
SFAS No.133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (SFAS 133), as 
amended on January 1, 2001, requires the recognition of all derivative fi nancial instruments, 
including embedded derivative instruments, as either assets or liabilities in the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets and measurement of those instruments at fair value. The accounting for 
gains and losses associated with changes in the fair value of a derivative and the effect on 
the Consolidated Financial Statements depends on its hedge designation and whether the 
hedge is highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in the fair value of the asset or 
liability hedged. 

The Company utilizes derivative fi nancial instruments as part of an overall currency 
risk management strategy. On the date the Company enters into a derivative contract, 
Management designates whether the derivative is to be used as a hedge of an identifi ed 
underlying exposure (a designated hedge). As part of its overall strategy to manage the 
level of currency exposure, the Company uses currency derivatives to hedge the fair value 
of certain available for sale fi xed income securities related to the Company’s liability funds 
(funds representing invested assets supporting the net reinsurance liabilities, defi ned 
as the Company’s operating and reinsurance liabilities net of reinsurance assets). These 
derivatives have been designated as fair value hedges under SFAS 133, and accordingly, 
the changes in fair value of the derivative and the hedged item related to foreign currency 
are recognized in net realized investment gains and losses in the Consolidated Statements 
of Operations. Derivatives employed by the Company to hedge currency exposure related 
to other reinsurance assets and liabilities are not designated as hedges under SFAS 133. 
The changes in fair value of the non-designated hedges and the other reinsurance assets 
and liabilities are recognized in net foreign exchange gains and losses in the Consolidated 
Statements of Operations. 

The Company formally documents all relationships between designated hedging instruments 
and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking 
various hedge transactions. In this documentation, the Company specifi cally identifi es the 
asset, liability, fi rm commitment or forecasted transaction that has been designated as a 
hedged item and states how the hedging instrument is expected to hedge the risks related 
to the hedged item. The Company formally measures effectiveness of its designated 
hedging relationships, both at the hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, in accordance 
with its risk management policy. The Company assesses the effectiveness of its designated 
hedges using the period to period dollar offset method on an individual currency basis. If the 
ratio obtained with this method is within the range of 80% to 125%, the Company considers 
the hedge effective under SFAS 133. 

The Company will discontinue hedge accounting prospectively if it is determined that the 
derivative is no longer effective in offsetting changes in the fair value of a hedged item. 
To the extent that the Company in the future chooses to discontinue hedge accounting 
related to its fair value hedge of currency risk related to its available for sale fi xed income 
securities (liability funds) because, based on Management’s assessment, the derivative no 
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longer qualifi es as an effective fair value hedge, the derivative will continue to be carried in 
the Consolidated Balance Sheets at its fair value, with changes in its fair value recognized 
in current period net income, and changes in the fair value of the underlying available for 
sale fi xed income securities due to currency movements will be recorded as a component of 
accumulated other comprehensive income. 

(l) Investment Related Derivatives 
The Company’s investment strategy allows for the use of derivative instruments, subject 
to strict limitations. The Company utilizes various derivative instruments such as futures 
contracts, credit default swaps, written covered call options, foreign currency option 
contracts and designated foreign exchange forward contracts for the purpose of replicating 
investment positions, managing market exposure and duration risks, and enhancing 
investment performance. These instruments are recognized as assets and liabilities in 
the Consolidated Balance Sheets and changes in fair value are included in net realized 
investment gains and losses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The fair values 
of those derivatives are based on quoted market prices or internal valuation models where 
quoted market prices are not available. Margin balances required by counterparties, which 
are equal to a percentage of the total value of open futures contracts, are included in cash 
and cash equivalents. 

(m) Weather Derivatives 
As a part of the Company’s ART operations, the Company has entered into weather related 
transactions that are structured as insurance, reinsurance or derivatives. When those 
transactions are determined to be derivatives, they are recorded at fair value with the changes 
in fair value reported in other income in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The 
Company uses internal valuation models to estimate the fair value of these derivatives. 

(n) Total Return and Interest Rate Swaps 
As a part of the Company’s ART operations, the Company has entered into total return and 
interest rate swaps. Income related to these swaps and any fair value adjustments on the 
swaps are included in other income in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The 
Company records these swaps at fair value, based on quoted market prices. Where such 
valuations are not available, the Company uses internal valuation models to estimate fair value. 

(o) Net Income per Common Share 
Diluted net income per common share is defi ned as net income available to common 
shareholders divided by the weighted average number of common and common share 
equivalents outstanding calculated using the treasury stock method for all potentially dilutive 
securities. When the effect of dilutive securities would be anti-dilutive, these securities are 
excluded from the calculation of diluted net income per share. Basic net income per share is 
defi ned as net income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted average 
number of common shares outstanding for the period, giving no effect to dilutive securities. 

(p) Share-Based Compensation 
The Company currently uses fi ve types of share-based compensation: stock options, 
restricted shares (RS), restricted share units (RSU), stock appreciation rights and shares 
issued under the Company’s employee stock purchase plan. The Company’s adoption 
in 2003 of the fair value provisions of SFAS No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation” (SFAS 123), as amended by SFAS No. 148 “Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation–Transition and Disclosure” (SFAS 148), resulted in the recognition of an 
expense corresponding to the fair value of the Company’s stock options that were granted 
beginning in 2003. The expense is recognized over the vesting period of the stock options. 
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The Company has elected to use the prospective transition method as described in SFAS 
123, which results in the expensing of options granted subsequent to January 1, 2003. 
Under the provisions of SFAS 123, options are valued at fair value on the date of grant 
using a Black-Scholes option-valuation model that considers, as of the date of grant, the 
exercise price and expected life of the option, the current price of the Company’s common 
shares and its expected volatility, expected dividends on the common shares and the risk-
free interest rate for the expected life of the option. 

The adoption of the fair value provision of SFAS 123 resulted in a charge to net income of 
$3.3 million, or $0.06 per diluted share, for the year ended December 31, 2003. Prior to 
January 1, 2003, the Company accounted for share-based compensation under the intrinsic 
value provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 “Accounting for Stock 
Issued to Employees” (APB 25). Accordingly, no compensation costs were recognized for 
grants of stock options under the Company’s stock option plans. 

The following table illustrates the net effect on net (loss) income available to common 
shareholders and net (loss) income per share as if the fair value provisions of SFAS 123 
had been applied retroactively to all outstanding equity-based compensation issued (in 
thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share data): 

2005 2004 2003 

Net (loss) income available to 
common shareholders:

 As reported  $ (85,589)  $ 470,868 $ 438,289

  Add: Stock-related compensation 
expense included in net (loss) income 

  Add: Stock-related compensation 
expense included in net (loss) income 

  Add: Stock-related compensation 

as reported 9,270 7,079 3,332

  Less: Total stock-related compensation 
expense determined under fair value 
method for all grants 12,373 13,728 11,582

Pro forma  $ (88,692)  $ 464,219 $ 430,039

Net (loss) income per common share:

Basic

 As reported  $ (1.56)  $ 8.80 $ 8.23

 Pro forma  $ (1.61)  $ 8.68 $ 8.08

Diluted

 As reported  $ (1.56)  $ 8.71 $ 8.13

 Pro forma  $ (1.61)  $ 8.59 $ 7.98

(q) New Accounting Pronouncements 

SOP 03-01 

In July 2003, the Accounting Standards Executive Committee (AcSEC) of the American 
Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants (AICPA) issued Statement of Position 03-01, 
“Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for Certain Non-traditional Long-
Duration Contracts and for Separate Accounts” (SOP 03-01). SOP 03-01 complements the 
guidance available in SFAS No. 60 “Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises,” and 
SFAS No. 97, “Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for Certain Long-Duration 
Contracts and for Realized Gains and Losses from the Sale of Investments” for insurance 
products introduced since the issuance of these two SFAS. SOP 03-01 is effective for 
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fi nancial statements for fi scal years beginning after December 15, 2003. The Company 
has adopted SOP 03-01 as of January 1, 2004 and the adoption did not have a signifi cant 
impact on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements. 

SFAS 150 

In July 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 150 “Accounting for Certain Financial 
Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity” (SFAS 150). The statement 
establishes standards for how an issuer classifi es and measures certain fi nancial instruments 
with characteristics of both liabilities and equity, and requires that an issuer classify a fi nancial 
instrument that is within its scope as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances). As a 
result of the adoption of SFAS 150, the Company classifi ed its mandatorily redeemable 
preferred securities as liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. In December 2004, 
the Company settled the purchase contracts associated with its PEPS units in exchange for 
newly issued common shares of the Company and the Company purchased and cancelled 
the Series B cumulative preferred shares that were part of its PEPS units (see Note 12). 
The Company has classifi ed distributions related to its mandatorily redeemable preferred 
securities as interest expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year 
ended December 31, 2004 and for the last six months of 2003, and has left the presentation 
for the fi rst six months of 2003 unchanged. This new presentation has no impact on the 
Company’s equity or net income for any periods presented. 

FIN 46(R) 

In December 2003, the Company began applying the guidance in FASB Interpretation 
No. 46 (Revised December 2004) “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” 
(FIN 46(R)). FIN 46(R) requires a variable interest entity to be consolidated by a company 
if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss from the variable interest entity’s 
activities or is entitled to receive a majority of the entity’s residual returns or both. A variable 
interest entity is a corporation, partnership, trust or any other legal structure used for 
business purposes that either (a) does not have equity investors with voting rights or (b) has 
equity investors that do not provide suffi cient fi nancial resources for the entity to support 
its activities. Neither PartnerRe Capital Trust I (the Trust), which issued the Company’s 
trust preferred securities, nor PartnerRe Finance I Inc. (PartnerRe Finance), which owns 
the Trust, meet the consolidation requirements of FIN 46(R). As a result, the Company 
has deconsolidated the Trust and PartnerRe Finance and has refl ected the debt related 
to the trust preferred securities issued by the Company to PartnerRe Finance as a liability 
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Starting January 1, 2004, the Company reported 
the interest on the debt related to the trust preferred securities as interest expense in 
the Consolidated Statements of Operations and has left the presentation for the 2003 
Consolidated Statements of Operations unchanged. This new presentation has no impact on 
the Company’s equity or net income for any periods presented. 

FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1 

In November 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FSP Nos. 
FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its 
Application to Certain Investments” (FSP). The FSP addresses the determination as to when 
an investment is considered impaired, whether that impairment is other than temporary, 
and the measurement of an impairment loss by reference to various existing accounting 
literature. The FSP replaces the guidance set forth in paragraphs 10–18 of EITF 03-1, “The 
Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments,” 
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with references to existing other-than-temporary impairment guidance. The FSP supersedes 
EITF D-44, “Recognition of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment upon the Planned Sale of a 
Security Whose Cost Exceeds Fair Value” and clarifi es that an investor should recognize an 
impairment loss no later than when the impairment is deemed other-than-temporary, even if 
a decision to sell has not been made. 

This new guidance will be applied prospectively and will be effective for other-than-
temporary impairment analysis conducted in periods beginning after December 15, 2005. 
The adoption of the FSP is not expected to have a signifi cant impact on the equity or net 
income of the Company. 

SFAS 123(R) 

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement No. 123(R) (Revised 2004) “Share-Based 
Payment” (SFAS 123(R)). This statement will require compensation costs related to share-
based payment transactions to be recognized as an expense in the fi nancial statements. The 
amount of compensation cost will be measured based on the grant-date fair value of the 
awards issued and will be recognized over the period that an employee provides services in 
exchange for the award or the requisite service period. The grant-date fair value of employee 
share options and similar instruments will be estimated using option-pricing models adjusted 
for the unique characteristics of the instruments. SFAS 123(R) will apply to all awards 
granted after the required effective date and to awards modifi ed, repurchased or cancelled 
after that date. SFAS 123(R) will be effective in periods that begin after December 15, 2005. 
The Company will adopt SFAS 123(R) as of January 1, 2006. The adoption of SFAS 123(R) 
is not expected to have a signifi cant impact on the equity or net income of the Company. 

SFAS 155 

In February 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 155 “Accounting for Certain Hybrid 
Financial Instruments - an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140” (SFAS 
155). This Statement amends SFAS 133 and SFAS No. 140 “Accounting for Transfers and 
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities” (SFAS 140). This Statement 
resolves issues addressed in Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. D1 “Application of 
Statement 133 to Benefi cial Interests in Securitized Financial Assets” and permits fair value 
remeasurement for any hybrid fi nancial instrument that contains an embedded derivative 
that otherwise would require bifurcation; clarifi es which interest-only strips and principal-only 
strips are not subject to the requirements of SFAS 133; establishes a requirement to evaluate 
interests in securitized fi nancial assets to identify interests that are freestanding derivatives or 
that are hybrid fi nancial instruments that contain an embedded derivative requiring bifurcation; 
clarifi es that concentrations of credit risk in the form of subordination are not embedded 
derivatives; and amends SFAS 140 to eliminate the prohibition on a qualifying special-
purpose entity from holding a derivative fi nancial instrument that pertains to a benefi cial 
interest other than another derivative fi nancial instrument. SFAS 155 will be effective in 
periods that begin after September 15, 2006. The Company is currently evaluating the impact 
of the adoption of SFAS 155, if any, on its consolidated equity or net income. 
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3.  Investments 

(a)  Fixed Maturities, Equities and Short-Term Investments Available for Sale 
The cost, fair value, gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses on investments 
classifi ed as available for sale at December 31, 2005 and 2004, were as follows (in 
thousands of U.S. dollars): 

2005 Cost (1)

Gross
Unrealized

Gains 

Gross
Unrealized

Losses 
Fair

Value 

Fixed maturities

- U.S. government  $ 922,652 $ 2,245 $ (10,142)  $ 914,755

-  states or political subdivisions of 
states of the U.S. 6,074 — (111) 5,963

- other foreign governments 1,677,807 33,274 (8,363) 1,702,718
- corporate 2,557,926 37,271 (29,819) 2,565,378
- mortgage/asset-backed securities 1,517,784 1,372 (21,148) 1,498,008
Total fi xed maturities 6,682,243 74,162 (69,583) 6,686,822
Short-term investments 231,442 5 (514) 230,933
Equities 1,246,192 99,269 (11,087) 1,334,374
Total  $ 8,159,877 $ 173,436 $ (81,184 )  $ 8,252,129

2004 Cost (1)

Gross
Unrealized

Gains 

Gross
Unrealized

Losses 
Fair

Value 

Fixed maturities

- U.S. government  $ 515,976 $ 6,936 $ (1,188)  $ 521,724

-  states or political subdivisions of 
states of the U.S. 5,532 160 (8) 5,684

- other foreign governments 1,862,970 42,216 (569) 1,904,617

- corporate 2,731,999 68,747 (8,381) 2,792,365

- mortgage/asset-backed securities 1,495,206 5,671 (1,687) 1,499,190

Total fi xed maturities 6,611,683 123,730 (11,833) 6,723,580

Short-term investments 28,691 8 (5) 28,694

Equities 887,006 127,798 (4,027) 1,010,777

Total  $ 7,527,380 $ 251,536 $ (15,865)  $ 7,763,051

(1) Cost is amortized cost for fi xed maturities and short-term investments and original cost for equity securities, net of other-than-temporary impairments. 
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The following tables present the continuous periods during which the Company has held 
investment positions that were carried at an unrealized loss (excluding investments classifi ed 
as trading securities) at December 31, 2005 and 2004 (in millions of U.S. dollars): 

2005 Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total 

Fair
Value 

Unrealized
Loss 

Fair
Value 

Unrealized
Loss 

Fair
Value 

Unrealized
Loss 

Fixed maturities

- U.S. government  $ 530.6 $ (6.0)  $ 161.7 $ (4.1)  $ 692.3 $ (10.1)

- states or political subdivisions of 
 states of the U.S. 4.6 (0.1) 1.3 — 5.9 (0.1)

- other foreign governments 909.6 (8.3) 2.0 (0.1) 911.6 (8.4)
- corporate 1,092.8 (17.2) 367.1 (12.6) 1,459.9 (29.8)
- mortgage/asset-backed securities 1,230.9 (18.0) 131.2 (3.2) 1,362.1 (21.2)
Total fi xed maturities 3,768.5 (49.6) 663.3 (20.0) 4,431.8 (69.6)
Short-term investments 227.6 (0.5) — — 227.6 (0.5)
Equities 452.9 (9.4) 54.8 (1.7) 507.7 (11.1)
Total  $ 4,449.0 $ (59.5)  $ 718.1 $ (21.7)  $ 5,167.1 $ (81.2)

2004 Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total 

Fair
Value 

Unrealized
Loss 

Fair
Value 

Unrealized
Loss 

Fair
Value 

Unrealized
Loss 

Fixed maturities

- U.S. government  $ 229.6 $ (1.2)  $ — $ —  $ 229.6 $ (1.2)

- states or political subdivisions of 
 states of the U.S. 1.4 — — — 1.4 —

- other foreign governments 261.0 (0.6) — — 261.0 (0.6)

- corporate 793.6 (6.1) 77.7 (2.3) 871.3 (8.4)

- mortgage/asset-backed securities 577.4 (1.7) — — 577.4 (1.7)

Total fi xed maturities 1,863.0 (9.6) 77.7 (2.3) 1,940.7 (11.9)

Short-term investments 15.2 — — — 15.2 —

Equities 53.6 (2.3) 54.6 (1.7) 108.2 (4.0)

Total  $ 1,931.8 $ (11.9)  $ 132.3 $ (4.0)  $ 2,064.1 $ (15.9)

The Company’s investment security with the largest unrealized loss position at December 31, 
2005, for which an other-than-temporary impairment charge has not been taken, had a gross 
unrealized loss of $3.0 million, representing 1.9% of the amortized cost of the security, which 
is rated AAA. This unrealized loss, as well as a majority of the Company’s total unrealized 
losses on fi xed maturity securities, is due to changes in interest rates. Typically, as interest 
rates rise, market values of fi xed income portfolios fall, and vice versa. As of December 
31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had no signifi cant unrealized losses caused by other 
factors and circumstances, including an issuer’s specifi c corporate risk or due to industry or 
geographic risk, for which an other-than-temporary impairment charge has not been taken. 
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(b) Maturity Distribution of Available for Sale Securities 
The distribution of available for sale fi xed maturities and short-term investments at 
December 31, 2005 by contractual maturity is shown below (in thousands of U.S. dollars). 
Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because certain borrowers have the 
right to call or prepay certain obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 

Amortized Cost Fair Value 

One year or less  $ 746,614  $ 744,895

More than one year through fi ve years 2,515,656 2,499,449

More than fi ve years through ten years 1,863,986 1,877,531

More than ten years 269,645 297,872

Subtotal 5,395,901 5,419,747

Mortgage/asset-backed securities 1,517,784 1,498,008

Total  $ 6,913,685  $ 6,917,755

(c) Change in Net Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Investments 
The analysis of the change in net unrealized gains (losses) on investments net of applicable 
taxes refl ected in accumulated other comprehensive income for the years ended December 
31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, is as follows (in thousands of U.S. dollars): 

2005 2004 2003

Fixed maturities  $ (107,318)  $ 9,740  $ (45,055)

Short-term investments (512) (33) 22

Equity securities (35,589) 24,518 119,983

Other investments (897) (641) (55)

(144,316) 33,584 74,895

Decrease (increase) in tax liability 26,790 (5,501) (28,008)

Net change refl ected in accumulated 
other comprehensive income  $ (117,526)  $ 28,083  $ 46,887

(d) Realized Gains (Losses) on Investments 
Proceeds from the sale of investments classifi ed as available for sale for the years ended 
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, were $9,968.0 million, $7,299.4 million and 
$9,028.0 million, respectively. Realized investment gains and losses on securities classifi ed 
as available for sale for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, were as 
follows (in thousands of U.S. dollars): 

2005 2004 2003 

Gross realized gains  $ 294,038  $ 153,670  $ 132,196

Gross realized losses excluding 
other-than-temporary impairments (100,842) (52,858) (38,541)

Other-than-temporary impairments (8,120) (10,528) (30,744)

Total net realized investment gains 
on available for sale securities  $ 185,076  $ 90,284  $ 62,911
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The components of the net realized investments gains and losses on securities classifi ed as 
available for sale for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 were as follows 
(in thousands of U.S. dollars): 

2005 2004 2003

Fixed maturities  $ 25,317  $ 25,441  $ 81,810

Equities 159,821 64,821 (18,320)

Short-term investments (62) 22 (579)

Total net realized investment gains 
on available for sale securities  $ 185,076  $ 90,284  $ 62,911

The following table is a reconciliation of the net realized investments gains and losses on 
securities classifi ed as available for sale to the net realized investments gains and losses in 
the Consolidated Statements of Operations (in thousands of U.S. dollars): 

2005 2004 2003

Net realized investment gains on 
available for sale securities  $ 185,076  $ 90,284  $ 62,911

Net realized investment gains on trading securities 7,535 8,254 10,639

Change in net unrealized investment (losses) 
gains on trading securities (1,417) (1,641) 9,063

Net realized investment gains (losses) on 
designated hedging activities 275 (278) (8,173)

Net realized and unrealized gains on 
other invested assets 3,465 29,389 13,082

Other realized and unrealized investment gains (losses) 11,940 (8,669) (866)

Total net realized investment gains  $ 206,874  $ 117,339  $ 86,656

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company recorded a net 
loss of $2.8 million, a net loss of $1.5 million and a net gain of $1.7 million, respectively, 
in net realized investment gains and losses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, 
representing the ineffectiveness of its designated fair value hedging activities. 

(e) Net Investment Income 
The components of net investment income for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 
and 2003 were as follows (in thousands of U.S. dollars): 

2005 2004 2003

Fixed maturities  $ 287,994  $ 245,937  $ 202,992

Short-term investments, trading securities, cash 
 and cash equivalents 25,465 7,943 6,982

Equities 27,400 19,899 16,701

Funds held and other 40,987 40,940 48,103

Investment expenses (17,338) (16,722) (13,081)

Net investment income  $ 364,508  $ 297,997  $ 261,697
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(f) Trading Securities 
At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the net unrealized investment gains on trading 
securities were approximately $9.9 million and $6.0 million, respectively. For the years 
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the change in net unrealized investment 
gains and losses on trading securities (including the impact of foreign exchange) resulted
in a net loss of $1.4 million, a net loss of $1.6 million and a net gain of $9.1 million, 
respectively, being recognized in net realized investment gains and losses in the 
Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

(g) Pledged Assets 
At December 31, 2005 and 2004, approximately $68.8 million and $35.0 million, 
respectively, of cash and approximately $1,556.8 million and $1,422.2 million, respectively, 
of securities available for sale were deposited, pledged or held in escrow accounts to 
support long-term debt or in favor of ceding companies and other counterparties or 
government authorities to comply with reinsurance contract provisions and insurance laws. 

(h) Net Payable for Securities Purchased 
Included in net payable for securities purchased at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were 
gross payable and receivable balances for unsettled trades and equity securities sold but 
not yet purchased, which represent sales of securities not owned at the time of the sale. The 
components of net payable for securities purchased at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were 
as follows (in thousands of U.S. dollars): 

2005 2004 

Receivable for securities sold  $ 175,249  $ 57,452

Payable for securities purchased (166,590) (59,032)

Equity securities sold but not yet purchased (101,977) —

Net payable for securities purchased  $ (93,318)  $ (1,580)

(i) Other invested assets 
Other invested assets primarily include the Company’s investment in Channel Re, a non-
publicly traded fi nancial guarantee reinsurer based in Bermuda, which assumed a portfolio 
of in-force business from MBIA, and which participates in new MBIA reinsurance treaties 
and provides facultative reinsurance support to MBIA. The Company’s investment represents 
20% of the common stock of Channel Re. The Company’s share of Channel Re’s net 
income was $9.4 million and $6.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 
December 31, 2004 respectively. The 2003 year included no investment in or income from 
Channel Re as the Company acquired its equity ownership in the fi rst quarter of 2004. 
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4. Unpaid Losses and Loss Expenses 
The Company’s unpaid losses and loss expenses for its non-life operations are composed 
of the reserves for its Non-life and ART segments. The table below is a reconciliation of the 
beginning and ending liability for unpaid losses and loss expenses, excluding policy benefi ts 
for life and annuity contracts, for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 (in 
thousands of U.S. dollars): 

2005 2004 2003 

Gross liability at beginning of year  $ 5,766,629  $ 4,755,059  $ 3,658,416

Reinsurance recoverable at beginning of year 153,018 175,685 217,777

Net liability at beginning of year 5,613,611 4,579,374 3,440,639

Net incurred losses related to:

Current year 2,998,271 2,318,716 2,043,201

Prior years (231,510) (139,036) 55,463

2,766,761 2,179,680 2,098,664

Net paid losses related to:

Current year 234,031 257,950 165,900

Prior years 1,250,534 1,120,756 1,126,882

1,484,565 1,378,706 1,292,782

Effects of foreign exchange rate changes (343,426) 233,263 332,853

Net liability at end of year 6,552,381 5,613,611 4,579,374

Reinsurance recoverable at end of year 185,280 153,018 175,685

Gross liability at end of year  $ 6,737,661  $ 5,766,629  $ 4,755,059

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the net change in prior 
year reserves was a net favorable loss development of $231.5 million, a net 
favorable loss development of $139.0 million and a net adverse loss development 
of $55.5 million, respectively. 

The net favorable loss development of $231.5 million in 2005 relates primarily to a net adverse 
loss development in the U.S. P&C sub-segment of $48 million, which included net adverse loss 
development for prior accident years in the motor and casualty lines of $58 million partially 
offset by net favorable loss development in the property line of $10 million, a net favorable 
loss development of $67 million in the Global (Non-U.S.) P&C sub-segment which included 
net favorable loss development in the property and casualty lines of $76 million partially 
offset by net adverse loss development in the motor line of $9 million and a net favorable loss 
development of $212 million in the Worldwide Specialty sub-segment, which included net 
favorable loss development of $222 million for prior accident years in all lines, except for the 
agriculture line which was affected by net adverse loss development of $10 million. 

The net favorable loss development of $139.0 million in 2004 relates primarily to a net 
adverse loss development in the U.S. P&C sub-segment of $30 million, which included 
net adverse loss development for prior accident years in the motor and casualty lines of 
$53 million partially offset by net favorable loss development in the property line of 
$23 million, a net adverse loss development of $24 million in the Global (Non-U.S.) P&C 
sub-segment which included net adverse loss development in the motor and casualty lines 
of $106 million partially offset by net favorable loss development in the property line of 
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$82 million and a net favorable loss development of $193 million in the Worldwide Specialty 
sub-segment, which included net favorable loss development of $203 million for prior 
accident years in all lines, except for the specialty casualty line which was affected by net 
adverse loss development of $10 million. 

The net adverse loss development of $55.5 million in 2003 relates primarily to a net adverse 
loss development in the U.S. P&C sub-segment of $88 million, which included net adverse 
loss development for prior accident years of $72 million on the casualty line and $15 million 
on the motor line, a net favorable loss development of $11 million in the Global (Non-U.S.) 
P&C sub-segment which included net adverse loss development for prior accident years 
of $23 million on the motor line offset by net favorable loss development of $34 million on 
the property and casualty lines and a net favorable loss development of $22 million in the 
Worldwide Specialty sub-segment, which included net favorable loss development for prior 
accident years of $61 million on the aviation, credit/surety, engineering/energy, catastrophe 
and other lines, which was partially offset by net adverse loss development of $39 million on 
the agriculture, marine and specialty casualty lines. 

The table below is a reconciliation of losses and loss expenses including life policy benefi ts 
for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 (in thousands of U.S. dollars): 

2005 2004 2003

Net incurred losses related to:

Non-life  $ 2,766,761 $ 2,179,680 $ 2,098,664

Life 319,969 296,063 267,078

Losses and loss expenses 
and life policy benefi ts  $ 3,086,730 $ 2,475,743 $ 2,365,742

 Uncertainty Related to Katrina Losses 
The Company’s estimated losses resulting from hurricane Katrina are subject to an unusual 
level of uncertainty arising out of these losses’ extremely complex and unique causation and 
related coverage issues associated with the attribution of losses to wind or fl ood damage 
or other perils such as fi re, business interruption or riot and civil commotion. For instance, 
many of the Company’s cedants’ underlying policies exclude fl ood damage; however, water 
damage directly related to wind damage may be covered. The Company expects that these 
issues will not be resolved for a considerable period of time and may be infl uenced by 
evolving legal and regulatory developments. 

The Company’s actual losses from hurricane Katrina may exceed the estimated losses as 
a result of, among other things, an increase in current industry insured loss estimates, the 
receipt of additional information from cedants, brokers and loss adjusters, the attribution of 
losses to coverages that, for the purpose of the estimates, the Company assumed would not 
be exposed, in which case the fi nancial results could be further materially adversely affected. 

 Asbestos and Environmental Claims 
The Company’s net reserve for unpaid losses and loss expenses at December 31, 2005 
and 2004, included $96.6 million and $92.4 million, respectively, that represents estimates 
of its net ultimate liability for asbestos and environmental claims. The increase in the net 
reserve for unpaid losses and loss expenses in 2005 is attributable to change in currency 
exchange rates offset by settlement of claims and was not the result of a change in the 
Company’s view of its ultimate liability for this business. The gross liability for such claims 
at December 31, 2005 and 2004, was $108.0 million and $104.6 million, respectively, 
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of which $98.0 million and $94.7 million, respectively, relate to U.S. casualty exposures 
arising from business written by PartnerRe SA and PartnerRe U.S. Ultimate values for such 
claims cannot be estimated using traditional reserving techniques and there are signifi cant 
uncertainties in estimating the amount of the Company’s potential losses for these claims. 
In view of the changes in the legal and tort environment that affect the development of such 
claims, the uncertainties inherent in valuing asbestos and environmental claims are not likely 
to be resolved in the near future. There can be no assurance that the reserves established 
by the Company will not be adversely affected by development of other latent exposures, 
and further, there can be no assurance that the reserves established by the Company will 
be adequate. The Company does, however, actively evaluate potential exposure to asbestos 
and environmental claims and establishes additional reserves as appropriate. The Company 
believes that it has made a reasonable provision for these exposures and is unaware of any 
specifi c issues that would materially affect its loss and loss expense estimates. 

5. Ceded Reinsurance 
The Company uses retrocession agreements to reduce its exposure to risk of loss on 
reinsurance assumed. These agreements provide for recovery of a portion of losses and 
loss expenses from retrocessionaires. The Company remains liable to the extent that the 
retrocessionaires do not meet their obligations under these agreements, and therefore the 
Company evaluates the fi nancial condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentration of 
credit risk on an ongoing basis. Provisions are made for amounts considered potentially 
uncollectible. The allowance for uncollectible reinsurance recoverables was $13.6 million 
and $14.5 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 

Net premiums written, net premiums earned and losses and loss expenses and life policy 
benefi ts for 2005, 2004 and 2003 are reported net of reinsurance in the Company’s 
Consolidated Statements of Operations. Assumed, ceded and net amounts for the years 
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, were as follows (in thousands of U.S. dollars): 

2005
Premiums

Written
Premiums

Earned

Losses and 
Loss Expenses 

and Life
Policy Benefi ts

Assumed  $ 3,665,238 $ 3,648,965 $ 3,155,729
Ceded 49,360 49,776 68,999
Net  $ 3,615,878 $ 3,599,189 $ 3,086,730

2004

Assumed  $ 3,887,516 $ 3,767,531 $ 2,489,426

Ceded 34,844 33,791 13,683

Net  $ 3,852,672 $ 3,733,740 $ 2,475,743

2003

Assumed  $ 3,624,518 $ 3,541,659 $ 2,356,737

Ceded 34,877 38,217 (9,005)

Net  $ 3,589,641 $ 3,503,442 $ 2,365,742
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6. Long-Term Debt 
In connection with the acquisition of the reinsurance operations of Winterthur Re in 1998, 
the Company’s subsidiary, PartnerRe U.S. Corporation (PartnerRe U.S. Holdings) obtained 
a $220.0 million, 5.81% fi xed rate bank loan. The loan, which is fully collateralized, is 
repayable in December 2008, with interest payments due semiannually. PartnerRe U.S. 
Holdings incurred interest expense of $13.0 million in each year of 2005, 2004 and 2003 
and paid interest of $13.0 million, $13.1 million and $13.0 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, 
respectively, in relation to the loan. 

In October 2005, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Citibank, N.A. under 
which the Company borrowed $400.0 million. The loan, which matures in April 2009, bears 
interest quarterly at a fl oating rate of 3-month LIBOR plus 0.50%. The Company is not 
permitted to prepay the loan prior to its maturity, and the loan is not callable or puttable by 
the lender other than upon an event of default. Citibank, N.A. has pledged its rights under 
the loan agreement, including the proceeds of any repayment or syndication of the loan, to 
the Company to secure its obligations to pay the purchase price to the Company under a 
forward sale agreement (see Note 14), subject to Citibank, N.A.’s right to substitute cash 
collateral. The Company did not pay any interest in 2005 but incurred $3.2 million of interest 
expense in relation to the loan. 

7. Taxation 
The Company and its Bermuda domiciled subsidiaries are not subject to Bermuda income or 
capital gains tax under current Bermuda law. In the event that there is a change in current 
law such that taxes on income or capital gains are imposed, the Company and its Bermuda 
domiciled subsidiaries would be exempt from such tax until March 2016 pursuant to the 
Bermuda Exempted Undertakings Tax Protection Act of 1966. 

The Company has subsidiaries and branches that operate in various other jurisdictions 
around the world that are subject to tax in the jurisdictions in which they operate. The 
signifi cant jurisdictions in which the Company’s subsidiaries and branches are subject to 
tax are France, Switzerland and the United States. 

While not currently under examination in any of the major taxing jurisdictions in which it 
operates, income tax returns are open for examination for the tax years 2002-2005 in 
France and the United States and 2003-2005 in Switzerland. As a global organization, 
the Company may be subject to a variety of transfer pricing or permanent establishment 
challenges by taxing authorities in various jurisdictions. Management believes that 
adequate provision has been made in the Consolidated Financial Statements for any 
potential assessments that may result from tax examinations for all open tax years. 

Income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, and income tax 
assets at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, were as follows (in thousands of U.S. dollars): 

2005 2004 2003 

Current income tax expense (benefi t)  $ 9,248  $ (1,034)  $ 3,181

Deferred income tax expense (benefi t) 13,676 8,594 (1,071)

Income tax expense  $ 22,924  $ 7,560  $ 2,110

Net current tax liabilities  $ (17,233)  $ (17,685)  $ (20,449)

Net deferred tax assets 104,900 98,920 101,284

Net tax assets  $ 87,667  $ 81,235  $ 80,835



PartnerRe
Annual Report 2005

119

PartnerRe Ltd.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The following table is a reconciliation of the actual income tax rate for the years ended 
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 to the amount computed by applying the effective rate of 
0% under Bermuda law to income or loss before income taxes (in thousands of U.S. dollars): 

2005 2004 2003 

(Loss) income before taxes  $ (28,140)  $ 499,913  $ 469,789

Reconciliation of effective tax rate 
(% of (loss) income before taxes):

Expected tax rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Foreign taxes at local expected tax rates (275.5) 3.9 (8.2)

Impact of foreign exchange gains/losses 44.7 2.3 9.3

Prior year refund/adjustments 23.5 (5.5) 4.2

Valuation allowance 48.7 3.3 (5.0)

Other 77.1 (2.5) 0.2

Actual tax rate (81.5)% 1.5% 0.5%

Deferred tax assets refl ect the tax impact of temporary differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities for fi nancial reporting and income tax purposes. Signifi cant 
components of the net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, were as 
follows (in thousands of U.S. dollars): 

2005 2004

Discounting of loss reserves and adjustment 
to life policy reserves  $ 75,359  $ 67,188

Tax loss carryforwards 81,820 122,961

Unearned premiums 20,650 21,771

Other deferred tax assets 6,306 6,927

184,135 218,847

Valuation allowance (840) (16,347)

Deferred tax assets 183,295 202,500

Unrealized appreciation and timing differences 
on investments 16,071 40,719

Deferred acquisition costs 26,572 26,774

Goodwill 12,890 11,563

Tax equalization reserves 19,473 14,104

Other deferred tax liabilities 3,389 10,420

Deferred tax liabilities 78,395 103,580

Net deferred tax assets  $ 104,900  $ 98,920

As of December 31, 2005, the Company had deferred tax assets of $81.0 million 
(after valuation allowance) relating to operating loss carryforwards. The decrease in the 
valuation allowance in 2005 is primarily related to an increase in positive evidence that the 
Swiss branch operation will generate suffi cient taxable income to fully utilize its tax loss 
carryforward within the seven year tax loss carryforward period. The remaining tax operating 
losses are primarily in France. French tax law allows tax losses to be carried forward for 
an unlimited period. Realization of the deferred tax asset is dependent on generating 
suffi cient taxable income in future periods. Although realization is not assured, Management 
believes that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax asset will be realized. 
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The following table summarizes the changes in accumulated other comprehensive income 
and the related tax benefi t for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 (in 
thousands of U.S. dollars): 

2005 Before Tax Tax Effect Net of Tax

Foreign currency translation adjustment  $ (59,896)  $ —  $ (59,896)
Unrealized (losses) gains on investments:

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments 
arising during the period 40,760 (23,034) 17,726

Less reclassifi cation adjustment for 
available for sale securities (185,076) 49,824 (135,252)

(144,316) 26,790 (117,526)

Change in accumulated other 
comprehensive income  $ (204,212)  $ 26,790  $ (177,422)

2004

Foreign currency translation adjustment  $ 55,853  $ —  $ 55,853

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments:

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments 
arising during the period 123,868 (44,723) 79,145

Less reclassifi cation adjustment for 
available for sale securities (90,284) 39,222 (51,062)

33,584 (5,501) 28,083

Change in accumulated other 
comprehensive income  $ 89,437  $ (5,501)  $ 83,936

2003

Foreign currency translation adjustment  $ 47,477  $ —  $ 47,477

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments:

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments 
arising during the period 137,806 (34,694) 103,112

Less reclassifi cation adjustment for 
available for sale securities (62,911) 6,686 (56,225)

74,895 (28,008) 46,887

Change in accumulated other 
comprehensive income  $ 122,372  $ (28,008)  $ 94,364

8. Agreements with Related Parties 
The Company was party to agreements with Swiss Reinsurance Company (Swiss Re, a 
former shareholder), Barclays Bank PLC (a company in which a board member was a non-
executive director) and their respective affi liates and Atis Real (a company in which a board 
member was a director). Swiss Re, Barclays Bank PLC and Atis Real were no longer related 
parties of the Company subsequent to May 2003, April 2005 and June 2005, respectively. 

 Agreements with Swiss Reinsurance Company 
In the normal course of their underwriting activities, the Company and certain subsidiaries 
entered into reinsurance contracts (assumed and ceded) with Swiss Re and certain Swiss Re 
subsidiaries. Included in the 2003 Consolidated Statement of Operations were net premiums 
written of $4.0 million, net loss recoveries, including life policy benefi ts of $1.4 million and net 
acquisition costs of $0.7 million. 
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The Company utilized, in the conduct of its business, certain underwriting services and 
licensed technology provided by Swiss Re pursuant to a service agreement. The agreement 
was terminated in February 2003, but the Company continued to have access to certain 
computer technology through the end of 2003. Fees incurred pursuant to the agreement 
included fi xed fees for access to technology and database resources. The Company also 
utilized the services of Swiss Re to manage portions of its investment portfolio pursuant to 
investment advisory agreements. Pursuant to these agreements, which were subject to the 
Company’s investment guidelines and other restrictions, the Company paid a fee to Swiss 
Re. Service costs expensed for the year ended December 31, 2003 aggregated $0.3 million 
under these agreements. 

 Other Agreements 
In the normal course of its operations, the Company has entered into certain agreements 
with Barclays Bank PLC and its subsidiaries (Barclays) on market terms. The Company 
held convertible bond securities issued by Barclays and invested in an index fund and a 
money market fund managed by Barclays. In addition, Barclays provided the Company with 
brokerage and cash management services. As part of its overall currency risk management, 
the Company utilized the services of Barclays when entering certain foreign exchange 
contracts. The Company also entered into weather related transactions with Barclays in 
2005 and 2004 as part of its ART operations. Barclays is also a lending fi nancial institution 
on the Company’s unsecured credit facility (see Note 17). 

The Company leases offi ce space from Atis Real. Pursuant to the lease agreement, rent 
expense for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, aggregated $4.9 million 
(through June 2005), $8.6 million and $5.5 million, respectively. 

In the normal course of its investment operations, the Company bought or held securities 
of companies in which board members of the Company are also directors or non-executive 
directors. All transactions entered as part of the investment portfolio were completed on 
market terms. 

9. Retirement Benefi t Arrangements 
For employee retirement benefi ts, the Company maintains active defi ned-contribution plans 
and frozen non-contributory defi ned benefi t plans. 

Prior to the adoption of the defi ned-contribution plans in June 1999, the Company 
had defi ned benefi t plans in place covering substantially all of its employees. All active 
employees previously enrolled in defi ned-benefi t retirement plans have been transferred 
to defi ned-contribution plans. Benefi t accruals under the former plans were either frozen, 
except for certain disabled participants, or rolled into the defi ned-contribution plans. At 
December 31, 2005, the defi ned benefi t plans were fully funded. 

Contributions are made by the Company and in some locations these contributions are 
supplemented by the local plan participants. Contributions are based on a percentage of 
the participant’s base salary depending upon competitive local market practice. Vesting 
provisions meet legal compliance standards and market trends; the accumulated benefi ts 
for the majority of these plans vest immediately or over a two-year period. As required by 
law, certain retirement plans also provide for death and disability benefi ts and lump sum 
indemnities to employees upon retirement. 
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The Company incurred expenses for these pension arrangements of $12.3 million, 
$12.0 million and $9.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 
2003, respectively. 

10. Stock and Stock Option Plans 
 Employee Equity Plan 
In May 2005, the shareholders approved the PartnerRe Ltd. 2005 Employee Equity Plan 
(the EEP) and replaced the existing employee plan, the Employee Incentive Plan (the EIP). 
Under the EEP, the Company may grant stock options, restricted shares (RS), restricted 
share units (RSU) and stock appreciation rights to employees of the Company. The EEP is 
administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board (the Committee). 

Under the EEP, the exercise price for options awarded under the plan will not be less 
than the fair market value at the time of grant. Shares available for grant under the EIP at 
the time of replacement were transferred and became available for grant under the EEP, 
including an additional 1,000,000 common shares approved by shareholders for issuance 
under the EEP. At December 31, 2005, 2.2 million common shares remained available for 
issuance under the EEP. 

Under the EIP, the Company granted, subject to certain restrictions, stock options, RS, 
RSU, stock appreciation rights, performance units (PU) and performance shares (PS) to 
employees of the Company. Pursuant to the terms of the EIP, awards were granted to 
eligible employees at any time, in any amount, as determined by the Committee. The RS 
and RSU were subject to terms, conditions, restrictions and restricted periods fi xed by the 
Committee that were generally linked to prescribed performance goals. The PU and PS 
awards were subject to performance goals that were fi xed by the Committee. A total of 
5 million common shares were authorized for issuance under the EIP. 

 Restricted Shares 
In 2000, the Company issued under the EIP 10,000 restricted shares with a weighted-
average grant date fair value of $54.50 per share. These shares vested in December 2004. 
In 2004, the Company also issued 5,000 restricted shares with a weighted-average grant 
date fair value of $55.13 per share. These shares vest in three equal installments on the 
anniversary of the grant. The Company records the compensation expense related to these 
restricted shares over the vesting period using the straight-line method. Compensation 
expense for restricted shares granted for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 
and 2003, amounted to $0.1 million, $0.2 million and $0.1 million, respectively. Related 
deferred compensation expense at December 31, 2005 and 2004, was $0.1 million and 
$0.2 million, respectively. 

 Restricted Share Units 
During 2005 and 2004, the Company issued RSU under the EIP with a fair value of 
$4.2 million and $2.6 million, respectively, and vesting periods ranging between three and 
fi ve years. These RSU are expensed over the vesting period using the straight-line method. 

 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Plan 
In May 2003, the shareholders approved a new Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Plan (the 
Directors’ Stock Plan) as the 1993 Directors’ Stock Plan expired in 2003. Under the terms 
of the Directors’ Stock Plan, the Company may issue options, RS, RSU, alternative awards 
and other share-based awards. Under the Directors’ Stock Plan, all share-based awards 
will be issued at an exercise price per share equal to the fair market value per share at the 
time of grant. A total of 500,000 common shares were authorized at the inception of the 
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Directors’ Stock Plan. At December 31, 2005, 345,388 common shares remained available 
for issuance under this plan. 

 Restricted Share Units 
During 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company issued RSU under the Directors’ Stock Plan 
with a fair value of $1.1 million, $1.1 million and $0.5 million, respectively. The RSU were 
vested on the grant date and were expensed in the year of issuance. 

 Stock Options 
A summary of the status of the Company’s outstanding stock options as of December 31, 
2005, 2004 and 2003, and changes during the years then ended, is presented below: 

Options 

2005
Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price Options 

2004
Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price Options 

2003
Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 3,534,591  $ 50.11 3,171,251  $ 46.49 2,988,258  $ 43.96

Granted 462,019 62.43 938,225 55.59 693,513 50.06

Exercised (609,799) 44.28 (497,600) 36.96 (445,454) 34.59

Forfeited (63,805) 54.54 (77,285) 52.47 (65,066) 49.91

Outstanding at end of year 3,323,006 52.79 3,534,591 50.11 3,171,251 46.49

Options exercisable at end of year 1,721,965  $ 49.95 1,537,135  $ 46.67 1,242,305  $ 44.18

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions used for 
grants in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively: risk-free interest rates of 4.1%, 3.7% and 
3.7%, expected life of seven years, expected volatility of 25%, and a dividend yield of 2%. 
The weighted average grant-date fair value of options granted during 2005, 2004 and 2003 
was $17.15, $14.66 and $13.21, respectively. 

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 
31, 2005: 

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Range of Exercise Prices
Number

Outstanding

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Life

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price
Number

Exercisable

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

$ 30.35 – $ 44.75 336,350 3.8 years $ 40.65 336,350 $ 40.65

$ 45.31 – $ 53.67 1,154,415 6.1 50.05 815,096 50.16

$ 53.80 – $ 55.63 1,371,547 7.2 54.90 516,819 54.71

$ 56.53 – $ 64.84 460,694 9.1 62.27 53,700 59.25

$ 30.35 – $ 64.84 3,323,006 6.7 $ 52.79 1,721,965 $ 49.95

Exercise price s for all options issued during 2005, 2004 and 2003 equaled the average 
market price of the stock on the grant date. 

 Employee Share Purchase Plan 
The Employee Share Purchase Plan (the ESPP) was approved by the shareholders of 
the Company at the 2000 Annual General Meeting and amended in February 2002. The 
ESPP is administered by the Committee and meets the requirements of Section 423 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (United States), as amended (the Code). The ESPP has one 



PartnerRe Ltd.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

124 PartnerRe
Annual Report 2005

offering period per year with two purchase periods of six months. All employees are eligible 
to participate in the ESPP and can contribute between 1% and 10% of their base salary 
toward the purchase of PartnerRe Ltd. shares up to the limit set by the Code. Employees 
who enroll in the ESPP may purchase PartnerRe Ltd. shares at a 15% discount of the fair 
market value. Participants in the ESPP are eligible to receive dividends on their PartnerRe 
Ltd. shares as of the purchase date. A total of 300,000 common shares may be issued 
under the ESPP. 

 Swiss Share Purchase Plan 
In February 2002, the Board of Directors approved the establishment of the Swiss Share 
Purchase Plan (the SSPP). The SSPP is administered by the Committee. The SSPP has 
two offering periods per year with two purchase periods of six months. All full-time Swiss 
employees are eligible to participate in the SSPP and can contribute between 1% and 8% 
of their base salary toward the purchase of PartnerRe Ltd. shares up to a maximum of 5,000 
Swiss francs per annum. Employees who enroll in the SSPP may purchase PartnerRe Ltd. 
shares at a 40% discount of the fair market value. Once purchased, there is a restriction on 
transfer or sale of these shares for a period of two years following purchase. Participants in 
the SSPP are eligible to receive dividends on their PartnerRe Ltd. shares as of the purchase 
date. A total of 200,000 common shares may be issued under the SSPP. 

11. Dividend Restrictions and Statutory Requirements 
The Company’s ability to pay common and preferred shareholders’ dividends and its operating 
expenses is dependent on cash dividends from Partner Reinsurance, PartnerRe SA and 
PartnerRe U.S. (collectively the reinsurance subsidiaries). The payment of such dividends by 
the reinsurance subsidiaries to the Company is limited under Bermuda and French laws and 
certain statutes of various U.S. states in which PartnerRe U.S. is licensed to transact business. 
The restrictions are generally based on net income and/or certain levels of policyholders’ 
earned surplus as determined in accordance with the relevant statutory accounting practices. 
As of December 31, 2005, there were no signifi cant restrictions on the payment of dividends 
by the reinsurance subsidiaries, except for PartnerRe U.S. that has a statutory negative 
earned surplus and may not pay cash dividends without prior regulatory approval. 

The reinsurance subsidiaries are required to fi le annual statements with insurance regulatory 
authorities prepared on an accounting basis prescribed or permitted by such authorities 
(statutory basis), maintain minimum levels of solvency and liquidity and comply with risk-
based capital requirements and licensing rules. As of December 31, 2005, the reinsurance 
subsidiaries’ solvency, liquidity and risk-based capital amounts were in excess of the 
minimum levels required. The typical adjustments to insurance statutory amounts to convert 
to U.S. GAAP include elimination of certain statutory reserves, deferral of certain acquisition 
costs, recognition of deferred income taxes, valuation of bonds at market and presentation 
of ceded reinsurance balances gross of assumed balances. 

12.  Debt Related to Trust Preferred Securities and Mandatorily Redeemable 
Preferred Securities 
 Trust Preferred Securities 
In November 2001, PartnerRe Capital Trust I (the Trust), a Delaware statutory business trust, 
issued $200 million of 7.90% Preferred Securities (trust preferred securities). The Trust 
is wholly owned by PartnerRe Finance I Inc. (PartnerRe Finance), a Delaware corporation 
formed solely for the purpose of issuing Junior Subordinated Debt securities to the Trust. 
PartnerRe Finance is an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. 
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The Trust used the proceeds from the sale of the trust preferred securities to buy an equal 
principal amount of 7.90% junior subordinated debt securities of PartnerRe Finance and will 
distribute any cash payments it receives thereon to the holders of its preferred and common 
securities. The Trust will redeem the trust preferred securities on December 31, 2031, 
which date may be extended to a date no later than December 31, 2050, and may redeem 
them earlier, subject to the early redemption provisions of the Subordinated Debentures 
(discussed below). Distributions on the trust preferred securities are payable quarterly at an 
annual rate of 7.90%. The Trust may defer these payments for up to 20 consecutive quarters 
(the extension period), but not beyond the maturity of the trust preferred securities. Any 
accumulated but unpaid distributions will continue to accrue interest at an annual rate of 
7.90%, compounded quarterly, during the extension period. 

The sole asset of the Trust consists of 7.90% Junior Subordinated Debt securities (the 
Subordinated Debentures) with a principal amount of $206.2 million issued by PartnerRe 
Finance. The Subordinated Debentures mature on December 31, 2031, which date may 
be extended to a date no later than December 31, 2050, and may be redeemed earlier, but 
no earlier than November 21, 2006. Interest on the Subordinated Debentures is payable 
quarterly at an annual rate of 7.90%. PartnerRe Finance may defer interest payments for up 
to 20 consecutive quarters, but not beyond the maturity of the Subordinated Debentures. 
Any accumulated but unpaid distributions will continue to accrue interest at an annual rate 
of 7.90%, compounded quarterly, during the extension period. 

The Subordinated Debentures are unsecured obligations of PartnerRe Finance. The 
Company has fully and unconditionally guaranteed all obligations of PartnerRe Finance 
under the Subordinated Debentures. The Company’s obligations under this guarantee 
are unsecured and will rank junior in priority of payment to the Company’s current long-
term debt (see Note 6). In the event of default under the Subordinated Debentures, the 
trust preferred securities will rank prior to the common securities of the Trust in priority of 
payments. The Company has guaranteed payments due on the trust preferred securities only 
to the extent that the Trust has funds on hand available for such payment. 

As a result of the implementation of FIN 46(R), the Company has deconsolidated the Trust, 
which issued the trust preferred securities, and PartnerRe Finance, which owns the Trust, 
as they do not meet the consolidation requirements under this accounting guidance. The 
Company is refl ecting the debt related to the Trust on its December 31, 2005 and 2004 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

 Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Securities 
In November 2001, the Company issued 4 million Premium Equity Participating Security 
Units (PEPS Units). Each PEPS Unit consisted of (i) one of the Company’s 5.61% Series 
B cumulative redeemable preferred shares, $1 par value, liquidation preference $50 per 
share (Series B preferred shares), and (ii) a purchase contract (purchase contract) issued 
by the Company pursuant to which the holder was obligated to purchase from the Company, 
no later than December 31, 2004, a number of common shares for a price of $50. The 
Company was required to redeem the Series B preferred shares on June 30, 2005, at a 
redemption price of $50 per Series B preferred share, plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. 
Each Series B preferred share was pledged to the Company’s benefi t to secure the holder’s 
obligations under the purchase contract. Holders of Series B preferred shares were permitted 
to withdraw the pledged Series B preferred shares from the pledge arrangement only upon 
early settlement, settlement for cash or termination of the related purchase contract. 
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On December 31, 2004, the Company issued 3.5 million of its common shares following 
the settlement of the purchase contract associated with the PEPS Units. The Company 
participated in the remarketing of the Series B preferred shares and as a result purchased 
100% of the outstanding Series B preferred shares. There was no net cash fl ow to the 
Company as the cash received from the sale of the common shares was equal to the cash 
required to acquire the Series B preferred shares in the remarketing process. The Series B 
preferred shares were subsequently cancelled and are no longer outstanding. In addition, 
following the settlement of the purchase contract on the PEPS Units, the PEPS Units have 
been retired and are no longer outstanding. 

Dividends on Series B preferred shares were cumulative, accrued at a rate of 5.61% of the 
liquidation preference amount per year and were payable quarterly in arrears. In conjunction 
with the payment of dividends on the Series B preferred shares, purchase contract holders 
also received quarterly contract adjustment payments at a rate of 2.39% of the stated 
amount of $50 per purchase contract per year. 

13. Shareholders’ Equity 
 Authorized Shares 
At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the total authorized shares of the Company were 
200 million shares and 150 million shares, respectively, par value $1.00 per share. 

At December 31, 2005, 100 million shares were designated as common shares, 
11.6 million shares were designated as 6.75% Series C cumulative redeemable preferred 
shares, 9.2 million shares were designated as 6.5% Series D cumulative redeemable 
preferred shares and 79.2 million shares remained undesignated. 

At December 31, 2004, 100 million shares were designated as common shares, 
11.6 million shares were designated as 6.75% Series C cumulative redeemable preferred 
shares, 9.2 million shares were designated as 6.5% Series D cumulative redeemable 
preferred shares and 29.2 million shares remained undesignated. 

 Common Shares 
In October 2005, the Company issued 2,448,980 common shares at $61.25 per share, net 
of underwriting discounts, and the net proceeds to the Company were $149 million, net of 
underwriting discounts and other transaction costs. The Company will use the proceeds of 
this capital issuance for general corporate purposes. 

In May 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors approved an increase in the Company’s 
stock repurchase authorization of approximately 3.5 million common shares to the 
approximately 1.5 million common shares remaining under the prior repurchase authorization 
in May 2004, for a total of 5 million common shares. 

During 2005, the Company repurchased in the open market 1,241,849 of its common shares 
pursuant to the share repurchase program at a total cost of $75.5 million, or an average cost 
of $60.74. The repurchased shares were cancelled and are no longer outstanding. As of 
December 31, 2005, the Company has approximately 4.3 million common shares remaining 
under its current share repurchase authorization of 5 million common shares. 

In December 2004, the Company repurchased 2 million of its common shares at a total cost 
of approximately $125.9 million. The shares were purchased from an investment bank under 
an accelerated share repurchase agreement at $62.97 per share. The accelerated share 
repurchase agreement permitted the Company to repurchase the shares on December 30, 
2004, while the investment bank purchased shares in the market during 2005. The fi nal 
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payment under the program of $1.1 million was based on the volume weighted average daily 
market price of the Company’s shares. The repurchased shares were cancelled and are no 
longer outstanding. 

During 2004, the Company also repurchased in the open market an additional 913,800 of 
common shares pursuant to the share repurchase program at a total cost of $48.5 million, or an 
average cost of $53.06. The repurchased shares were cancelled and are no longer outstanding. 

In December 2004, the Company issued 3.5 million of its common shares following the 
settlement of the purchase contract associated with the PEPS Units (see Note 12). 

 Class B Warrants 
In 1993, in connection with the issuance of common shares, the Company issued Class 
B Warrants to purchase, in the aggregate, up to approximately 6.8 million common shares 
provided certain performance criteria were met. The exercise price was also subject to 
adjustment upon the occurrence of certain events relating principally to changes in the 
number of common shares, options or Warrants outstanding. Twenty percent of the Class B 
Warrants were available for vesting on each of the fi rst fi ve anniversary dates of the issue 
of the Warrants. The vesting conditions for certain Class B Warrants available for vesting, 
which aggregated to 5.5 million Warrants, were not met and those Warrants were forfeited. 
The vesting conditions for 1.3 million Class B Warrants were met and these Warrants were 
all exercised in 2003 at an exercise price of $17 per share. As of December 31, 2003, the 
Class B Warrants were no longer outstanding. 

 Series A Cumulative Preferred Shares 
In 1997, the Company issued 10 million of 8% Series A cumulative preferred shares (Series 
A preferred shares), par value $1.00 per share, for net proceeds of $242.2 million, 2 million 
shares of which were issued to Swiss Re. Cumulative dividends of $0.50 per share were 
payable quarterly. In May 2003, the Company redeemed the existing Series A preferred shares. 

While the redemption of the Series A preferred shares had no impact on the net income 
of the Company, the difference between the aggregate liquidation value and the carrying 
value of the Series A preferred shares, which totaled $7.8 million, was treated as a dividend 
on preferred shares and resulted in a $7.8 million reduction in the net income available to 
common shareholders, which is used in the calculation of net income per share. 

 Series C Cumulative Preferred Shares 
In May 2003, the Company issued 11.6 million of 6.75% Series C cumulative redeemable 
preferred shares (Series C preferred shares) for a total consideration of $280.9 million 
after underwriting discounts and commissions totaling $9.1 million. The Series C preferred 
shares cannot be redeemed before May 8, 2008. Beginning May 8, 2008, the Company 
may redeem the Series C preferred shares at $25.00 per share plus accrued and unpaid 
dividends without interest. Dividends on the Series C preferred shares are cumulative from 
the date of issuance and are payable quarterly in arrears. A portion of the net proceeds from 
the sale, in the amount of $250.0 million, was used to redeem the Company’s existing Series 
A preferred shares. The remaining net proceeds were used for general corporate purposes. 
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of outstanding preferred shares 
would have preference over the common shareholders and would receive a distribution of 
$25.00 per share, or an aggregate value of $290 million, plus accrued dividends. 

 Series D Cumulative Preferred Shares 
In November 2004, the Company issued 9.2 million of 6.5% Series D cumulative redeemable 
preferred shares (Series D preferred shares) for a total consideration of $222.3 million after 
underwriting discounts and commissions totaling $7.7 million. The Series D preferred shares 
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cannot be redeemed before November15, 2009. Beginning November15, 2009, the Company 
may redeem the Series D preferred shares at $25.00 per share plus accrued and unpaid 
dividends without interest. Dividends on the Series D preferred shares are cumulative from 
the date of issuance and are payable quarterly in arrears. A portion of the net proceeds from 
the sale, in the amount of $124.8 million, was used to repurchase common shares under the 
accelerated share repurchase agreement. The remaining net proceeds were used for general 
corporate purposes. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of outstanding 
preferred shares would have preference over the common shareholders and would receive a 
distribution of $25.00 per share, or an aggregate value of $230 million, plus accrued dividends. 

 Dividends 
In 2005, the Company paid common dividends of $83.7 million in the form of quarterly 
dividends of $0.38 per share and paid $34.5 million of preferred dividends to Series C and 
Series D preference shareholders. 

In 2004, the Company paid common dividends of $72.7 million in the form of quarterly 
dividends of $0.34 per share and paid $19.6 million of preferred dividends to Series C 
preference shareholders. 

In 2003, the Company paid common dividends of $64.0 million in the form of quarterly 
dividends of $0.29 per share for the fi rst two quarters of the year and $0.31 per share for 
the last two quarters of the year and paid $29.4 million of preferred dividends to Series A 
and Series C preference shareholders, which included $7.8 million related to the redemption 
of the Series A preferred shares. 

 Net (Loss) Income per Share 
The reconciliation of basic and diluted net (loss) income per share is as follows (in 
thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts): 

Loss
(Numerator)

Shares
(Denominator)

2005
(1)      Per Share (1)  

Income
(Numerator)

Shares
(Denominator)

2004
Per Share

Income
(Numerator)

Shares
(Denominator)

2003
Per Share

Net (loss) income $ (51,064) $ 492,353 $ 467,679

Preferred dividends (34,525) (21,485) (29,390)

Net (loss) income available 
to common shareholders/
Weighted average number 
of common shares 
outstanding/Basic net 
(loss) income per share $ (85,589) 54,951.2 $ (1.56) $ 470,868 53,490.8 $ 8.80 $ 438,289 53,238.6 $ 8.23

Effect of dilutive securities:

Class B warrants — 224.7

Stock options 556.6 432.6

Net income available to 
common shareholders/
Weighted average number 
of common and common 
share equivalents outstanding/
Diluted net income per share $ 470,868 54,047.4 $ 8.71 $ 438,289 53,895.9 $ 8.13

(1)   Diluted net loss per share has not been shown for 2005 because the effect of dilutive securities would have been anti-dilutive. Dilutive securities, under the form 
of options and others, that could potentially dilute basic net loss per share were not included in the computation of diluted net loss per share because to do so 
would have been antidilutive. The weighted average number of common and common share equivalents outstanding for the period would have amounted to 
55,869.3 thousand shares if these securities had been included. 
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14. Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
In October 2005, the Company entered into a forward sale agreement under which it 
will sell approximately 6.7 million of its common shares to an affi liate of Citigroup Global 
Markets Inc., which affi liate is referred to as the forward counterparty. Under the forward sale 
agreement, the Company will deliver common shares to the forward counterparty on one 
or more settlement dates chosen by the Company over the next three years. The purchase 
price the Company will receive from the forward counterparty will vary depending upon the 
market price of its common shares over a 40 trading day period surrounding the maturity of 
the forward sale agreement in three years, subject to a maximum price per share of $79.67 
and a minimum price per share of $59.45 as of December 31, 2005. If the Company elects 
to settle all or a portion of the forward sale agreement prior to its maturity, the Company will 
deliver common shares to the forward counterparty and will initially receive the present value 
of the minimum price per share, and the remaining payment, if any, due to the Company 
will be made at maturity of the agreement based on the excess of the market price of the 
Company’s common shares over the minimum price per share at maturity of the contract. 
Settlement of the forward sale agreement may be accelerated by the forward counterparty 
upon the occurrence of certain events, and the maximum and minimum purchase prices will 
be reduced or increased quarterly depending on the amount of the Company’s dividends. 

Contract fees of approximately $29 million related to the forward sale agreement were 
recorded against additional paid-in capital and will be paid over the next three years. Prior to 
the issuance of shares under the forward sale agreement, this transaction will have no other 
impact on the Company’s common shareholders’ equity and the Company will calculate the 
dilutive impact related to the forward sale agreement using the treasury method prescribed 
under SFAS 128, “Earnings per Share”. The Company expects this instrument to be dilutive 
only if the Company’s share price exceeds the maximum price per share of $79.67 prior to 
the sale of shares. 

15. Commitments and Contingencies 

(a) Concentration of Credit Risk 
The Company’s investment portfolio is managed following prudent standards of diversifi cation 
and a prudent investment philosophy. The Company is not exposed to any signifi cant credit 
concentration risk on its investments, excluding debt securities issued by the U.S. and other 
AAA-rated sovereign governments. The Company’s investment strategy allows for the use 
of derivative securities, subject to strict limitations. Derivative instruments may be used to 
replicate investment positions or to manage market exposures and duration risk that would 
be allowed under the Company’s investment policy if implemented in other ways. 

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by the counterparties 
to the Company’s foreign exchange forward contracts and other derivative contracts. 
However, because the counterparties to these contracts are high-credit-quality international 
banks, the Company does not anticipate non-performance. These contracts are generally of 
short duration and settle on a net basis. The difference between the contract amounts and 
the related market value is the Company’s maximum credit exposure. 

The Company has exposure to credit risk as it relates to its trade balances receivable, 
namely reinsurance balances receivable and reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpaid 
losses. The credit risk exposure related to these balances is mitigated by several factors, 
including but not limited to, credit checks performed as part of the underwriting process 
and monitoring of aged receivable balances. In addition, the vast majority of its reinsurance 
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agreements permit the Company the right to offset premiums receivable from the clients 
against losses payable to them. 

The Company is also subject to the credit risk of its cedants in the event of insolvency or the 
cedant’s failure to honor the value of funds held balances for any other reason. However, 
the Company’s credit risk is somewhat mitigated by the fact that the Company generally has 
the contractual ability to offset any shortfall in the payment of the receivable or funds held 
balances with amounts owed by the Company to the cedant for losses payable and other 
amounts contractually due. 

(b) Lease Arrangements 
The Company leases offi ce space under operating leases expiring in various years through 
2017. The leases are renewable at the option of the lessee under certain circumstances. The 
following is a schedule of future minimum rental payments, exclusive of escalation clauses, 
on non-cancelable leases as of December 31, 2005 (in thousands of U.S. dollars): 

Period Amount 

2006  $ 21,745

2007 15,687

2008 15,510

2009 15,517

2010 15,519

2011 through 2017 75,217

Total future minimum rental payments  $ 159,195

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, was $24.9 million, 
$20.6 million and $16.4 million, respectively. 

The Company also entered into non-cancelable operating subleases expiring in various 
years through 2010. The minimum rental income to be received by the Company in the 
future is $9.4 million. The leases are renewable at the option of the lessee under certain 
circumstances. 

(c) Contract Fees Under The Forward Sale Agreement 
Under the terms of the Company’s forward sale agreement (see Note 14), the Company will 
pay a total of $31.4 million, including interest, in contract fees through 2008. 

(d) Employment Agreements 
The Company has entered into employment agreements with its executive offi cers. These 
agreements provide for annual compensation in the form of salary, benefi ts, annual incentive 
payments, stock-based compensation, the reimbursement of certain expenses, retention 
incentive payments, as well as certain severance provisions. 

(e) U.S. Life Operations Representations and Warranties 
As part of the agreement to sell the U.S. life operations in 2000, the Company entered into 
certain representations and warranties, extending through 2008, related to the enterprise 
being sold. At the time of the sale, the Company established a reserve of $15.0 million for 
potential future claims against such representations and warranties. 
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(f) Other Agreements 
The Company has entered into service agreements and lease contracts that provide for 
business and information technology support and computer equipment. Future payments 
under these contracts amount to $4.6 million through 2010. 

(g) Legal Proceedings 

 Litigation 
The Company’s reinsurance subsidiaries, and the insurance and reinsurance industry in 
general, are subject to litigation and arbitration in the normal course of their business 
operations. In addition to claims litigation, the Company and its subsidiaries are subject to 
lawsuits and regulatory actions in the normal course of business that do not arise from or 
directly relate to claims on reinsurance treaties. This category of business litigation typically 
involves, inter alia, allegations of underwriting errors or misconduct, employment claims or 
regulatory activity. While the outcome of the business litigation cannot be predicted with 
certainty, the Company is disputing and will continue to dispute all allegations against the 
Company and/or its subsidiaries that Management believes are without merit. 

As of December 31, 2005, the Company was not a party to any material litigation or 
arbitration other than as part of the ordinary course of business. While Management does 
not expect any of this will have a signifi cant adverse effect on the Company’s results 
of operations, fi nancial condition and cash fl ows for a year, it does have the potential to 
adversely impact the results of a quarter. 

 Subpoenas 
The Company has received subpoenas from the offi ce of the New York Attorney General 
(NYAG) and the SEC that seek information relating to the Company’s investment in Channel 
Re and from the United States Attorney for the Southern District of New York requesting 
information relating to the Company’s fi nite reinsurance products. In addition, the Company’s 
wholly owned subsidiary, Partner Reinsurance Company of the U.S, has received a subpoena 
from the Florida Offi ce of Insurance Regulation requesting information in connection with 
its investigation of insurance industry practices related to fi nite reinsurance activities. The 
Company is cooperating with these requests for information. 

16. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
For certain fi nancial instruments where quoted market prices are not available, 
Management’s best estimate of fair value may be based on quoted market prices of similar 
instruments or on other valuation techniques. SFAS No. 107 “Disclosures about Fair Value 
of Financial Instruments” (SFAS 107) excludes insurance contracts, other than fi nancial 
guarantees, and investment contracts, investments accounted for under the equity method 
and certain other fi nancial instruments. 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating fair market 
value of each class of fi nancial instruments recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Fair value for fi xed maturities, short-term investments, equities and trading securities 
are based on quoted market prices. Carrying value of other invested assets, excluding 
investments recorded using the equity method, approximates fair value. Policy benefi ts for life 
and annuity contracts have a fair value equal to the cash value available to the policyholder 
should the policyholder surrender the policy. The fair value of the long-term debt has been 
calculated as the present value of estimated future cash fl ows using a discount rate refl ective 
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of current market interest rates. The fair value of the debt related to the trust preferred 
securities is based on the quoted market price of the underlying trust preferred securities. 

The carrying values and fair values of the financial instruments recorded in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, were as follows 
(in thousands of U.S. dollars): 

Carrying Value
2005

Fair Value Carrying Value
2004

Fair Value

Assets
Fixed maturities  $ 6,686,822 $ 6,686,822 $ 6,723,580 $ 6,723,580

Short-term investments 230,993 230,993 28,694 28,694

Equities 1,334,374 1,334,374 1,010,777 1,010,777

Trading securities 220,311 220,311 108,402 108,402

Other invested assets (1) 11,801 11,801 5,290 5,290

Liabilities

Policy benefi ts for life 
and annuity contracts (2)  $ 1,233,871 $ 1,233,871 $ 1,277,101 $ 1,277,101

Long-term debt 620,000 615,850 220,000 232,970

Debt related to 
trust preferred securities 206,186 204,000 206,186 212,720

(1) In accordance with SFAS 107, the Company’s investments accounted for under the equity method were 
excluded for the purpose of the fair value disclosure. 

(2) Policy benefi ts for life and annuity contracts included short-duration and long-duration contracts. 

 Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts 
The Company utilizes foreign exchange forward contracts as part of its overall currency risk 
management and investment strategies. In accordance with SFAS 133, these derivative 
instruments are recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value, with changes 
in fair value recognized in either net realized investment gains and losses or net foreign 
exchange gains and losses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

Foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, were 
as follows (in thousands of U.S. dollars): 

Contract
Amount

Market
Value

2005 
Net

Unrealized
Gains

(Losses)
Contract
Amount

Market
Value

2004 
Net

Unrealized
Gains

(Losses)

Receivable  $ 1,171,881  $ 1,171,883  $ 2  $ 1,465,392  $ 1,470,761  $ 5,369

Payable (1,171,881) (1,175,248) (3,367) (1,465,392) (1,467,225) (1,833)

Net  $ —  $ (3,365)  $ (3,365)  $ — $ 3,536  $ 3,536

 Foreign Currency Option Contracts 
The Company also utilizes foreign currency options contracts to mitigate foreign currency 
risk. For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the balances related to contracts 
maturing on December 31 were a receivable of $1.3 million and $4.8 million, respectively. At 
December 31, 2005 and 2004, there were no outstanding contracts. 

 Futures Contracts 
Exchange traded treasury note futures are used by the Company for the purposes of 
managing portfolio duration. The notional value of the short position for treasury note futures 
was $213 million and $110 million, respectively, at December 31, 2005 and 2004. The 
Company also uses equity futures to replicate equity investment positions. The net long 
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position for equity futures was $nil and $46 million, respectively, at December 31, 2005 and 
2004. The fair value for futures contracts was a net unrealized loss of $0.5 million and a net 
unrealized gain of $1.1 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 

 Credit Default Swaps 
At times, the Company utilizes credit default swaps to mitigate the risk associated with its 
underwriting operations, most notably in the credit/surety line. The credit default swaps are 
recorded at fair value with the changes in fair value reported in net realized gains and losses 
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company uses internal valuation models 
to estimate the fair value of these derivatives. The fair value of credit default swaps (the 
Company’s net liabilities) was a net unrealized loss of $1.7 million and $nil, respectively, at 
December 31, 2005 and 2004. The notional value of the Company’s credit default swaps 
was $255 million and $225 million, respectively, at December 31, 2005 and 2004. 

 Equity Short Sales 
As part of the Company’s investment strategy, the Company utilizes, to a limited extent, 
equity short sales, which represent the sales of securities not owned at the time of the sale. 
These short sales are incorporated within a market neutral strategy, which involves holding 
long equity securities and a similar amount of offsetting short equity securities to manage 
market exposure and to generate absolute positive returns. The fair values for equity short 
sales are based on quoted market prices with the changes in fair value reported in net 
realized gains and losses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The fair value of 
equities sold but not yet purchased was $102 million and $nil, respectively, at December 31, 
2005 and 2004 (see Note 3(h)). 

 Weather Derivatives 
As a part of the Company’s ART operations, the Company has entered into various weather 
derivatives. The fair value of weather derivatives (the Company’s net assets or liabilities) was 
a net unrealized gain of $4.7 million and a net unrealized loss of $5.1 million, respectively, at 
December 31, 2005 and 2004. 

 Total Return and Interest Rate Swaps 
As a part of the Company’s ART operations, the Company has entered into total return 
swaps referencing various structured fi nance obligations. The Company has also entered 
into interest rate swaps to mitigate interest rate risk on certain total return swaps. The fair 
value of those derivatives (the Company’s net assets or liabilities) was a net unrealized gain 
of $8.7 million and $3.3 million, respectively, at December 31, 2005 and 2004. 

17. Credit Agreements 
In the normal course of its operations, the Company enters into agreements with fi nancial 
institutions to obtain unsecured credit facilities. As of December 31, 2005, the total amount 
of such credit facilities available to the Company was $858.2 million. These facilities are used 
primarily for the issuance of letters of credit, although a portion of these facilities may also be 
used for liquidity purposes. Under the terms of certain reinsurance agreements, irrevocable 
letters of credit were issued on an unsecured basis in the amount of $721.2 million and 
$357.2 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, in respect of reported loss 
and unearned premium reserves. 

Included in the total credit facilities available to the Company at December 31, 2005, 
is a $700 million fi ve-year syndicated, unsecured credit facility. In September 2005, the 
Company amended and restated its unsecured credit facility on substantially the same 
terms and conditions as the original facility of June 2004, with the exception of the 
following amendments: (i) the tenor of the facility was extended to September 30, 2010, 
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(ii) a $300 million accordion feature which enables the Company to potentially increase 
its available credit from $700 million to $1 billion and (iii) an increase in the minimum 
consolidated tangible net worth requirement from $1,825 million plus 50% of cumulative 
net income for the period from January 1, 2005 through the end of the most recently 
ended fi scal year to $2,100 million, for periods ended prior to or on June 30, 2006, and 
$2,100 million plus 50% of cumulative net income (if positive) since July 1, 2005 through 
the most recent June 30 or December 31, for periods subsequent to June 30, 2006. This 
facility is predominantly used for the issuance of letters of credit although the Company 
does have access to a $350 million revolving line of credit under this facility. At December 
31, 2005, there were no borrowings under this revolving line of credit. 

Some of the credit facilities contain customary default and cross default provisions and 
require that the Company maintain certain covenants, including the following: 

i.   a fi nancial strength rating from A.M. Best of at least A- (for the Company’s material 
reinsurance subsidiaries that are rated by A.M. Best); 

ii.   a maximum ratio of total debt to total capitalization of 35% (for the purposes of this 
covenant, debt does not include trust preferred securities); and 

iii.   a minimum consolidated tangible net worth of $2,100 million, for periods ended prior to 
or on June 30, 2006, and $2,100 million plus 50% of cumulative net income (if positive) 
since July 1, 2005 through the most recent June 30 or December 31, for periods 
subsequent to June 30, 2006. For the purposes of this covenant, consolidated tangible 
net worth includes trust preferred securities and excludes goodwill. Minimum tangible 
net worth required at December 31, 2005 was $2,100 million. 

Additionally, the syndicated unsecured credit facility allows for an adjustment to the level of 
pricing should the Company experience a change in its senior unsecured debt ratings. The 
pricing grid provides the Company greater fl exibility and simultaneously provides participants 
under the facility some price protection. As long as the Company maintains a minimum 
rating of BBB+ by Standard & Poor’s and Baa1 by Moody’s, the pricing on the facility will 
not change signifi cantly. 

The Company’s breach of any of the covenants would result in an event of default, upon 
which the Company may be required to repay any outstanding borrowings and replace or 
cash collateralize letters of credit issued under these facilities. At December 31, 2005 and 
2004, the Company was not in breach of any of the covenants under its facilities. Its total 
debt to total capitalization ratio was 15.8% and 5.8%, respectively, and its consolidated 
tangible net worth (as defi ned under the terms of these facilities) was $2,863.3 million and 
$3,122.4 million, respectively. 

18. Segment Information 
The Company monitors the performance of its underwriting operations in three segments, 
Non-life, ART and Life. The Non-life segment is further divided into three sub-segments, U.S. 
Property and Casualty (U.S. P&C), Global (Non-U.S.) Property and Casualty (Global (Non-
U.S.) P&C) and Worldwide Specialty. Segments and sub-segments represent markets that 
are reasonably homogeneous in terms of geography, client types, buying patterns, underlying 
risk patterns and approach to risk management. 

The U.S. P&C sub-segment includes property, casualty and motor risks generally originating 
in the United States and written by PartnerRe U.S. The Global (Non-U.S.) P&C sub-segment 
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includes property, casualty and motor risks generally originating outside of the United States, 
written by Partner Reinsurance and PartnerRe SA. The Worldwide Specialty sub-segment is 
comprised of business that is generally considered to be specialized due to the sophisticated 
technical underwriting required to analyze risks, and is global in nature, inasmuch as 
appropriate risk management for these lines requires a globally diversifi ed portfolio of risks. 
This sub-segment consists of several lines of business for which the Company believes 
it has developed specialized knowledge and underwriting capabilities. These lines of 
business include agriculture, aviation/space, catastrophe, credit/surety, engineering/energy, 
marine, special risk and other lines. The ART segment includes structured risks, structured 
fi nance and weather-related products, and since the second quarter of 2004, includes the 
Company’s share of Channel Re’s net income. The Life segment includes life, health and 
annuity lines of business. 

Because the Company does not manage its assets by segment, investment income is not 
allocated to the Non-life segment of the reinsurance operations. However, because of the 
interest-sensitive nature of some of the Company’s Life and ART products, investment 
income is considered in Management’s assessment of the profi tability of the Life and ART 
segments. The following items are not considered in evaluating the results of each segment: 
net realized investment gains and losses, interest expense, net foreign exchange gains and 
losses, income tax expense or benefi t, distributions related to trust preferred and mandatorily 
redeemable preferred securities and preferred share dividends. Segment results are 
shown net of intercompany transactions. The Company has treated its ART operations as 
a reportable segment beginning in the fi rst quarter of 2004. Segment information for prior 
periods has been reclassifi ed to conform to this new presentation. 

Management measures results for the Non-life segment on the basis of the loss ratio, 
acquisition ratio, technical ratio, other operating expense ratio and combined ratio. The 
loss ratio is obtained by dividing losses and loss expenses by net premiums earned, the 
acquisition ratio is obtained by dividing acquisition costs by net premiums earned and the 
other operating expense ratio is obtained by dividing other operating expenses by net 
premiums earned. The technical ratio is the sum of the loss and acquisition ratios. The 
combined ratio is the sum of the technical and other operating expense ratios. Management 
measures results for the Non-life sub-segments on the basis of the loss ratio, acquisition 
ratio and technical ratio. Management measures results for the ART segment on the basis 
of the underwriting result, which includes revenues from net premiums earned, other 
income and net investment income for ART, and expenses from losses and loss expenses, 
acquisition costs and other operating expenses. The Company’s share of Channel Re’s net 
income is part of the ART segment and is presented on the interest in earnings of equity 
investments line. Management measures results for the Life segment on the basis of the 
allocated underwriting result, which includes revenues from net premiums earned and 
allocated net investment income for Life, and expenses from losses and loss expenses and 
life policy benefi ts, acquisition costs and other operating expenses. 
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The following tables provide a summary of the segment revenues and results for the years 
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 (in millions of U.S. dollars, except ratios): 

 Segment Information 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005 

U.S. 
P&C 

Global
(Non-U.S.) 

P&C
Worldwide

Specialty

Total
Non-Life

Segment
ART

Segment(A)
Life

Segment Corporate Total 

Gross premiums written  $ 820  $ 837  $ 1,533  $ 3,190  $ 27  $ 448  $ —  $ 3,665
Net premiums written  $ 819  $ 835  $ 1,501  $ 3,155  $ 27  $ 434  $ —  $ 3,616

Decrease (increase) in 
 unearned premiums 9 25 (45) (11) (2) (4) —  (17)

Net premiums earned  $ 828  $ 860  $ 1,456  $ 3,144  $ 25  $ 430  $ —  $ 3,599

Losses and loss expenses 
 and life policy benefi ts (764) (637) (1,334) (2,735) (32) (320) — (3,087)

Acquisition costs (200) (217) (308) (725) (3) (120) — (848)
Technical Result  $ (136)  $ 6  $ (186)  $ (316)  $ (10)  $ (10)  $ —  $ (336)
Other income n/a n/a n/a 4 31 — — 35
Other operating expenses n/a n/a n/a (185) (13) (23) (51) (272)
Underwriting Result n/a n/a n/a  $ (497)  $ 8  $ (33) n/a  $ (573)
Net investment income n/a n/a n/a n/a — 48 317 365
Allocated Underwriting Result (1) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a  $ 15 n/a n/a
Net realized investment gains n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 207 207
Interest expense n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a (33) (33)
Net foreign exchange losses n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a (4) (4)
Income tax expense n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a (23) (23)

Interest in earnings of equity   
 investments n/a n/a n/a n/a 10 n/a n/a 10

Net Loss n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a  $ (51)
Loss ratio (2) 92.2% 74.1% 91.6% 86.9 %
Acquisition ratio (3) 24.2 25.3 21.2 23.1
Technical ratio (4) 116.4% 99.4% 112.8% 110.0%
Other operating expense ratio (5) 5.9
Combined ratio (6) 115.9%

(A) This segment includes the Company’s share of Channel Re’s net income in the amount of $9.4 million for the period of October 2004 to September 2005 
as the Company reports the results of Channel Re on a one-quarter lag. 

(1) Allocated Underwriting Result is defi ned as net premiums earned and allocated net investment income less life policy benefi ts, acquisition costs and 
other operating expenses. 

(2)Loss ratio is obtained by dividing losses and loss expenses by net premiums earned. 
(3)Acquisition ratio is obtained by dividing acquisition costs by net premiums earned. 
(4)Technical ratio is defi ned as the sum of the loss ratio and the acquisition ratio. 
(5)Other operating expense ratio is obtained by dividing other operating expenses by net premiums earned. 
(6)Combined ratio is the sum of the technical ratio and the other operating expense ratio. 
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 Segment Information 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004 

U.S.
P&C 

Global
(Non-U.S.) 

P&C
Worldwide

Specialty

Total
Non-Life
Segment

ART
Segment(A)

Life
Segment Corporate Total 

Gross premiums written  $ 991  $ 944  $ 1,531  $ 3,466  $ 5  $ 417  $ —  $ 3,888

Net premiums written  $ 990  $ 945  $ 1,509  $ 3,444  $ 5  $ 404  $ —  $ 3,853

(Increase) decrease in 
 unearned premiums (97) (16) (9) (122) 1 2 — (119)

Net premiums earned  $ 893  $ 929  $ 1,500  $ 3,322  $ 6  $ 406  $ —  $ 3,734

Losses and loss expenses 
 and life policy benefi ts (699) (730) (744) (2,173) (7) (296) — (2,476)

Acquisition costs (204) (238) (323) (765) (1) (136) — (902)

Technical Result  $ (10)  $ (39)  $ 433  $ 384  $ (2)  $ (26)  $ —  $ 356

Other income n/a n/a n/a 6 11 — — 17

Other operating expenses n/a n/a n/a (194) (13) (22) (42) (271)

Underwriting Result n/a n/a n/a  $ 196  $ (4)  $ (48) n/a  $ 102

Net investment income n/a n/a n/a n/a — 44 254 298

Allocated Underwriting Result (1) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a  $ (4) n/a n/a

Net realized investment gains n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 117 117

Interest expense n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a (41) (41)

Net foreign exchange gains n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 17 17

Income tax expense n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a (7) (7)

Interest in earnings of 
 equity investments n/a n/a n/a n/a 6 n/a n/a 6

Net Income n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a  $ 492

Loss ratio (2) 78.2 % 78.6 % 49.6% 65.4 %

Acquisition ratio (3) 22.8 25.6 21.6 23.0

Technical ratio (4) 101.0% 104.2% 71.2% 88.4 %

Other operating expense ratio (5) 5.9

Combined ratio (6) 94.3 %

(A) This segment includes the Company’s share of Channel Re’s net income in the amount of $6.0 million for the period of February (when Channel Re commenced 
business) to September 2004 as the Company reports the results of Channel Re on a one-quarter lag. 
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 Segment Information 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003 

U.S.
P&C

Global
(Non-U.S.) 

P&C
Worldwide

Specialty

Total
Non-Life
Segment

ART
Segment

Life
Segment Corporate Total 

Gross premiums written  $ 920  $ 848  $ 1,542  $ 3,310  $ 5  $ 310  $ —  $ 3,625

Net premiums written  $ 920  $ 849  $ 1,517  $ 3,286  $ 4  $ 300  $ —  $ 3,590

(Increase) decrease in 
 unearned premiums (77) (10) 1 (86) (1) — — (87)

Net premiums earned  $ 843  $ 839  $ 1,518  $ 3,200  $ 3  $ 300  $ —  $ 3,503

Losses and loss expenses 
 and life policy benefi ts (645) (625) (829) (2,099) — (267) — (2,366)

Acquisition costs (214) (209) (289) (712) — (61) — (773)

Technical Result  $ (16)  $ 5  $ 400  $ 389  $ 3  $ (28)  $ —  $ 364

Other income n/a n/a n/a 9 12 — — 21

Other operating expenses n/a n/a n/a (176) (11) (19) (30) (236)

Underwriting Result n/a n/a n/a  $ 222  $ 4  $ (47) n/a  $ 149

Net investment income n/a n/a n/a n/a — 53 209 262

Allocated Underwriting Result (1) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a  $ 6 n/a n/a

Net realized investment gains n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 87 87

Interest expense n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a (18) (18)

Net foreign exchange gains n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 12 12

Income tax expense n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a (2) (2)

Distributions related to 
 trust preferred and mandatorily 
 redeemable preferred securities n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a (22) (22)

Net Income n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a  $ 468

Loss ratio (2) 76.5% 74.5% 54.6% 65.6%

Acquisition ratio (3) 25.4 24.8 19.0 22.2

Technical ratio (4) 101.9% 99.3% 73.6% 87.8%

Other operating expense ratio (5) 5.5

Combined ratio (6) 93.3%
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The following table provides the distribution of net premiums written by line of business for 
the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003: 

2005 2004 2003 

Non-life

 Property and Casualty

  Property 19% 19% 21%

  Casualty 19 21 19

  Motor 8 10 10

 Worldwide Specialty

  Agriculture 3 4 4

  Aviation/Space 6 6 8

  Catastrophe 11 9 10

  Credit/Surety 7 6 5

  Engineering/Energy 5 6 7

  Marine 3 2 3

  Special Risk 6 6 5

ART 1 — —

Life 12 11 8

The following table provides the geographic distribution of gross premiums written for the 
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003: 

2005 2004 2003 

Europe 46% 45% 41%

North America 41 40 44

Asia, Australia and New Zealand 8 9 10

Latin America, Caribbean and Africa 5 6 5

The Company produces its business both through brokers and through direct relationships 
with insurance company clients. None of the Company’s clients accounted for more than 4% 
of total gross premiums written in 2005, 2004 and 2003. The Company had one broker that 
accounted for 10% or more of its gross premiums written in 2005, 2004 and 2003. This 
broker accounted for 16%, 16% and 17%, respectively, of gross premiums written for the 
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003. 

The following table summarizes the percentage of gross premiums written through this broker 
by segment and sub-segment for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003: 

2005 2004 2003 

Non-life

 U.S. P&C 21% 17% 20%

 Global (Non-U.S.) P&C 16 17 18

 Worldwide Specialty 13 13 12

ART 32 — —

Life 14 19 27
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19.  Unaudited Quarterly Financial Information 

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except 
per share amounts)

2005
Fourth

Quarter
Third

Quarter
Second
Quarter

First
Quarter

2004
Fourth

Quarter
Third

Quarter
Second
Quarter

First
Quarter

Net premiums written  $ 666.3  $ 770.8  $ 763.9  $ 1,414.9  $ 683.0  $ 805.3  $ 840.7  $ 1,523.7

Net premiums earned 907.0 915.5 880.3 896.4 942.3 943.8 954.8 892.8

Net investment income 94.1 93.3 90.2 86.8 80.0 69.6 74.9 73.5

Net realized investment gains 57.9 56.0 55.6 37.4 38.6 32.8 8.0 37.8

Other income (loss) 14.7 8.6 (1.1) 12.8 4.4 6.8 3.3 2.8

Losses and loss expenses 
 and life policy benefi ts 815.4 1,111.3 546.2 613.9 625.3 660.9 619.6 569.9

Acquisition costs and other operating  
 expenses 276.5 283.1 277.9 282.6 295.5 310.7 294.7 271.9

Interest expense and net foreign  
 exchange losses (gains)
Interest expense and net foreign  
 exchange losses (gains)
Interest expense and net foreign  

10.3 8.9 9.9 7.3 (4.5) 9.4 10.2 9.0

Income tax expense (benefi t) 7.8 (39.1) 33.5 20.8 7.8 (8.3) (2.5) 10.6

Interest in earnings of 
 equity investments 2.7 2.1 2.4 2.6 2.5 2.9 0.8 0.1

Net (loss) income (33.6) (288.7) 159.9 111.4 143.7 83.2 119.8 145.6

Preferred dividends 8.6 8.6 8.6 8.6 6.8 4.9 4.9 4.9

Net (loss) income available 
 to common shareholders  $ (42.2)  $ (297.3)  $ 151.3  $ 102.8  $ 136.9  $ 78.3  $ 114.9  $ 140.7

Basic net (loss) income 
 per common share  $ (0.76)  $ (5.48)  $ 2.76  $ 1.87  $ 2.58  $ 1.47  $ 2.14  $ 2.62

Diluted net (loss) income 
 per common share  $ (0.76)  $ (5.48)  $ 2.72  $ 1.84  $ 2.54  $ 1.46  $ 2.12  $ 2.59

Dividends declared 
 per common share  $ 0.38  $ 0.38  $ 0.38  $ 0.38  $ 0.34  $ 0.34  $ 0.34  $ 0.34

Common share price range

High  $ 70.50  $ 66.28  $ 66.62  $ 65.63  $ 62.63  $ 57.16  $ 58.70  $ 59.95

Low 59.81 58.73 57.37 60.17 53.74 50.34 54.69 53.75



To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of PartnerRe Ltd. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of PartnerRe Ltd. and 
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated 
statements of operations and comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash fl ows for 
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005. These fi nancial statements are 
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these fi nancial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the fi nancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and signifi cant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall fi nancial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such consolidated fi nancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
fi nancial position of PartnerRe Ltd. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and 
the results of their operations and their cash fl ows for each of the three years in the period 
ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

As discussed in Note 2(q) to the consolidated fi nancial statements, the Company changed its 
method of accounting for its Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Securities on July 1, 2003, 
upon its adoption of newly issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.150  
“Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity” 
and its method of accounting for its Trust Preferred Securities on December 31, 2003, upon its 
adoption of newly issued Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46 (revised 
December 2004), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”. 

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over 
fi nancial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on the criteria established in Internal 
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission and our report dated March 1, 2006 expressed an unqualifi ed opinion 
on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over 
fi nancial reporting and an unqualifi ed opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
control over fi nancial reporting.

Deloitte & Touche
Hamilton, Bermuda
March 1, 2006
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Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
The Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the 
Company’s Management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Offi cer and Chief Financial 
Offi cer, as of December 31, 2005 of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the 
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, as defi ned in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) 
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief 
Executive Offi cer and Chief Financial Offi cer concluded that, as at December 31, 2005, the 
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective. 

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate 
internal control over fi nancial reporting as defi ned in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting is 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of fi nancial reporting and the 
preparation of fi nancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. The Company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that: 

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; 

(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of Management and directors of the Company; and 

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over fi nancial reporting may not prevent or 
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

The Company’s Management has assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control 
over fi nancial reporting as of December 31, 2005. In making this assessment, the Company’s 
Management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. 

Based on our assessment and those criteria, Management believes that the Company 
maintained effective internal control over fi nancial reporting as of December 31, 2005. 

The Company’s independent registered public accounting fi rm has issued an attestation report 
on Management’s assessment of the Company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting. That 
report appears on pages 143-144. 

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
There have been no changes in the Company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting 
identifi ed in connection with such evaluation that occurred during the Company’s fourth 
quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the 
Company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting. 
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To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of PartnerRe Ltd. 

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s 
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, that PartnerRe Ltd. and subsidiaries (the 
“Company”) maintained effective internal control over fi nancial reporting as of December 31, 
2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s 
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over fi nancial reporting 
and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over fi nancial reporting. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over fi nancial reporting 
was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal 
control over fi nancial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinions. 

A company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting is a process designed by, or under 
the supervision of, the company’s principal executive and principal fi nancial offi cers, or 
persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, 
management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of fi nancial reporting and the preparation of fi nancial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control 
over fi nancial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refl ect the transac-
tions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of fi nancial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the fi nancial statements. 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over fi nancial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 
to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any 
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evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over fi nancial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control 
over fi nancial reporting as of December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based 
on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee 
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company 
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over fi nancial reporting as of 
December 31, 2005, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. 

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated fi nancial statements as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2005 of the Company and our report dated March 1, 2006 expressed an 
unqualifi ed opinion on those fi nancial statements. 

Deloitte & Touche
Hamilton, Bermuda 
March 1, 2006 
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The Audit Committee has discussed with the independent auditors, Deloitte & Touche, the mat-
ters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61 (Communication with 
Audit Committees), as may be modifi ed or supplemented, as amended and as required by S-X 
Rule 2-07. 

The Audit Committee has discussed with the independent auditors the independent auditors’ in-
dependence and whether the auditors’ provision of non-audit related services is compatible with 
maintaining the auditors’ independence from management and the Company and has received 
from the independent auditors the written disclosures and the letter required by the Indepen-
dence Standards Board Standard No. 1, as may be modifi ed or supplemented, including written 
materials addressing the internal quality control procedures of Deloitte & Touche. 

During fi scal 2005, the Audit Committee had nine meetings including telephonic meetings 
to discuss amongst other things the quarterly results of the Company. The meetings were 
conducted so as to encourage communication among the members of the Audit Committee, 
management, the internal auditors, and the Company’s independent auditors, Deloitte & Touche. 
Among other things, the Audit Committee discusses with the Company’s independent auditors 
the overall scope and plans for their respective audits, and the results of such audits. The Audit 
Committee separately met with Deloitte & Touche representatives, with and without manage-
ment present. 

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the audited fi nancial statements for the 
year ended December 31, 2005 with management and with the independent auditors of the 
Company. Based on the above-mentioned reviews and discussions the Audit Committee has 
recommended to the Board that the audited fi nancial statements be included in the Company’s 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Kevin M. Twomey
Chairman, Audit Committee

Rémy Sautter 
Vice Chairman, Audit Committee

Vito H. Baumgartner
Member, Audit Committee 

Jan H. Holsboer
Member, Audit Committee

Jürgen Zech
Member, Audit Committee

Audit Committee Chairman’s Letter 
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Board of Directors

Chairman 
John A. Rollwagen 
Chairman and CEO (Retired) 
Cray Research Inc. 
USA

Patrick A. Thiele 
President and Chief Executive Offi cer 
PartnerRe Ltd.  
Bermuda

Vito H. Baumgartner 
Group President (Retired) 
Caterpillar Inc 
United Kingdom

Robert M. Baylis 
Vice Chairman (Retired) 
CS First Boston 
USA

Judith C. Hanratty, OBE  
Company Secretary and Counsel 
to the Board (Retired) 
BP plc 
United Kingdom

Jan H. Holsboer 
Executive Board Member (Retired) 
ING Group 
The Netherlands

Jean-Paul Montupet 
Executive Vice President 
and Advisory Director 
Emerson Electric Co. 
USA

Rémy Sautter 
Chairman 
RTL Radio 
France

Kevin M. Twomey 
President and  
Chief Operating Offi cer 
The St. Joe Company 
USA

Dr. Jürgen Zech 
Chairman (Retired) 
Gerling-Konzern 
Versicherungs Beteiligung – AG 
Germany

Secretary to the Board

Christine Patton
PartnerRe Ltd.

Shareholders’ Meeting

The 2005 Annual General Meeting 
will be held on May 12, 2006,
in Pembroke, Bermuda.

Independent Registered Public 
Accounting Firm

Deloitte & Touche
Church & Parliament Streets
Hamilton, Bermuda

Outside Counsel

U.S.

Davis Polk & Wardwell
450 Lexington Avenue
New York, New York 10017

Bermuda

Appleby Spurling Hunter 
Canon’s Court 
22 Victoria Street 
Hamilton HM 12 
Bermuda

Market Information

The following PartnerRe shares 
(with their related symbols) are traded 
on the New York Stock Exchange:

Common shares   “PRE”

6.75% Series C cumulative 
 preferred shares  “PRE-PrC” 
6.5 % Series D cumulative 
 preferred shares  “PRE-PrD” 
PartnerRe Capital Trust 1- 
 7.9% cumulative 
 preferred shares  “PRE-PrT”

As of March 17, 2006, the approximate number 
of common shareholders was 45,450.

Share Transfer and Dividend 
Payment Agent

Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
PO Box 43078 
Providence, RI 02940-3078

Additional Information

PartnerRe’s Annual Report on Form 
10-K and PartnerRe’s 1934 Act fi lings, 
as fi led with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, are available 
at the corporate headquarters in 
Bermuda or on the company website 
at www.partnerre.com.

The Company has fi led the required certifi cations 
under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
of 2002 regarding the quality of our public 
disclosures as Exhibits 31.1 and 32.2 to our 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fi scal year 
ended December 31, 2005. In 2005, after our 
annual meeting of shareholders, the Company 
fi led with the New York Stock Exchange the 
CEO certifi cation regarding its compliance with 
the NYSE corporate governance listing standards 
as required by NYSE Rule 303A. 12(a).

Shareholder Information



Corporate Headquarters

Bermuda

Wellesley House
90 Pitts Bay Road
Pembroke HM 08
Bermuda
Telephone (1 441) 292 0888
Telefax (144 1) 292 7010

Principal Offi ces

Greenwich

One Greenwich Plaza
Greenwich, CT 06830-6352
USA
Telephone (1 203) 485 4200
Telefax (1 203) 485 4300

Paris

153 Rue de Courcelles
F-75817 Paris Cedex 17
France
Telephone (33 1) 44 01 17 17
Telefax (33 1) 44 01 17 80

Zurich

P.O. Box 857
Bellerivestrasse 36
CH-8034 Zurich
Switzerland 
Telephone (41 1) 385 35 35
Telefax (41 1) 385 35 00

Branch and Subsidiary Offi ces 

Dublin

Ground Floor
7 Exchange Place
IFSC
Dublin 1
Ireland
Telephone (353) 1 607 1122
Telefax (353) 1 607 1128

Hong Kong

3706 Sun Hung Kai Centre
30 Harbour Road
Wanchai
Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2598 8813
Telefax (852) 2598 0886

Singapore

2 Battery Road
Maybank Towers, #23-01
Singapore 049907
Telephone (65) 6538 2066
Telefax (65) 6538 1176

Toronto

130 King Street West
Suite 2300, P.O. Box 166
Toronto, Ontario M5X 1C7
Canada
Telephone (1 416) 861 0033
Telefax (1 416) 861 0200

Representative Offi ces

Mexico City

Regus Torre Esmeralda II
Blvd. Manuel Avila Camacho 36
Piso 10
Col. Lomas de Chapultepec
11000 Mexico, D.F.
Mexico
Telephone (5255) 9171 1716
Telefax (5255) 9171 1699

Montreal

1080 Cote de Beaver Hall
Bureau 1900
Montreal, Quebec H2Z 1S8
Canada
Telephone (1 514) 875 0100
Telefax (1 514) 875 8935

Santiago

Av. Vitacura 2939 of 2701
Las Condes – Santiago
Chile
Telephone (56) 2 381 7700
Telefax (56) 2 381 7704

Seoul

Suite 400, Leema Building
146-1 Soosong-Dong, Chongro-Gu
Seoul 110 –140
Korea
Telephone (82) 2 398 5846
Telefax (82) 2 398 5807

Tokyo

Fukoku Seimei Building 5F
2-2-2 Uchisaiwaicho Chiyoda-ku
Tokyo 100-0011
Japan
Telephone (813) 5251 5301
Telefax (813) 5251 5302

Financial Highlights
(expressed in millions of U.S. dollars, except per share data)
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Compound 
Annual Return
Price: 10.3%

Dividend: 2.4%

Total: 12.7%

The Company’s Annual Report contains measures such as operating earnings, operating earnings per share and operating return on e quity that 
are considered non-GAAP measures. See page 28 for a reconciliation of those non-GAAP measures to the most comparable GAAP measures.

For the years ended 
December 31, 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

$ 1,825 $ 2,655 $  3,590 $  3,853 $  3,616 Net premiums written
 1,895  2,670  3,873  4,166  4,206 Total revenues
 (160)  190  468  492  (51) Net (loss) income

(Loss) earnings per common share:

$ (4.44) $ 3.60 $  6.65 $  7.27 $  (4.42)
Diluted operating (loss) 
earnings per common share

 (3.60)  3.28  8.13  8.71  (1.56)
Diluted net (loss) income 
per common share

(12.1%) 12.5% 19.6% 17.0% (8.6%)
Operating return on beginning common 
shareholders’ equity

(9.8%) 11.4% 24.0% 20.4% (3.0%)
Return on beginning common shareholders’ 
equity calculated with net income

Non-life ratios:
100.4% 69.3% 65.6% 65.4% 86.9% Loss ratio

22.7% 22.0% 22.2% 23.0% 23.1% Acquisition ratio
6.3% 5.5% 5.5% 5.9% 5.9% Other overhead expense ratio

129.4% 96.8% 93.3% 94.3% 115.9% Combined ratio

As at
December 31, 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

$  7,173 $ 8,548 $ 10,903 $  12,680 $  13,744 Total assets
 1,748  2,077  2,594  3,352  3,093 Total shareholders’ equity

 29.05  34.02  42.48  50.99  44.57 
Diluted book value per common and 
common share equivalents

 2,709  2,714  3,120  3,398  3,725 Market capitalization

Comparative Performance Graph
PartnerRe Share Price   S&P 500   Trend Line  (12/1993 = 100)
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